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‘Go, little book , God send thee good passage,
And specially let this be thy prayere

Unto them all that thee will read or hear,
‘Where thou art wrong, after their help to call,
Thee to correct in any part or all.’



PREFACE.

The chief object of the Handbook for South -Western France,
which has been re-arranged and expanded from the Handbook for
Southern France and corresponds with the fifth French edition, is
to render the traveller as nearly as possible independent of the sery-
ices of guides, commissionnaires, and inn-keepers, and to enable
him to employ his time and his money to the best advantage.

Like the Editor’s other Handbooks, it is based on personal
acquaintance with the country described , which has been specially
re-visited with the view of assuring accuracy and freshness of
information. For the improvement of this work the Editor confidently
looks forward to a continuance of those valuable corrections and
suggestions with which travellers have been in the habit of favouring
him, and for which he owes them a deep debt of gratitude.

The contents of the Handbook are divided into THREE SEOTIONS
(I. South - Western France from the Loire to the Pyrenees: II. The
Pyrenees; III. Central France, Auvergne, and the Cévennes), each
of which may be separately removed from the book by the traveller
who desires to minimise the bulk of his luggage. To each section
is prefixed a list of the routes it contains, so that each forms an
approximately complete volume apart from the general table of
contents. £

On the MAPs and Prans the utmost care has been bestowed,
and it is hoped that they will often be of material service to the
traveller, enabling him at a glance to ascertain his bearings and
select the best routes.

Hrrenrs and Disrances are given in English measurement.
It may, however, be convenient to remember that 1 kilométre is
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approximately equal to 5/g Engl. M., or 8 kil. = 5 M. (nearly). See
also p. xxiii.

In the Handbook are enumerated both the first-class hotels and
those of humbler pretensions. The latter may often be selected by
the ‘voyageur en gargon’ with little sacrifice of real comfort, and
considerable saving of expenditure. Those which the Editor, either
from his own experience, or from an examination of the numerous
hotel-bills sent him by travellers of different nationalities, believes
to be most worthy of commendation, are denoted by asterisks. It
should, however, be borne in mind that hotels are liable to constant
changes, and that the treatment experienced by the traveller often
depends on circumstances which can neither be foreseen nor con-
trolled. Although prices generally have an upward tendency, the
average charges stated in the Handbook will enable the traveller to
form a fair estimate of his expenditure.

To hotel-proprietors, tradesmen, and others the Editor begs to
intimate that a character for fair dealing and courtesy towards trav-
ellers forms the sole passport to his commendation, and that ad-
vertisements of every kind are strictly excluded from his Hand-
books. Hotel-keepers are also warned against persons representing
themselves as agents for Baedeker's Handbooks.
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Abbreviations.

R. = room; L. = light; B. = breakfast; déj. = déjeuner; D.
— dinner; S. — supper; A. — attendance; N. = north, northern,
te. ; S. = south, ete.; E. — east, etc.; W.— west, etc.; M. = Eng-
ish mile; ft. — Engl. foot; fr. = franc; c. = centime.

The letter & with a date, after the name of a person, indicates the year
f his death. The number of feet given after the name of a place shows
S hqight above the sea-level. The number of miles placed before the
rincipal places on railway-routes and high-roads generally indicates their
istance from the starting-point of the route.

Asterisks are used as marks of commendation.



INTRODUCTION.

I. Language.

A slight acquaintance with Freneh is indispensable for those
who desire to explore the more remote districts of Southern France,
but tourists who do not deviate from the beaten track will generally
find English spoken at the principal hotels and the usual resorts of
strangers. If, however, they are entirely ignorant of the French
language, they must be prepared occasionally to submit to the ex-
tortions practised by porters, cab-drivers, and others of a like class,
which even the data furnished by the Handbook will not always
enable them to avoid. &

II. Money. Travelling Expenses.

Mox~EY. The decimal Monetary System of France is extremely
convenient in keeping accounts. The Banque de France issues
Banknotes of 5000, 1000, 500, 200, 100, and 50 francs, and these
are the only banknotes current in the country. The French Gold
coins are of the value of 100, 50, 20, 10, and 5 franes; Silver coins
of 5, 2, 1, 1/,, and 1/; franc; Bromze of 10, 5, 2, and 1 centime
(100 centimes — { franc). ‘Sou’ is the old name, still in common
use, for 5 centimes; thus, a 5-franc piece is sometimes called ‘une
piéce de cent sous’, 2 fr. — 40 sous, 1 fr. =20 sous, 1/, fr. =
10 sous. The currency of Belgium, Switzerland , Ttaly, and Greece
being the same as that of France, Ttalian, Belgian, Swiss, and Greek
gold and silver coins are received at their full value, and the new
Austrian gold pieces of 4 and 8 florins are worth exactly 10 and
20 fr. respectively. The only foreign copper coins current in France
are those of Italy and occasionally the English penny and halfpenny,
which nearly correspond to the 10 and 5 centime piece respectively.

English banknotes and gold are also generally received at the
full value in the larger towns, except at the shops of the money-
changers, where a trifling deduction is made. The table at the begin-
ning of the book shows the comparative value of the French, English,
American, and German currencies, when at par. Cireular Notes or
Letters of Credit, obtainable at the principal English and American
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banks, are the most convenient form for the transport of large sums;
and their value, if lost or stolen, is recoverable.

The traveller should always be provided with small change
(petite monnaie), as otherwise he may be put to inconvenience in
giving gratuities, purchasing catalogues, etc.

Expenses. The expense of a tour in Southern France depends
of course on a great variety of circumstances; but it may be stated
generally that travelling in France is not more expensive than in
most other countries of Europe. The pedestrian of moderate require-
ments, who is tolerably proficient in the language and avoids the
beaten track as much as possible, may limit his expenditure to
12-15 fr. per diem, while those who prefer driving to walking, choose
the dearest hotels, and employ the services of guides and commis-
sionnaires must be prepared to spend at least 20-30 fr. daily. Two
or three gentlemen travelling together will be able to journey more
economically than a single tourist, but the presence of ladies gener-
ally adds considerably to the expenses of the party.

III. Period and Plan of Tour.

SEASON. Most of the districts described in this Handbook may
be visited at any part of the year; though the plains between
Auvergne and the Pyrenees, and the other more southerly regions
are apt to be disagreeably hot in the height of summer. On the other
hand, excursions among the mountains, the Pyrenees especially, are
scarcely possible except in summer.

Prax. The traveller is strongly recommended to sketch out a
plan of his tour in ad vance, as this, even though not rigidly adhered
to, will be found of the greatest use in aiding him to regulate his
movements, to economise his time, and to guard against overlooking
any place of interest. The districts of which the present Handbook
treats are not only richly gifted with natural beauties, they abound
also in architectural monuments of great importance, both ancient
and modern, and contain numerous points of artistic and historic
interest.

The special bent of the traveller must be the chief agent in de-
termining the plan of tour to be selected, but the following short
itineraries may at least give an idea of the time required for a visit
to the most attractive points. The tourist starting from London will
find no difficulty in adapting the arrangement to his requirements
by beginning at the places most easily reached from England. An
early start is supposed to be made each morning, but no night-trav-
elling is assumed. The various tours given below are arranged so
thatthey may be combined into one comprehensive tour of two months
(comp. Maps). The names of the places most worth visiting are
painted in italics. The tourist should carefully consult the rail-
way time-tables in order to guard against detention at uninteresting
junections.
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a, Ten Days between the Loire and the Gironde.
Days Days
Tours, Loches, Tours FORL Royan, Pons, Saintes 1
Tours, Poitiers, Angouléme . 1 Saintes, Rochefort . 3 1
Angouléme, Bordeaux 1 Rochefort, La Rochelle . 1
Bordeaux PR 1 La Rochelle, Niort O e ¢
Bordeauz, Royan . 1. | Niort, Loudun, Chinon, Tours 1
10
b. Ten Days in Central France and Auvergne,
Days Days
Orléans (or Tours), Bourges 1 Aurillae, Gorges of the Cére,
Bourges, La Bourboule, Mont St. Denis-pres-Martel, Brive 1
Dore, Sdney:. - .5 L1080 Brive, Périgueux . Salc 1
Mont Dore, Clermont-Perrand, Périgueux, Limoges . . . . 1
Royat, Puy de Déome . 2 Limoges, Angouléme,Bordeaux
Clermont Arvant., Ligne du (or Limoges, Chateauroux,
Cantal, Aurillac . ST i OrlBang) . ; t 47" oA e 1
10
¢, Ten Days in the Lozére and the Cévennes.
Days Days
Clermont-Ferrand, Arvant, Montpellier, Nimes . . . . 1
Neussargues, St. Flour, Nimes, Aigues-Mortes, Nimes 1
Mende :, i3 o Nimes, St. George d’Aurae, .
Mende, Caiion of the Tarn Le Puy O e fapk - 4K
Montpellier-le- Vieuz, Millau 2 | e Puy, St. Etienne . 1
Millau, Béziers. . . FELRL] St. Etienne, Lyons 15
Béziers, Montpellier . 1 10
d. A Month in Gascony, Languedoc, and the Pyrenees,
Days Days
Bordeaux, Bayonue . st Envivons of Bagnéres-de-Lu-
Bayonne, Biarritz, Bayonne. 1 CROM: - N R e L R R R
Bayonne, San Sebastian 1 Bagnéres-de-Luchon, ZToulouse 1
San Sebastian, Bayonne, Pau 1 Toulouse, Carcassonne . . . 1
Pan, Eaux- Bonnes, Eauz- Carcassonne, Narbonne, Per-
Chaudes, ete., Pau 2-3 pignan v 1ia% 35 b ayad (e
Pau, Lourdes, Cauterets 1 Perpignan, Carcassonne e |
Cauterets and its Environs 3-4 ) Carcassonne, Castelnaudary,
Luz, St. Sauveur, and their Castres, Albi. . . . .0 4
Environs s 2000 s ey Albi, Capdenae, Cahors, Mont-
Bareges and its Environs . 2 auban ST ER P Y
Bagneres-de-Bigorre . s | Montauban , Agen, Bordeaux
Bagnéres-de-Bigorre, Bagneres- | or Périgueux AR 5 v
de-Luchon., 20 o5 i 26-30

IV. Passports. Custom House. Octroi.

Passports. These documents ; though not now obligatory, are
often useful in proving the traveller's identity, procuring admission
to museums on days when they are not open to the public, ete.,
and they must be shown in order to obtain delivery of registered
letters. Pedestrians in remote districts, especially in the mountain
frontier-districts, will often find that a passport spares them much
inconvenience and delay. The countenance and help of the British
and American consuls can, of course, be extended to those persons
only who can prove their nationality. A British Foreign Office
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passport may be obtained at the Foreign Office, from 11 to 4 (fee 2s.),
on previous written application, supported by a clergyman, banker,
magistrate, or justice of the peace. Application for passports may
be made to W. J. Adams, 59 Fleet Street; Lee and Carter, 440 W.
Strand ; C. Smith & Son, 63 Charing Cross; or E. Stanford, 26 Cock-
spur Street, Charing Cross (charge 2s., agent’s fee 1s. 6d.).

Sketching, photographing, or making notes near fortified places
sometimes exposes innocent travellers to disagreeable suspicions or
worse, and should therefore be avoided.

Custom House. In order to prevent the risk of unpleasant de-
tention at the ‘douane’ or custom-house, travellers are strongly re-
commended to avoid carrying with them any articles that are not
absolutely necessary. Cigars and tobacco are chiefly sought for by
the custom-house officers. The duty on the former amounts to about
16s., on the latter to 7-11s. per 1b. Articles liable to duty should
always be ‘declared’. Books and newspapers occasionally give rise to
suspicion and may in certain cases be confiscated. The examination
of luggage generally takes place at the frontier-stations, and travellers
should superintend it in person. Luggage registered to Paris is
examined on arrival there.

Octro1. At the entrance to the larger towns an ‘Octroi’, or muni-
cipal tax, is levied on all comestibles, but travellers’ luggage is usu-
ally passed on a simple declaration that it contains no such articles.
The officials are, however, entitled to see the receipts for articles
liable to duty at the frontier.

V. Railways. Diligences. Carriages.

The network of railways by which France is now overspread con-
sists of lines of an aggregate length of 20,300 M., belonging to the
Government, to six large companies, and to a large number of small-
er ones. The districts treated in this Handbook are served mainly
by the lines of the Orléans, Midi, and Paris- Lyon - Méditerranée
railways, and to a smaller extent by the Government lines (Résean
de U Etat).

The fares per English mile are approximately: 1st cl. 18 c.,
2nd cl. 12 ¢., 3rd cl. 8 c., to which a tax of ten per cent on each
ticket costing more than 10 fr. is added. The mail trains (‘trains
rapides’) generally convey first-class passengers only, and the express
trains (‘rains express’) first-class and second-class only. The first-
class carriages are good, but the second-class are inferior to those in
most other parts of Europe and the third-class are rarely furnished
with cushioned seats, The trains aregenerally provided with smoking
carriages, and in the others smoking is allowed unless any one of
the passengers objects. Ladies’ compartments are also provided.
The trains invariably pass each other on the left, so that the traveller
can always tell which side of a station his train starts from. The
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speed of the express - trains is about 35-45 M. per hour, but that o1
the ordinary trains is often very much less.

Travellers must purchase their tickets before entering the waiting-
rooms, but, unlike other parts of France, they are then permitted free
access to the platforms, and may choose their own seats in the trains,
Tickets for intermediate stations are usually collected at the ‘sortie’;
those for termini, before the station is entered. Travellers within
France are allowed 30 kilogrammes (66 Engl. 1bs.) of luggage free of
charge; those who are bound for foreign countries are allowed 25kilogr.
only (55 1bs.); 10 c. is charged for booking. In all cases the heavier
luggage must be booked, and a ticket procured for it; this being done,
the traveller need not enquire after his ‘impedimenta’ until he ar-
rives and presents his ticket at his final destination (where they will
be kept in safe custody, several days usually gratis). ‘Where, how-
ever, a frontier has to be crossed, the traveller should see his luggage
cleared at the custom-house in person (comp. p. xv). At most of the
railway-stations there is a consigne, or left-luggage office, where a.
charge of 10 c. per day is made for one or two packages, and 5 ¢. per
day for each additional article. Where there is no consigne, the
employés will generally take care of luggage for a trifling fee. The
railway-porters (facteurs) are not entitled to remuneration, but it is
usual to give a few sous for their services. — Interpreters are found
at most of the large stations.

There are no Refreshment Rooms (Buglets) execept at the prineipal
stations; and as the viands are generally indifferent, the charges high,
and the stoppages brief, the traveller is advised to provide himself be-

forehand with the necessary sustenance and consume it at his leisure in
the railway-carriage. Baskets containing a cold luncheon are sold at some

of the buffets for 3-4 fr.

Sleeping Carriages (Wagons -Lits) are provided on nearly all the main
lines of the Orléans, Midi, and Paris -Lyon - Méditerranée systems. Trains
de luze, with drawing-room, sleeping, and dining cars (Wagons-Restaurants)
run on certain days, during the season, to the Pyrenees via Bordeaux;
comp. the Indicateur. The fares are about 500/p higher than the ordinary
first class fares. Déj. is provided at about 5 fr., D. at 6 fr., wine extra

(half-a-bottle 1 fr.).
Pillows and Rugs may be hired (1 fr.) at the large stations.

The most trustworthy information as to the departure of trains
is contained in the Indicatewr des Chemins de Fer, published weekly,
and sold at all the stations (75 ¢.). There are also separate and less
bulky time-tables (‘ Livrets Chaix’) for the different lines: d’Orléans,
du Midi, ete. (40 ¢.).

Railway time is always that of Paris, shown on the clocks out-
side the stations, but the clocks inside, by which the trains start,
are five minutes slower. French railway time is 23 min. in advance
of Spanish time, and 56 min. behind Central European time which
is observed by the railways of Germany, Switzerland, and Italy.

teturn-tickets (Billets d’aller el retour) are issued by all the

railway - companies at a reduction of 20 - 40 per cent; but on the
Midi system this privilege is restricted to certain fixed routes, The
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length of time for which these tickets are available varies with the
distance and with the company by which they are issued; those is-
sued on Sat. and on the eves of great festivals are available for three
days. The recognised festivals are New Year’s Day, Easter Monday,
Ascension Day, Whit-Monday, the ‘Féte Nationale’ (July 14th), the
Assumption (Aug. 15th), All Saints’ Day (Nov. 1st), and Christ-
mas Day. — Special return-tickets, valid for longer periods, are
issued for the variuos watering-places and summer and winter
resorts ; see the Indicateur.

Excursion Trains (‘Trainsde Plaisir’) should asarulebeavoided,
as the cheapness of their fares is more than counterbalanced by the
discomforts of their accommodation.

Cireular Tour Tickets (‘Billetsde Voyages Circulaires’), available
for 15-45 days, are issued by most of the large companies in summer
at a reduction of 20-35 per cent on the ordinary fares, or even more
if a number of tickets be taken together. There are also a number
of Voyages Circulaires itinéraires fizes (routes arranged by the
railway company) and also Voyages Circulaires a itinéraives facul-
tatifs (routes arranged to suit individual travellers), tickets for
which must be applied for at least five days in advance. For details,
see the Indicateur des Chemins de Fer.

The following are some of the expressions with which the railway-
traveller in France should be familiar: Railway - station, la gare (also
Vembarcadére); booking-office, le guichet or bureau; first, second, or third
class ticket, un billet de premiere, de seconde, de troisieme classe; to take a
tieket, prendre un billet; to register the luggage, faire enregistrer les bagages ;
luggage-ticket, bulletin de bagage; waiting-room, salle d’attente; refreshment
room , le buffel (third -class refreshment-room, la buvette) ; platform, le
perron, le trottoir ; railway-carriage, le wagon ; compartment, le compartiment,
le coupé; smoking compartment, fumeurs; ladies’ compartment, dames seules ;
guard, conducteur; porter, jacteur; to enter the carriage, monter en wagon ;
take your seats! en voiture! alight, descendre; to change carriages, changer
de voiture; express train to Calais, le train express pour Calais, Vexpress
de Calais.

Diligences. The French Diligences, now becoming more and
more rare, are generally slow (5-7 M. per hour), uninviting, and
inconvenient. The best seats are the three in the Coupé, beside the
driver, which cost a little more than the others and are often engaged
several days beforehand. The Intérieur generally contains six places,
and in some cases is supplemented by the Rotonde, a less com-
fortable hinder-compartment, which, however, affords a good retro—
spective view of the country traversed. The Impériale, Banquette,
or roof affords the best view of all and may be recommended in good
weather. Tt is advisable to book places in advance if possible, as
they are numbered and assigned in the order of application. The
fares are fixed by tariff and amount on an average to about 11/, d.
per mile (coupé extra). — On the more frequented routes the dili-
gences are gradually being superseded by Brakes or large wag-
gonettes. — For short distances the place of the diligences is taken
by Omnibuses, equally comfortless vehicles, in which, however, there
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is no distinction of seats. Those which run in connection with the
railways have a fixed tariff, but in other cases bargaining is ad-
visable. — Hotel Omnibuses, see P- Xviii.

Hired Carriages ( Voitures de Lowage) may be obtained at all the
principal resorts of tourists at charges varying from 12 to 20 fr. per
day for a single-horse vehicle and from 25 to 30 fr. for a carriage-
and-pair, with a pourboire to the driver of 1-2 fr. The hirers almost
invariably demand more at first than they are willing to take, and a
distinct understarding should always be come to beforehand. A
day’s journey is reckoned at about 30 M., with a rest of 2-3 hrs. at
midday. A return-fee is frequently demanded when the carriage is
quitted at some distance from its home. Tourists may sometimes
be able to avail themselves of return - carriages, which charge not
less than 10-15 fr. per day. — Saddle Horses, Asses, and Mules
may also be hired.

VI. Hotels, Restaurants, and Cafés.

Hotels. Hotels of the highest class, fitted up with every modern
convenience, are found only in the larger towns and in the more
fashionable watering-places, where the influx of visitors is great. In
other places the inns generally retain their primitive provincial
characteristics, which might prove rather an attraction than other-
wise were it not for the shameful defectiveness of the sanitary ar-
rangements. The beds, however, are generally clean, and the cuisine
tolerable. It is therefore advisable to frequent none but the leading
hotels in places off the beaten track of tourists, and to avoid being
misled by the appellation of ‘Grand-Hoétel’, which is often applied
to the most ordinary inns. Soap is seldom or never provided.

The charges of provineial hotels are usnally somewhat lowerthan
at Paris, but at many of the largest modern establishments the tariff
is drawn up on quite a Parisian scale. Lights are not generally
charged for, and attendance is often included in the price of the
bedroom. Itis prudent, though not absolutely necessary, to enquire
the charges in advance. The following are the average charges :
room 41/,-3 fr.; breakfast or ‘premier déjeuner’, consisting of ‘café
au lait’, with bread and butter, 1-11/, fr.; luncheon or ‘deuxiéme
déjeuner’, taken about 11 a.m., 21/,-4 fr.; dinner, usually about 6 p.m.,
3-5 fr. Wine is generally included in the charge for dinner, except
in a few towns in the south-east. The second déjeuner will probably
be regarded as superfluous by most English and American travellers,
especially as it occupies a considerable time during the best part of
the day. A slightluncheon at a café, which may be had at any hour,
will be found farmore convenient and expeditious. Attendanceon the
table d’hdte is not compulsory, but the charge for rooms is raised if
meals are not taken in the house, and the visitor will scarcely obtain
80 good a dinner in a restaurant for the same price. In many hotels

Baedeker. South-Western France. 2nd Edit. b
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isitors are received ‘en pension’ at a charge of 6-7 fr. per day and
pwards. The usual fee for attendance at hotels is 1 fr. per day, if
o charge is made in the bill; if service is charged, 50 c. a day in
ddition is generally expected.

‘When the traveller remains for a week or more at a hotel, it is
dvisable to pay, or at least call for the account, every two or three
ays, in order that erroneous insertions may be at once detected.
"erbal reckonings are objectionable, except in some of the more
emote and primitive districts where bills are never written. A
raiter’s mental arithmetic is faulty, and the faults are seldom in
wvour of the traveller. A habit too often prevails of presenting the
ill at the last moment, when mistakes or wilful impositions cannot
asily be detected or rectified. Those who intend starting early in
he morning should therefore ask for their bills on the previous
vening.

English travellers often give considerable trouble by ordering
hings almost unknown in French usage; and if ignorance of the
anguage be added to want of conformity to the customs, misunder-
tandings and disputes are apt to ensue. The reader is therefore
ecommended to endeavour to adapt his requirements to the habits
f the country, and to acquire if possible such a moderate proficiency
n the language as to render himself intelligible to the servants.

Avrticles of Value should never be kept in the drawers or cup-
oards at hotels. The traveller’s own trunk is probably safer; but it
s better to entrust them to the landlord, from whom a receipt
hould be required, or to send them to a banker. Doors should be
ocked at night.

Travellers who are not fastidious as to their table-companions
vill often find an excellent cuisine, combined with moderate charges,
t the hotels frequented by commercial travellers (voyageurs de com~
nerce, cOMmMis-voyageurs).

Many hotels send Ommnibuses to meet the trains, for the use of
vhich 1/,-1 fr. is charged in the bill. Before taking their seats in
ne of these, travellers who are not encumbered with luggage should
scertain how far off the hotel is, as the possession of an omnibus
y no means necessarily implies long distance from the station. He
hould also find out whether the omnibus will start immediately,
vithout waiting for another train.

Restaurants. Except in the larger towns, there are few pro-
incial restaurants in France worthy of recommendation to tourists.
'his, however, is of little importance, as the traveller may always join
e table d’hdéte meals at hotels, even though not staying in the
ouse. He may also dine a la carte, though not so advantageously,
r he may obtain a dinner a priz five (3-6 fr.) on giving 1/4-1/, hr.’s
otice. He should always note the prices on the carte beforehand
 avoid overcharges. The refreshment-rooms at railway-stations
10uld be avoided if possible (comp. p. Xvi); there is often a restau-
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rant or a small hotel adjoining the station where a better and cheaper
meal may be obtained.

Cafés. The Café is as characteristic a feature of French pro-
vincial as of Parisian life and resembles its metropolitan prototype
in most respects. It is a favourite resort in the evening, when people
frequent the café to meet their friends , read the newspapers, write
letters, or play at cards or billiards. Ladies may visit the better-
class cafés without dread, at least during the day. The refreshments,
consisting of coffee, tea, beer, Cognae, liqueurs, cooling drinks of
various kinds (sorbet, orgeat, sirop de groseille or de framboise, etc.),
and ices, are generally good of their kind, and the prices are re-
asonable. 3

Furnished Houses. — Furnished Houses and Furnished Apart-
ments are numerous in all the chief watering-places and winter-
stations of Southern France, and may be found to suit every purse.
In all cases a personal inspection should be made before hiring ;
and a contract (on stamped paper) should invariably be drawn up,
specifying minutely the condition of the furniture, linen, wall-
papers, etc., as disputes are otherwise apt to arise. The assistance
of a consul, banker, or other responsible person should, if possible,
be obtained in drawing up the contract; and in the case of serious
difficulty at the termination of the lease, the aid of the public
authorities should be invoked. — As a general rule it is advisable
to proceed at first to a hotel, and thence direct the search for apart-
ments, though if the traveller'’s requirements are modest, he may
sometimes be able to suit himself at once with a lodging. Not in-
frequently the hotel-keepers are willing to make special arrange-
ments with travellers purposing to make a stay of some duration.

VII. Public Buildings and Collections.

The Cauronzs, especially the more important, are open the whole
day; but, as divine service is usually performed in the morning and
evening, the traveller will find the middle of the day or the after-
noon the most favourable time for visiting them. In the S. of France,
however, it is a not uncommon practice to close the churches from
midday to 2 p. m. The attendance of the sacristan or ‘Suisse’ is
seldom necessary; the usual gratuity is 1/, fr. Many of these build-
ings are under the special protection of Government as ‘ Monuments
Historiques’, and the Ministére des Beaux-Arts has caused most
of these to be carefully restored. It is perhaps not altogether super-
fluous to remind visitors that they should move about in churches
as noiselessly as possible to avoid disturbing those engaged in
private devotion, and that they should keep aloof from altars where
the clergy are officiating. Other interesting buildings, such as pa-
laces, chiteaux, and castles often belong to the municipalities and
are open to the public with little or no formality. Foreigners will

b*
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sldom find any difficulty in obtaining access to private houses of
istoric or artistic interest or to the parks attached to the mansions
f the noblesse.

Most of the larger provincial towns of France contain a MUSEE,
»nerally comprising a picture-gallery and collections of various
inds. These are generally open to the public on Sun., and often
1 Thurs. also, from 10 or 12 to 4; but strangers are readily admitted
1 other days also for a small pourboire. The accounts of the col-
ctions given in the Handbook generally follow the order in which
e rooms are numbered, but changes are of very frequent occur-
nce.

VIII. Walking Tours. Guides. Horses,

Walking Tours. Many fine points in the part of France of
hich the present Handbook treats are accessible to pedestrians
one, and even where riding or driving is practicable, walking is
ten more enjoyable. For a short tour a couple of flannel shirts, a
ir of worsted stockings, slippers, the articles of the toilette, a light
aterproof, and a stout umbrella will generally be found a sufficient
uipment. Strong and well-tried boots are essential to comfort.
eavy and complicated knapsacks should be avoided ; a light pouch
' game-bag is far less irksome, and its position may be shifted at
easure. A pocket-knife with a corkscrew, a leather drinking-cup,
spirit-flask, stout gloves, and a piece of green crape or coloured
ectacles to protect the eyes from the glare of the snow should not
 forgotten. Useful, though less indispensable, are an opera-glass
small telescope, sewing-materials, a supply of strong cord, sticking-
aster, a small compass, a pocket-lantern, a thermometer, and an
eroid barometer. The traveller's reserve of clothing should not
ceed the limits of a small portmanteau, which can be easily wield-
, and may be forwarded from town to town by post.

The mountaineer should have a well-tried Alpenstock or staff
od with a steel point; and for the more difficult ascents an Ice-
re and Rope are also necessary. In crossing a glacier the pre-
ution of using the rope should never be neglected. It should be
curely tied round the waist of each member of the party, leaving
length of about 10 ft. between each pair. Glaciers should be tra-
rsed as early in the morning as possible, before the sun softens
e erust of ice formed during the night over the crevasses. Moun-
ineers should provide themselves with fresh meat, bread, and wine
spirits for long excursions. The chalets usually afford nothing
t milk, cheese, and stale bread. Glacier-water should not be
unk except in small quantities, mixed with wine or cognac. Cold
1k is also safer when qualified with spirits. One of the best beve-
zes for quenching the thirst is cold tea.

The first golden rule for the walker is to start early. If strength
rmits, and a suitable resting-place is to be found, a walk of one
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or two hours may be accomplished before breakfast. It is desirable
to reach the end of the day’s walk about midday, but if that is not
practicable, rest should be taken during the hottest hours (12-3)
and the journey afterwards continued till 5 or 6 p. m., when a sub-
stantial meal (evening table d’hdte at the principal hotels) may be
partaken of. The traveller’s own feelings will best dictate the hour
for retiring to rest.

The traveller’s ambition often exceeds his powers of endurance,
and if his strength be once over-taxed, he will sometimes be in-
capacitated altogether for several days. At the outset, therefore, the
walker’s performances should be moderate, and even when he is in
good training, they should rarely exceed 10 hrs. a day. When a
mountain has to be breasted, the pedestrian should avoid ‘spurts’,
and pursue the ‘even tenor of his way’ at a steady and moderate
pace (‘chi va piano va sano; chi va sano va lontano’). As another
golden maxim for his guidance, the traveller should remember that
when fatigue begins, enjoyment ceases.

The traveller is cautioned against sleeping in chalets, unless
absolutely necessary. As a rule the night previous to a mountain-
expedition should be spent either at an inn or at one of the club-
huts which the French Alpine Clubs have recently erected for the
convenience of travellers. In the latter case enquiry should be
made beforehand as to the condition and accommodation of the hut,
and whether it is already occupied by a previous party or not. The
convenience of arriving betimes at a hotel, so as to secure good
rooms, etc., is well worth an extra effort on the march.

Over all the movements of the pedestrian, the weather holds des-
potic sway. The barometer and weather-wise natives should be con-
sulted when an opportunity offers. The blowing down of the wind
from the mountains into the valleys in the evening, the melting away
of the clouds, the fall of fresh snow on the mountains, and the ascent
of the cattle to the higher parts of their pasture, are all signs of fine
weather. On the other hand, it is a bad sign if the distant mountains
are dark blue in colour and very distinct in outline, ifthe wind blows
up the mountains, and if the dust rises in eddies on the roads. West
winds also usually bring rain.

It may be added that the particulars in the handbook as to the
mountain-expeditions make no claim to absolute and invariable ex-
actitude. The weather, the state of the snow , ete., no less than the
different inclinations and capacities of travellers, must be taken into
account as variable factors.

Guides. For all important mountain-expeditions guides are in-
dispensable, except where the contrary is expressly stated ; and, above
all, a glacier should never be crossed without an experienced guide,
Good guides are unfortunately rare; but they are to be found at all
the principal tourist-centres among the Pyrenees, such as Canterets,
Gavarnie , Eaux - Bonnes, and Bagnéres-de-Luchon. Most of the
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les in the Pyrenees, however, are hardly more than horse-hirers
~organizers of parties on horseback, and not only refuse to go
foot but insist also on tourists paying for their horses. The
al fee for a day of 8 hrs. is 6-8 fr., but on longer or more difficult
editions 10 fr. and upwards are charged. At some of the prin-
al centres there are guide-societies, with fixed regulations and
ffs. Though the usual charges for the various expeditions are in-
ated in the Handbook, the tourist will find it advisable to as-
tain personally the charges beforehand.

Horses and Mules. Riding is more usual and less expensive
the Pyrenees than in the Alps. The excellent little horses of the
-enees may be hired for 6-10 fr. per day. On the whole, unless
ascent be very long, it is less fatiguing to ascend on foot than
horseback; while a descent on horseback is almost invariably
omfortable and fatiguing, and cannot be recommended even to
se who are subject to dizziness.

IX. Post and Telegraph Offices.

Post Office. Letters (whether ‘poste restante’ or to the traveller’s
tel) should be addressed very distinctly, and the name of the
yartment should be added after that of the town. The offices are
1ally open from 7 a.m. in summer, and 8 a.m. in winter, to 9p.m.
ste Restante letters may be addressed to any of the provincial
ces. In applying for letters, the written or printed name, and in
case of registered letters, the passport of the addressee should
yays be presented. It is, however, preferable to desire letters to
addressed to the hotel or boarding-house where the visitor intends
iding. Letter-boxes (Boftes aux Lettres) are also to be found at
' railway - stations and at many public buildings, and stamps
mbres - poste) may be purchased in all tobacconists’ shops. An
ract from the postal tariff is given below; more extensive details
1 be found in the Almanach des Postes et Télégraphes.

Ordinary Leiters within France, including Corsica, Algeria, and Tunis,
.. per 15 grammes prepaid; for countries of the Postal Union 25¢. (The
ser franc and the bronze sou each weigh 5 grammes; 15 grammes, or
ee of these coins, are equal to 1/5 oz. English.) — Registered Leiters
ires recommandées) 25 ¢. extra.

Post Cards 10 c. each, with card for reply attached, 20e.

Post Office Orders (mandats de poste) are issued for most countries in
Postal Union at a charge of 25¢. for every 25 fr. or fraction of 25 fr.,

maximum sum for which an order is obtainable being 500 fr.; for
at Britain, 20 ¢. per 10 fr., maximum 252 fr.

Printed Papers (imprimés sous bande): 1 c. per 5 g{ammes up to the
ight of 20 gr.; 5 e. between 20 and 50 gr.; above gr. 5 ¢. for each
gr. or fraction of 50 gr.; to foreign countries 5 ¢. per 50 gr. The
pper must be easily removable, and must not cover more than one-
rd of the packet.

Parcels not exceeding 7 1bs. in weight may be forwarded by post at a
derate rate within France and to some of the other countries of the
tal Union. To England, parcels not exceeding 3 1bs. (1300 grammes)
. 60 ¢.; from 3 to 61/5 1bs., 2 fr. 10 e. These parcels should be handed
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in at the railway-station or at the offices of the parcel-companies, not at
the post-offices.

Telegrams. For the countries of Europe and for Algeria tele-
grams are charged for at the following rates per word: for France
5 c. (minimum charge 50 c.); Algeria and Tunis 10 c. (minimum
1 fr.); Luxembourg, Switzerland, and Belgium 121/, c.; Germany
15 c.; Netherlands 16 c.; Great Britain, Austria-Hungary, Italy,
Spain, and Portugal 20 c.; Denmark, Roumania, etc. 281/, ec.;
Sweden 32 c.; Norway and Russia in Europe 40 c. ; Greece 531/5-D7 ¢. ;
Turkey 53 c.

X. Weights and Measures.

The English equivalents of the French weights and measures
in use since 1799 are given approximately.

Millier = 1000 kilogrammes = 19 cwt. 2 qrs. 22 1bs. 6 oz.

Kilogramme, unit of weight, =— 21/; lbs. avoirdupois —
27/1o 1bs. troy.

Quintal = 10 myriagrammes — 100 kilogrammes — 220 1bs.

Hectogramme (!/;, kilogramme) — 10 décagrammes — 100 gr.
= 1000 décigrammes. (100 grammes = 31/, oz.; 15 gr.

= 1/, 0z.; 10 gr. = 1/ 0z.5 T4/, gr. = 1/, oz.) 2

Myriamétre =— 10,000 métres — 61/; Engl. miles.

Kilométre — 1000 métres = 5 furlongs — about 5/ Engl. mile.

Hectométre — 10 décamétres — 100 métres.

Métre, the unit of length, the ten-millionth part of the sphe-
rical distance from the equator to the pole — 3.0784 Paris
feet — 3.281 Engl. feet = 1 yd. 31/, in.

Décimétre (1/;p métre) = 10 centimétres = 100 millimétres.

Hectare (square hectométre) — 100 ares — 10,000 sq. métres
= 21/, acres. :
Are (square décamétre) — 100 sq. métres.

Hectolitre — 1/, cubic métre = 100 litres = 22 gallons.
Décalitre = 1/, cubic métre — 10 litres = 21/; gals.
Litre, unit of capacity, = 13/, pint; 8 litres = 7 quarts.

The following terms of the old system of measurements are still
sometimes used : —

Livre = 1/, kilogramme — 11/,, 1b. Pied = 1/; métre = 13 in.
Aune=11/; métre—1 yd. 11 in. Toise==19/;, métre—2 yds. 4 in.
Lieue =21/, miles. Arpent=11/; acre. Sétier—11/, hectolitre —
33 gals.

The thermometers commonly used in France are the Centi-
grade and Réaumur’s. The freezing point on both of these is
marked 0° the boiling - point of the former 100°, of the latter 80°,
while Fahrenheit’s boiling - point is 212° and his freezing - point
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2°. It may easily be remembered that 5° Centigrade — 4° Réaumur
— 9° Fahrenheit, to which last 32° must be added for tempera-
ures above freezing. For temperatures below freezing the number
f degrees obtained by converting those of Centigrade or Réaumur
nto those of Fahrenheit must be subtracted from 32. Thus 5° C
—4°R.—=9 4 32 —=41°F.; 20°C —=16°R. — 36 + 32 —68° F.
\gain, —5°0= —4°R. —32 —9'—93°F . ' ='9n°'g =
6 Ry —— 3% - SRt R Ofye ’

XI. Maps.

The best maps of France have hitherto been the Cartes de I’ Etat-
{ajor, or Ordnance Maps of the War Office. One series of these is
n a scale of 1:80,000, and includes 273 sheets, each 2!/, ft. long and
1/, ft. wide, while another, reduced from the above, is on a scale of
:320,000 and consists of 33 sheets (1 for 16 of the others) or 27
or France proper. These may be had either engraved on steel (2 fr.
er sheet) or lithographed (50 c.). The engraved maps are con-
iderably clearer in the mountainous regions, but the lithographs
re good enough for ordinary use. Since 1889 the larger scale map
as also been issued in quarter sheets (1 fr. engraved; 30 ec. litho-
raphed), intended ultimately to supersede the larger sheets.

The War Office has undertaken two new series of maps, printed
1 five colours; one on a scale of 1:50,000, and one on a scale of
:200,000. The larger of these has not been published except for
part of the N.E. provinces, but the smaller scale map is already
ell advanced. The price of each sheet is 11/, fr.

There is also another map in five colours (1 : 100,000), published
. 1881-1894 by the Ministry of the Interior (85 c. per sheet) ; and
t another (1:200,000) is now in course of publication by the
inistry of Public Works, and is sold in sheets at 40 . each.

The Spanish slope of the Pyrenees is not included in the maps
‘the Etat-Major, but is given in the map of the Ministry of In-
rior (1:100,000; see above) and in that of the Dépot des Fortifi-
tions (1:500,000).

All these maps may be obtained in the chief tourist-resorts, but it is
visable to procure them in advance. The following shops in Paris have
ways a full supply on hand: Lanée, Rue de la Paix 8; Andriveau-Goujon,
e du Bae 4; Dumaine (Baudoin), Rue et Passage Dauphine 30, ete.
~ The catalogue of the Service Géographique de 1’Armée (1 fr.) econ-
ns key-plans of its maps, including also those of Algeria, Tunis, and
rica generally (parts sold separately 10 c., Algeria and Tunis 25 e¢.).
rrere s catalogue (gratis) has key-plans of the 1g 80,000, 1:200,000, and

20,000 maps; and key-plans of the 1:100,000 map may be obtained
Hachette’s, Boulevard St. Germain 79; and of the Public Works map
1200,000) at the Librairie Delagrave, Rue Soufflot 15.
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1. From Paris to Bordeaux vid Orléans.

359 M. to the La Bastide station, 363 M. to St. Jean (see below).
RarLway in 83/, -141/3 hrs. (fares 64 fr. 85, 43 fr. 80, 28 fr. 60 . , or 65 fr. 60,
44 fr. 35, 28 fr. ?}5 ¢.). The trains start from the Gare d’Orléans at Paris.
— Besides the ordinary trains, there is a serviee of trains de luxe, in
81/, hrs., leaving the Gare du Nord in the evening; viz. the ‘Sud-Express’
on Mon., Wed., and Sat., for Bordeaux, Madrid, and Lisbon; and the

‘Pyrenees Express’ on Tues. and Thurs., for Bordeaux, Lourdes, and
Luchon. The fares by these trains are 11/, times the ordinary 1st cl. fare
(e. 9. to Bordeaux - Si. Jean, 98 fr. 35 ¢.) ; déj. 5, D. 7 fr. in the restaurant-
car. — A sleeping-car ticket by the ordinary night-express costs 24 fr. in
addition to the fare.

I. From Paris to Tours via Orléans.

145 M. RarLway in 31/5-93/4 hrs. (fares 26 fr. 30, 17 fr. 80, 11 fr. 65 ¢.).
— For farther details of this route and for alternative routes to Tours,
see Baedeker’s Northern France.

Paris, see Baedeker's Paris. — The train ascends the valley of
the Seine, on the left bank.

35 M. Etampes (Buffet), with 8570 inhab., contains the churches
of St. Basile (15-16th cent.), Notre Dame (12th cent.), St. Gilles
(12th and 16th cent.), and St. Martin (12-13th cent. ; with a leaning
tower); also the old Mansions of Diana of Poitiers and Anne de
Pisseleu (16th cent.), and the Tour Ginette (12th cent.), near the
tation. — The train then ascends a steep incline to the plateau of
La Beauce, one of the granaries of France.

74 M. Les Aubrais (Buffet). The day - expresses halt here for
éjeuner. Passengers by the express - trains change carriages here
or Orléans, as only the slow trains enter the station of that town.

75 M. Orléans (Buffet; Hot. St. Aignan ; &’ Orléans ; du Loiret),
ith 63,700 inhab., on the Loire. We reach the town by turning
 the right at the boulevards, then to the left by the Rue Bannier

ading to the Loire. To the left is the Gothic church (almost
1*
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entirely modern) of *S¢. Paterne, and in a square farther on is an
Equestrian Statue of Joan of Arc, the Maid of Orléans. The Rue
Jeanne d’Arc, a little farther on, leads to the left to the Gothic ca-
thedral of *Ste. Croixz, near which is the Hoétel de Ville (16th cent.).
To the S. of the Rue Jeanne d’Arc, in a small square with a Statue
of the Republic, is the Musée (paintings, sculptures, etc.), and
more in the direction of the Rue Royale is the Musée Historique, in
a fine 16th cent. mansion. The new Musée Jeanne d’Arc is in the
Rue du Tabour, to the W. of the Rue Royale. The walk should be

continued as far as the Loire.
From Orléans to Clermont-Ferrand, see R. 35; to Nevers, see R. 32.

The Bordeaux railway now follows the course of the Loire (to
the left).

91 M. Beaugency, with 4300 inhab., has a Renaissance Hétel de
Ville, a medizval Keep, and a Chdteaw of the 15th cent. (now a
poor-house). The Tour de I’Horloge is one of the old town-gates.
The church of Notre Dame dates from the 44th century.

110 M. Blois (Buffet; Hot. de Blois; de France; du Chdateaw),
with 23,450 inhab., possesses a celebrated *Chdteau, the finest part
of which was built by Francis I. The Church of St. Nicholas (12~
13th cent.), the Cathedral, and the Statue of Denis Papin are also
interesting. — The *Chdteaw of Chambord lies 11 M. to the E.

120 M. Onszain, beyond which, on the left, appears the Chdtea
of Chaumont.

133 M. Amboise (4480 inhab.). The historic ¥*Chdtean is seen
on the left. We cross the Loire three stations farther on.

144 M. St. Pierre- des- Corps (Buffet). Passengers to Tours by
the Bordeaux expresses change carriages here; the ordinary trains
run into the station of Tours.

145 M. Tours (Buffet; Gr. Hot. de U'Univers, de Bordeaux,
near the station; Faisan, Boule d’Or, Négociants, in the Rue Natio-
nale), with 60,335 inhab., is situated between the Loire and the Cher.
Turning to the right on quitting the station, and then to the left at
the boulevards, we reach the handsome Rue Nationale, which leads
to the Loire. The *Cathedral , a fine Gothic edifice of the 12-16th
cent., lies some distance to the right. Near the end of the Rue Na-
tionale is the church of St. Julien (13th cent.), and near the bridge
are statues of Descartes and Rabelais. To the right is the Hotel
de Ville, containing the Musée. Not far from the principal bridge,
downstream, is Notre- Dame de la Riche, a church of the 12th and
16th cent.; and farther to the S.E. are the T'owers of the old churech

of St. Martin and the new Basilica of that name.
From Tours to Les Sables-d’Olonne, see R. 2; to Vierzon, p. 35.

II. From Tours to Poitiers.
61 M. RarLwAy in 18/4-31/4 hrs. (fares 11 fr. 40, 7 fr. 65 e., 5 fr.).
Tours, see above and Baedeker’s Northern France. — Trains in
connection with the express proeceed to the (2 M.) station of St.
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Pierre-des-Corps on the line from Paris (see p-4). Slow trains make
use of a loop-line.

South of the town the lines to Nantes and Les Sables-d’Olonne
(R. 2) diverge on the right. Then, after crossing the Cher, we pass
over a viaduet from which there is a fine view and cross the line
to Chateauroux (p.35). To the left is the fine Chdteau de Candé
(16th cent.). The valley of the Indre is next crossed by a viaduct,
1/ M. long and 69 ft. high, which affords another fine view. —
7M. Monts. Beyond (12!/, M.) Villeperdue is another viaduct,
102 ft. high, over the Manse; on the right, the Chdteau de Brouw.
— 20 M. Ste. Maure, a little town 2 M. to the left. — 27 M. Porit-
de-Piles. Branch-line to Chinon, see p. 16.

From PorT-pE-PiLES T0o LE BLaXC, M1/, M., railway in 21/4 hrs. (fares
7fr.50, 5fr. 5, 3 fr. 30¢c.). The line first ascends the valley of the
Creuse, then that of the Claise. — 6 M. La Haye-Descartes, the birthplace
of Descartes (1596-1650), the celebrated philosopher, to whom a statue has
been erected here. — 13 M. Le Grand-Pressigny, with a keep of the 12th
and a castle of the 17th century. About 11/ M. to the W.. at La Dous-
setizre, numerous flint eelts have been found. — 22 M. Preuilly has a very
fine Romanesque abbey - church. — Our line then quits the banks of the
Claise, and returning to the valley of the Creuse, is joined at (311/5 M.)
Tournon-iSt. Martin by the branch from Chateéllerault (see below). — Beyond
(36 M.) Fontgombault, which also has a very remarkable old abbey - ehurch,
we rejoin the Poitiers line. — 411/, M. Ze Blanc (p. 10).

We cross the Creuse and ascend the valley of the Vienne.

401/, M. Chatellerault (Hot. de I' Espérance; del’ Univers), atown
on the Vienne with 22,522 inhab., famous for its cutlery and for
its Arms Factory (no admission). The Boul. Sadi Carnot, to the left
from the station, and then the Rue de Berry, to the right, bring us
to the Boulevard Blossac, at the other end of which is the Square
Gambetta, with the tall Monument of the Revolution. The Rue des
Mignons (before the Square), and its continuation, lead to the church
of St. Jacques, of the 13th cent., with a rich modern west front, —
Line to Loudun, see p. 17.

A branch-line runs hence to (281/, M.) Tournon-St. Martin (see above),
via La Roche-Posay, a little town on the Creuse, with a 12th cent. keep.
In the neighbourhood is a mineral spring, with a bath-establishment.

We next cross the Vienne and ascend the valley of the Clain.
— 46 M. Les Barres. In the neighbourhood is the site of Vieua-
Puoitiers, and farther on, also on the right bank, is Moussais-la-
Bataille, the probable scene of the famous battle of Poitiers (see
p- 6). — Beyond (49 M.) La Tricherie, on the left, is the castle
of Baudiment, a curious edifice of the 15th cent. (restored). —
01!/, M. Dissais=sur-Vienne, with a fine castle of the 16th and
[8th centuries. — On the right is the line to Loudun (see p-17).

61 M. Poitiers (Buffet). — Hotels. Horer, pu PALAts (PL a; B,3), a
arge house near the Palais de Justice, R. 21/, D. 4 fr.; pE Fraxce (Pl. b;
3,4), R.2, D. 3 fr.; pe L’EvRoPE (Pl.c; B, 4); pEs TROIS- PILIBRS (Pl.d;
,4); the last three in the Rue des Halles, near the Place d’Armes. —
afés, in the Rue des Halles and in the Place d’Armes. — Cabs, Per drive
/4, per hr. 11/, fr.; at night 50 ¢. extra.

Poitiers, with a pop. of 37,500, the ancient capital of Poitou
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\d now the chief town of the department of the Vienne, is the seat
2 bishopric and possesses also a university, with a school of law,
unded in 1431. It is situated on a hill at the confluence of the
lain and the Boivre, and most of the streets are narrow, tortuous,
eep, and badly built. The limited trade of the town and the fact
\at it is largely occupied by religious foundations combine to
\ake it rather a dull place, but it has some objects of interest
hich every tourist should endeavour to see.

Poitiers first appears as a Celtic town, the capital of the Pictones or
ictavi, whence its modern name. To the Romans it was known as ZLi-
onum. About 353 St. Hilary (not to be confounded with his namesake
f Arles) became its first bishop. Poitou was included in the Visigothie
ingdom of Aquitaine, founded in 419, but after the defeat of Alariec II.
y Clovis at Vouillé, in 507, it was added to the Frankish dominions
nd constituted a countship whose holders afterwards made themselves
ukes of Aquitaine. One of these dukes is said to have invited the
aracens into this part of the country, but be this as it may, it was
rithin 20 miles N.W. of Poitiers that Charles Martel in 732 finally broke
he power of the Moorish inyvaders. By the marriage of Eleanor, sole
leiress of Poitou and Aquitaine, to Louis VII. of France these import-
nt provinees became part of the royal dominions. On her divorce
nd re-marriage to Henry Plantagenet in 1152 they passed, unhappily for
‘rance, into the power of England. The most important event in the
wo centuries of strife which succeeded is the Battle of Poitiers (or
faupertuis) in 1356, when John the Good was defeated by Edward the
llack Prince and lost more than 11,000 men. By the treaty of Brétigny
1360) Aquitaine, and with it Poitou and other counties, passed in full
overeignty to Edward IIL, but the country between the Loire and the
yaronne was finally won baek in 1372 by the Constable Bertrand du Gues-
lin. The Protestants under Coligny unsuccessfully besieged Poitiers for
even weeks in 1569. Since then its history has been uneventful.

Quitting the station (PL A, 4), which is situated in the lower
yart of the town , carriages reach the centre by a long circuit to the
oft vid the Boulevard Solferino. Pedestrians go direct by the Rue
le 1a Visitation, the first street ascending to the right from the
youlevard. Turning again to the right at the first cross street, they
each the square in front of the Préfecture (P1.A,B,4), a large
eatureless building. Hence the Rue Victor-Hugo leads to the Place
1 Armes (P1.B,3,4), a large square forming the centre of the town.
On the right side of the Rue Vietor Hugo is the Collége de la Grand’
Maison (P1.B,4), with an elegant chapel; on the left, No. 9, is the
rew Musée des Augustins, of the Société des Antiquaires (p. ).

The Museum contains tapestry, furniture, enamels, poreelain, ete.,
sesides the former Cheviéres collection of 175 paintings, including a land-
scape by Hobbema; a Holy Family by Giulio Romano; St. John the Baptist
hy Jan van Leyden; Witch-scene by Teniers; Battle-scenes by Bourguignon.

In the Place d’Armes is the Hbtel de Ville (PL B, C,3), a fine
huilding, completed in 1875, in the style of the French Renais-
cance. It contains the Musée des Beaux-Arts and the Musée d’ His-
toire Naturelle, the former open on Sun., the latter on Thurs. from
noon to 4 p. m. (except when it rains), but both accessible to

strangers on other days, at the same hours.
The Mustk pEs BEAUX-ARTs contains an important collection of paintings
by French artists, also a fine portrait by Tintoretto (No.114) and works
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by Titian (118), A. del Sarto (117), Van Dyck (113, ete.), Masaccio (109), Guido
Reni (104), ete. ; besides seulptures, antiquities, furniture, enamels, coins,
ete. — The STAIRCASE is adorned with caryatides by Barrias and frescoes
by P. de Chavannes. — In the SALLE DEs FBres the stained glass and the
ceiling-painting (Dugueselin freeing Poitiers from the English, by Brunet)
should be noticed. — The SALLE DES MARRIAGES is decorated by ZLéon

Perrault.
The SoctETE DES ANTIQUAIRES DE L’OUEST has also in the neigh-

bouring Rue des Grandes-Ecoles (Pl. B,3) an important museum of
Roman and other antiquities.

On the right, behind the Hotel de Ville, is the pretty Hotel Bauce
or Gaillard, in the Renaissance style. In the vicinity is the Lycée
(Pl. €, 3-4), with a painting by Finsonius and 17th cent. wood-
carvings. From the Hotel Bauce we follow the street on the left to
the Rue d’Orléans, the second on the right, by which we descend.

The Temple St. Jean (P1.D,3), in the next street, is a curious
structure, now identified as a baptistery of the 7th century, partly
built of Gallo-Roman materials. In plan it is an oblong of about
42 ft. by 26 ft.; the floor is for the most part below the present level
of the street. On the longer sides are additions made in the 12th
cent., and at either end are apses. The interior (apply to the concierge
of the bishops’ palace to the left) contains a font in the centre and
sarcophagi etc. of the 6-9th cent., and some 12th cent. frescoes.

The Cathedral (St¢. Peter’s; PI. C,D,?2) was begun in 1162 by
Henry IL. of England, husband of Eleanor of Aquitaine or Guienne
(p. 6), but the west fagade only was completed and the church con-
secrated in 1379. Some parts are Romanesque, but the Plantagenet-
Gothic style predominates. The fagade is comparatively poor; it is
too wide and too low and the unfinished towers which flank it in-
crease its heaviness. The interior is imposing on account of the
boldness of its proportions and the width of its aisles and bays.
To make it appear longer than it actually is the architect has in-
creased the effect of the perspective by lessening the width of the

nave and aisles and by a corresponding lowering of the arches
towards the choir. Some of the stained glass dates from the 12-
13th cent., while the fine choir-stalls are assigned to the latter half
of the 13th. Behind the choir, on the left, is the modern tomb
of Monsgr. Bouillé.

From the rear of the cathedral we descend to the right to Ste.
Radegonde (P1.D,?2), a church founded about 560 by the queen of
that name, wife of Clotaire I., who retired hither to her convent of
Ste. Croix. It was, however, rebuilt in the 11-13th cent. in the same
style as the cathedral, except the main entrance, which belongs to
the 15th or 16th century. A fine Gothic steeple rises from the
fagade. Specially noteworthy within the church are a Crypt con-
taining the sarcophagus of St. Radegonde (an object of pilgrimage),
and a marble statue of the saint (a portrait of Ann of Austria), attri-.
buted to Girardon. On the left of the nave is a kind of niche called
the chapel of the Pas-de-Dieu, with two poor statues, between which,
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on the pavement, is a foot-print made, according to the legend, by
our Lord when he appeared to St. Radegonde. Fine stained glass.
This church is near the Clain, which is spanned by the Pont

Neuf, to the right, and by the old Pont Joubert, to the left.

On the opposite bank are the colossal gilded statue of Notre Dame des
Dunes (P1. D,2) and a barrack. A little lower down a Gallo-Roman Ne-
cropolis has been discovered, and a Champ des Martyrs, with the remains
of a hypogeum.

In the suburb of St. Saturnin, 1/4 M. from the Pont Neuf, via the third
street on the left, is a dolmen known as the Pierre-Levée.

We re-ascend into the town by the street which begins at the
Pont Joubert and is continued by one which leads us straight to —

#*Notre-Dame-la-Grande (P1.B,?2), a very interesting monument
of Romanesque architecture dating from the end of the 11th cent.,
with additions of the 15th and 16th. This church is noted for its
¥ West Fagade, which, like that of Angouléme cathedral (p. 11), has
all the elaboration of detail which we associate with the repoussé
work of the goldsmith. It is composed of three tiers of arches, in
the lowest of which are inserted a round-headed door and two ob-
tusely pointed blind ones subdivided into two semicircular arcades.
The uppermost tiers, broken by a large window, contain mutilated
statues of St. Hilary, St. Martin, and the Apostles, and in the gable-
end is one of Christ in the act of blessing, surrounded by the em-
blems of the Evangelists. There are also bas-reliefs with subjects
drawn chiefly from the life of the Virgin. This facade is flanked by
turrets with conical tops and fish-scale ornamentation. The steeple
of the church, with a similar top, is at the entrance to the choir.

The INTERIOR, disfigured by modern paintings of coarse tone, is divided
into nave and aisles, the former having a barrel vault, the latter being
groined. The side-chapels were added in the 15th and 16th eenturies.
There is no transept, but the aisles are prolonged round the choir. The
latter contains a 13th cent. fresco on its vault and a fine modern high-

altar in the Romanesque style. In a chapel on the right is a “Holy
Sepulehre’ of the 16th century.

The Parais pes Facurres (Pl B, 2), near Notre-Dame, was
altered and enlarged in 1892-94.

It contains the University Library and also the Munmicipal Library, of
nearly 400,000 vols. and 389 MSS., ineluding a Life of St. Radegunda by
St. Fortunatus (9th cent.) and other early specimens.

The Palais de Justice (P1.B,3) a little beyond Notre-Dame, on
the left, includes, behind some late additions, remains of the old
castle of the counts of Poitou (14th cent.). The *Salle des Pas-
Perdus, the old guard-chamber, 160 by 56 ft., recalls that of the
Palais de Justice at Rouen. At one end is a carved triple chimney-
piece, surmounted by a gallery and five windows, all in the Gothic
style of the 15th cent., between two staircase-turrets.

The Provosrt’s Courr (Prévite; Pl. A,B,2), a building of the
15-16th cent., now a school, has a very remarkable fagade, with
four turrets and some fine pediments over its windows.

At the N. end of the town stands the church of MONTIERNEUF
(Moutier - Neuf ; P1. A, 1), an ancient church of the Benedictines,
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of the {1th cent., and of exceptional width for that period. It has
a little cupola above the crossing, surmounted by two bell turrets
which are connected by three arches. :

Between the Palais de Justice and the Place d’Armes is St. Por-
chaire (P1.B,3), a church of the 16th cent., with a Romanesque
tower, dating from an older building. — To the 8. is St. Hilary
(P1.B,5), a monastic church founded, it is said, before the 6th cent.,
rebuilt in the 11th and 12th, and partly in the present century. It
consists of a nave and six aisles and has 6 cupolas, but no steeple,

The Parc pE Brossac (PL B, C,5,6), at the S. end of the town,
a promenade laid out in the 18th cent., commands a fine view of the
Clain valley, on which side it is bordered by the remains of the old
14th century Ramparts, which extend some way westward between
the town and the railway. At the entrance from the Rue des Capu-
cins are two marble groups by Etex, representing the Joys and
Sorrows of Motherhood. A military baud plays in the park on Sunday

and Thursday.

From Poitiers to Loudun (Angers) see p. 17; to La Rochelle and
Rochefort, R. 3.

Braxcu LiNe from Poitiers to (351/3 M.) Parthenay, identical -with
the Loudun line as far as Neuville-de-Poitou (p. 17).

FroM Portiers To LimoGEs vii Bellac, B?M., railway in 41/5-8 hrs.
(fares 15 fr. 80, 10 fr. 65, 6 fr. 90 ¢.). — The Angouléme line is followed
as far as (31/, M.) St. Benoit (see below), beyond which a short tunnel is
passed. — T1/y, M. Mignalouz - Nouaillé (branch - line to St. Savin and Le
Blane, see below). 101/5 M. Niewil-? Espoir ; 181/5 M. Fleuré. Beyond (181/5 M)
L’ Hommaize the line erosses the Vienne. — 251/, M. Lussac-les-Chateaux,
which has only one old castle, through the ruins of whieh the railway
passes. Branch to St. Saviol, see p. 10.

331/3 M. Montmorillon (Buffet; Hot. de France), a small town (pop. 5268)
on an eminence, 1/, M. to the left, at the foot of which flows the Gartempe.
In its lower part is the Gothic church of St. Martial. Notre-Dame, on the
left bank, is partly Romanesque, partly Gothic. Near it is a modern tower,
surmounted by a Statue of the Virgin. The Pelit Séminaire, an ancient convent
of the Augustines, eomprises a eurious building of the 11-12th cent., called
the Octagon , consisting of two chapels, one above the other. A branch-
line runs hence to (25 M.) Le Blanc (p. 10), via (11 M.) Za Trimouille or
La Trémouille.

511/3 M. Le Dorat (Hot. Bordeauz), a small town with an interesting
Romanesque church and remains of fortifications of the 15th century.
— An alternative line to Limoges (Gare d’Orléans) runs hence via 121/, M)
Chdteauponsac (Hot. de la Promenade), a small town (3970 inhab.) on the
Gartempe, and (261/9 M.) St. Sulpice-Lauriere (p- 39).

591/, M. Bellac (Hot. de la Promenade), a town with 4900 inhab. , on
the Vincou. Beyond (60 M.) Chapterie the Monts de Blond (1800 ft.) appear
on the right. 64 M. Blond-Berneuil, followed by several other small sta-
tions. After passing (81 M.) Couzeiz-Chaptelat, the train rapidly desecends,
fraverses a tunnel 750 yds. long, and joins the line from Paris (p. 39). —
87 M. Limoges (Gare de Montjovis, p. 39).

FroM POITIERS To CHATEAUROUX Vid Argenton, 8) M., railway in 51/,-
91/5 hrs. (fares 16 fr. 25, 11 fr. 5, 7fr. 15¢.). — Diverging from the last-
described route at (T/3M.) Mignalouz- Nouaillé, we proceed N.E. over a dull
plain. — 20 M. Chauvigny (ZLion d’Or), a small town of 2129 inhab., prettily

situated on the Vienne, with two fine churches of the 12th cent., and the
ruins of four castles, richly repays a visit.
313/4 M. St. Savin (Hét. de France), a small town of 1605 inhab., on the
Gartempe, with an interesting *Abbey-Church of the 11th cent., a eruciform
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Iding with three aisles, a transept, and ambulatory. Over the porch
. fine steeple with a Gothie spire, and over the transept a square
er. The height of the interior is exceptional for a Romanesque chureh.
, columns are 59 ft. and the main vaulting 69 ft. high, although the
1 width of the building is only 551/5 ft. and its length 160 ft. Among
interesting features of this chureh are some Wall-Paintings of the
h century. One series eonsists of subjects from Genesis, Exodus, and
Apocalypse; the others represent the patron saints of the abbey and
the neighbouring distriet.

45 M. Le Blanc (Buffet; H6t. de la Nouvelle Py de), the Obli

the Romans, with 7389 inhab., stands on the Creuse. The chief object
nterest is the ehureh of St. Génitour of the 12th, 13th, and 15th centuries.
Line to Port-de-Piles, see p. H; to Montmorillon, see p. 9. Another
> is under construction to (31 M.) Buzancais (p. 3{) vid (161/5 M.) Me-
-¢s-en-Brenne, which has a fine 14th cent. church, with a later ehapel
-16th cent.) adorned with good stained glass.

The line to Argenton is a continuation of that from Port de Piles,
1 follows the valley of the Creuse. — 55 M. Ciron. — Beyond (64 M.)
Gaultier we join the line from Limoges (R.5). — 691/ M. Argenton
1 thence to (89 M.) Chdteauroux, see pp. 38-35.

III. From Poitiers to Angouléme.

70 M. RAILWAY in 11/5-41/4 hrs. (fares 12 fr. 75, 8 fr. 55, 5 fr. 55 ¢.).

The line passes through a short tunnel into the picturesque
lley of the Clain, and crosses that river several times. — 64 M.
om Tours) S¢. Benoit, the junction for St. Sulpice-Lauriére and
moges (p. 9), and also for La Rochelle and Rochefort (R. 3).
66 M. Ligug€é, with an old Benedictine abbey founded by St.
wrtin. Farther on, on the right, is the castle of Bernay, of the
th century. — 191/, M. Itewil; 73 M. Vivonne; 79 M. Anche-
ulon; 82 M. Couhé-Vérac, situated 31/, M. to the W. (omnibus) ;
1/, M. Epanvilliers. — 93 M. St. Saviol.

A branch-line runs hence via (41/9 M.) Civray, a small town on the
arente, with a Romanesque churech with an interesting west front,
' M.) dharroux, with the remains of an abbey, and (14 M.) Persac, to
| M.) Lussac-les-Chdteaux (p. 9).

102 M. Ruffec (Buffet), with 3527 inhab., also has a Roman-
jue church with a remarkable fagade. The town is celebrated for
ffled pies. Line to Niort (p. 23).

A short tunnel is passed through. 108 M. Moussac, beyond
ich the Charente is crossed. 11 M. Luaé; 119 M. St. Amand-
-Boixe; the town, 13/, M. to the S.-W. (omn.), has a curious
arch, a mixture of Romanesque and Gothic. 123 M. Vars.

As we approach Angouléme, a fine view of the town and its prin-
al buildings is presented, the most prominent being (from left to
ht) the steeple of St. Martial , the tower of the Hotel de Ville,
d the cathedral with its square tower.

131 M. Angouléme. — Hotels, *HoTEL DU PALAIs (Pl a3 D, 2,3), Place
Mirier, in the centre of the town; pE FRaANcE (PL.b; D, 2, 3), Place des
lles Centrales; GrANDp HoreL, Avenue Gambetta 54. — Cafés in the
ce du Mirier and the Place des Halles Centrales. — Buffet.

Stations. Gare d’Orléans, for Bordeaux, Gare de UEtat, for Limoges
| Saintes (pp.12,13), facing each other in the Avenue Gambetta (PL. F, 1) ;
:Z ‘clli, Il{g:;ltac, for the unimportant line to (23 M.) Rouillac, next the
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Angouléme , with 36,690 inhab., the ancient capital of the
Angoumois, is now the chief town of the department of the Cha-
rente, and an episcopal see. Like Poitiers, it occupies an emi-
nence between two rivers, the Charente and the Anguienne, but it
is a little better built and is encircled by promenades which afford
very fine views. The cathedral and other public buildings deserve
 visit, and may be seen in a few hours. The town is noted for its
paper-mills.

The town existed in the time of the Romans, who named it Encolisma.
[t was included in the kingdom of Aquitaine, but at a later period became
he capital of a county which was handed over to the English by the
reaty of Brétigny in 1360. It revolted in 1373, and as a reward for its
idelity to the erown, it was constituted a duehy and made the appanage
f one of the royal prineces. The town was several times taken and
sacked in the Religious Wars, notably by Coligny.

From the stations we ascend to the right by the Avenue Gam-
betta. On the left is the seminary and church of St. Martial (P1. E, 3),
a fine modern building in the Romanesque style, with a steeple over
the fagade, by Paul Abadie (d. 1884). The Rampe d’Aguesseau, a
street diverging to the right, leads to the Halles Centrales (P1.D, 2),
on the site of the old prisons.

A new street beginning at the Halles leads to the *Hdtel de Ville
PI.D, 3), a very remarkable structure, in great part modern (1858-
36) , which is also the work of Abadie. It is in the style of the
(3th cent. and occupies the site of the castle of the Counts of An-
ouléme, of which there remain two towers on the left, one of the
4th, the other of the 15th century. The small Picture Gallery and
\rehaeological Musewm in the interior is open free on Sun., Thurs.,
nd holidays from 12-4; to strangers also at other times. — In a
mall garden on the left side are a marble Statue of Margaret of
Valois, or Angouléme, sister of Francis I. and queen of Navarre (d.
549), by Badiou de la Tronchére (1871) and a War Monument for
1870-71, by R. Verlet.

In the Place du Marché-Neuf (P1. D, 3), to the right of the Hétel
le Ville, is a bronze statue, by R. Verlet, of Dr. Jean Bouillaud
1796-1867). The Theatre (P1. D, 3) is in the Place de la Commune, a
quare abutting on the Ramparts, which command a comprehensive
riew of the valley of the Anguienne. 2

The *Cathedral or St. Perer (P1.C, 3), a short distance to thS
ight, is one of the most interesting Romanesque-Byzantine churchet
n France, recalling Notre-Dame at Poitiers (p. 8) and St. Front a®
érigueux (p. 43). It belongs, as a whole, to the 12th cent., but was
horoughly restored and even partly rebuilt between 1866 and 1875
y Abadie. It comprises a nave without aisles, surmounted by three
upolas; a transept with a cupola forming a lantern in the centre;

north transept tower (see below); the remains of a south transept
wer; and an apse with four chapels. — The *Fagade, which recalls
1 a large scale that of Notre-Dame at Poitiers, is also the most
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rious part of this church. Exclusive of the gable, it is composed
four tiers of arcades, divided from top to bottom by colummuns
to five bays. The lowest tier has five arches, of which the largest
d central one contains the sole door in the fagade. Above this
or is a large window and above that, between symbols of the Evan—
lists, is a Christ in Judgment, to which event most of the many
ulptures of the fagade refer. Below the Christ, to the right and
ft, are angels sounding the last trump, the dead rising from their
aves (the blessed distinguished by the méimbus and the reprobate
companied by demons), the Doctors of the Church, the Apostles,
mbolic representations of Faith (St. George), Hope, and Charity
t. Martin), ete., and numerous beautiful ornamentations.

The splendid *Tower at the end of the N. transept, 193 ft. in
ight, is the next striking feature of this church. It was neces-—
rily pulled down at the time of the restoration, but rebuilt exactly
 its former shape and, as far as possible, with the same materials.

has six square stages, diminishing in size, and four of them pre—

nt open bays. The corresponding S. tower, of which only the base
mains, was destroyed by the Calvinists in 1568; it had a Gothic
yire. — In the Interior the cupolas of the nave (which has slightly
yinted arches) and the lantern of the transept, pierced by twelve
indows, merit special notice. -

The pile of buildings to the left of the cathedral is the Bishop’s
alace, of the same age as the church and also restored by Abadie.

Continuing to follow the ramparts beyond the cathedral, we ar-
ve at the Jardin Vert (P1.B, 2), a fine promenade on the side of
e hill. 'To appreciate the view, the best plan is to make for the
p by the Promenade de Beauliew (P1.B, 2), which skirts the spa—
ous buildings of the Lyeée and commands the valley of the Charente.
. the valley, on the right bank, lies the suburb of St. Cybard.
he return may be made, by the edge of the hill, as far as the Place
s Halles Centrales (p. 11).

From ANcourEME To SAINTES (Rochefort, La Rochelle), 481/ M., rail-
vy in 21/4-23/4 hrs. (faves 7 fr. 95, 5 fr. 90, 3 fr. 85 ¢.). — From the Gare de
itat (p. 10) we pass through a tunnel under the town and eross the Bor-
aux line. — 3 M. St. Michel-sur-Charente, with a eurious octagonal church.
he line then follows the valley of the Charente.

141/4 M. Chateauneuf-sur-Charente (Soleil d’07), a thriving little town,
ce a stronghold in the hands of the English, and only recovered from
em after a siege of four years (1376-80). A branch-line runs hence to
) M.) Barbezieux (Boule d’Or; Hot. de France), a town of 4100 inhab., on the
ype of a hill, with the remains of a castle of the 15th cent., a church

the same period, and another of the 12th eentury.

18 M. St. Amant-de-Graves; 201/> M. St. Méme. — 23 M. Jarnac (Hét. de
ance), a small town chiefly known for the vietory of the Catholics under
e Duke of Anjou, afterwards Henri III., over the Protestant army of the
ince of Conde in 1569. The country to the left of our route and to the

of the Charente, as far as beyond Cognac, is the Petite Champagne.
rther south is the Grande Champagne. They are so called because they
s of the same geological formation as Champagne and, like it, produced
cellent white wines of whieh highly-reputed brandies were made, those
the second being ecalled ‘Fine Champagne’. — 271/ M. Gensac-la-Pallue.
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313/4 M. Cognac (Hot. de Londres; @ Orléans; de France; Café du Chalet),
an old town of 17,400 inhab., the eentre of the brandy trade of the Charente,
the products of which are sent to all parts of the world. Its chief objeet
of interest is the church of St. Léger, mainly of the 1ith, 14th, and 15th
centuries. The fagade has fine florid Romanesque details. Cognae con-
tains an Equestrian Statue of Francis 1., a modern bronze by Etex. The
large brandy distilleries and the vast store-houses should be seen. One
of the latter is on the site of the castle in which Franeis 1. was born (1494).

36 M. Le Pérat; 381/ M. Brives- Chérac; 42 M. Beillant. — 481/, M.
Saintes (p. 30).

FroM ANGOULEME TO Riefrac, 42 M., railway in 2-21/4 hrs. (fares 7 fr.
60, 5 fr. 15, 3 fr. 35 ¢.). We start from the Gare de I'Etat (p. 10). —33/4 M
Ruelle, with a large eannon-foundry established in 1750. — 61/4 M. Magnac-
Touvre. The ecopious springs of Touvre are at the foot of a hill which
is crowned by a ruined ecastle. — 21 M. ZLa Roche - Beaucourt; 251/4 M.
Mareuil-Gouts. — Beyond (381/3 M.) Celles we pass the Tour de la Rigale,
said to be the ‘cella’ of a Roman temple. We cross the Dronne, — 42 M.
Ribérac (Hét. de France; du Périgord), a prettily situated commereial town
with 3700 inhabitants. — The line goes on to Mussidan (p. 45), Bergerac
(p. 14), Marmande (p. 72), ete. — From Ribérae to Périgueuz, see p. 45.

From AxGouLBME TO Lixoces, 73 M., railway in 31/4-33/4 hrs. (fares
13 fr. 30, 8 fr. 90, 5 fr. 80 c.). — To (61)4 M.) Magnac-Touvre, see above.
— From (10 M.) ZLe Quéroy-Pranzac a branch-line runs to (39 M.) Thiviers
(p. 42), via (8 M.) Marthon, where are the remarkable ruins of a castle of
the 12th eent., (211/5 M.) the little town of Nontron (Hot. Michaudel), and
(261/5 M.) St. Pardouz-la-Riviére, on the Dronne, whence a tramway runs
to Périgueux.

171/, M. La Rochefoucauld (Hot. du Commerce), a little town (2850 inhab.)
on the Zardoire, with the remarkable *Chdteau of the family of that name,
founded in the 9th or 10th cent., but dating chiefly from the 12th and 16th.
The finest parts, datin, from the Renaissance, are the magnificent staircase
built by Fontant (1528-38) and the galleries, surmounted by arcades, which
surround the inner court, by the same architect. —25 M. Chasseneuil-sur-
Bonnieure has a eastle of the 17th cent. and iron-mines. — From (33 M.)
Roumaziére-Loubert (Buffet) a branch-line diverges to (101/5 M.) Confolens
(Hot. Chaboussant), a town with 3168 inhab, »_a castle. and two ancient
churches. We now reach the valley of the Vienne. 401/5 M. Chabanais.
451/5 M. Saillat-Chassenon. Chassenon, 21/, M. to the S.W., is the Cassino-
magus of the Romans. A branch-line runs hence to (28 M.) Bussiére-Galant
(Périgueux, see p. 42), via (41/, M.) Rochechouart (Hot. Mary Vaissade, below
the town), a little town (4500 inhab.) with a remarkable castle situated
on a lofty rock and rebuilt in the 15th cent., and (231/5 M.) Chdlus, with two
keeps of the strong castle in attacking which Richard Cceur-de-Lion was
mortally wounded in 1199, at the roek Maumont.

501/5 M. St. Junien (Commerce), an industrial town of 9376 inhab., con-
taining a remarkable abbey-church of the 12th cent. with the richly sculp-
tured tomb of St. Junien, of the same period, and a beautiful high-altar,
Near the station is a bridge of the 13th cent.. with a chapel of the Virgin
to which Louis XI. was a pilgrim. — Beyond (661/5 M.) dize-sur- Vienne (Hot,
du Pécheur), an industrial place with 3638 inhab., we pass through a
tunnel 1/4 M. long, — 73 M. Limoges (Gare de Montjovis, p. 39).

IV. From Angouléme to Bordeaux.

821/, M. to the Gare de la Bastide, 87 M. to that of St.-Jean (see p. 46);
RAILWAY in 2-5 and 21/4-51/5 hrs. (fares 15 fr., 10 fr. 5, 6 fr. 55 e., or
15 fr. 80, 10 fr. 70, 6 fr. 60 ¢.). Best views to the right.

The line passes under the town through a tunnel !/, M. long. —
136 M. (from Tours) La Couronne, with a large paper-mill and
the remarkable ruins of a Gothic abbey - church of the 12th cen-
tury. — 139!/, M. Mouthiers : 1443/4 M. Charmant. We now pass
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from the Charente to the Dordogne basin by a tunnel nearly 1 M.
long, and enter the valley of the Tude. The country assumes more
and more a southern appearance. — 152 M. Montmoreaw. — 1621/, M.
Chalais (Hot. de France), a small decayed town, with the ruins of a
castle of the 14th, 16th, and 18th cent. Hence we pass to the valley
of the Dronne. Two small stations.

182 M. Coutras (Buffet; Lion d'Or), a small commercial town,
with scanty remains of its ancient castle. In 1587 Henri IV. here
defeated the Leaguers. Line to Périgueux, see p. 45.

FroM Courras 1o Cavienac, 16 M., railway joining the line from Bor-
deaux to Nantes (R.4). The Isle is crossed. 41/4 M. Guitres, a small town
on a hill to the right, with a fine Romanesque church. 13 M. Marcenais,
junetion of a line to Libourne. 16 M. Cavignac (p. 32).

‘We next cross the Isle. — 197 M. St. Denis-de-Piles.

192 M. Libourne (Buffet; Hoét. de Franmce, Rue Chanzy; des
Princes, Rue de Guitres), a commercial and industrial town with
17,867 inhab., at the confluence of the Dordogne and the Isle. It is
of ancient origin (Condate), but has been to a great extent rebuilt
since the 17th century. The Rue Chanzy leads from the station to
the Place Decazes, with a Statue of the Duc de Decazes (1780-1860).
Thence the Rue Gambetta descends to the 16th cent. Hétel de Ville,
beyond which, straight on, are the Prison and the church of St.
Jean Baptiste (15th cent.), with a fine modern steeple 233 ft. high.
The bridge over the Dordogne affords a beautiful view. The Towr
de U'Horloge, on the Quai de I'Isle, is a relic of the 14th cent.

fortification.

About 11/5 M. to the W. is Fronsac, on a hill (236 ft.) which affords
a fine view. The town was fortified since the time of Charlemagne, but
the castle is now destroyed.

FroM LIBOURNE TO MARCENAIS (see above) a branch-line of 12 M.,
joining the line from Bordeaux to Nantes.

From LiBourNe To Lk Buissox (Cahors), 61 M., railway in 3-4 hrs.
(fares 13 fr. 45, 10 fr. 25, 7 fr. 75 ¢.). This line ascends the Dordogne valley.

5M. St. Emilion (H6t. Garé-Dussaut), a curious little town famous for its
wines. It oceupies a picturesque site on a hill, and still retains a great
part of its medieval ramparts, with large ditches dug out of the rock.
In the hill itself are immense quarries still worked for building stone.
Here, too, is a Monolithic Church, scooped out in the rock in the Middle
Ages, and measuring 104 ft. in length, 46 ft. in breadth, and 521/ ft. in
height. It is at the side of the hermitage of St. Emilion, or rather St.
Emilien, who lived here in the 8th cent., and on a terrace above stands a
fine tower of the 12th and 15th centuries. The neighbouring collegiate
church and cloister (12th and 13th cent.) are also remarkable. Of the
Castle, to the W. of the town, there remains little more than a square keep.

11 M. Castillon (Boule d’Or), memorable for the defeat which definitely
cost the English Guienne, in 1453. John Talbot, Earl of Shrewsbury, was
among the slain.

Beyond (221/5 M.) St. Antoine-Port- Ste. Foy, the Dordogne is erossed.

M. Ste. Foy-la-Grande (Messageries), a town of 3242 inhabitants. 32 M.
Lamonzie-St. Martin. Then the Dordogne is recrossed.

38 M. Bergerac (Grand Hotel; Hot. des Voyageurs), a town of 14,735 in-
hab. on the Dordogne, was one of the Calvinist strongholds of the 16th
century. Notre-Dame is a fine modern church in the style of the 13th cen-
tury. A large business is done here in wines and truffles. Line to Mar-
mande, see p. 72; to Angouléme via Mussidan and Ribérae, see p. 13.
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421/, M. Creysse-Mouleydier, with paper-mills and the ruins of a eastle.
After a tunnel we see a canal rendered necessary by the rapids of the
Dordogne. From (49 M.) Couze a diligence plies to (7M.) Beaumont, with
ramparts and a fortified echureh dating from the English occupation. —
51 M. Lalinde, an ancient little town (Diolindum) ; 531/ M. Mauzac. Then
a tunnel, two bridges over the Dordogne, and a second tunnel. 56 M.
Trémolat; 58 M. Allés. We cross the Dordogne for the last time. 61 M.
Le Buisson (p.102). Thence to Monsempron - Libos and (125 M.) Cahors,
see pp. 102, 103.

Quitting Libourne, we cross the Dordogne, already a very large
stream. 195 M. Arveyres; 1971/, M. Vayres, dominated by a castle
partly of the 13-14th centuries. 201 M. S Sulpice-d’ Izon ; 203 M.
St. Loubes. At a distance, on the right, are the bridges of Cubzac
(p- 33). 205!/, M. La Grave-d&’ Ambarés. A little farther on, to the
right, the line from Nantes is approached (R. 4), and the Garonne
110w appears on that side. We pass through a series of cuttings,
over three viaducts, and through three short tunnels, — 2101/, M.
Lormont (3236 inhab.), on the Garonne , With shipbuilding yards.
Two more tunnels and then, on the right, a splendid view of
Bordeaux and its harbour.

2131/, M. Bordeaux (Gare de la Bastide ; see p. 46). Trains
in connection with the line to the South, at the St. Jean station
(p. 46), back out a little way and make a détour to cross the Ga-
ronne by the bridge mentioned on p. 48.

2. From Tours to Les Sables-d’Olonne.

156 M. RAILWAY in 71/5-81/4 hrs. (fares 25 fr. 70, 19 fr. 10, 12 fr, 45e¢.),
The trains start from the Gare de I'Etat, beside the principal station.

Tours, see p. 4 and Baedeker’s Northern, France. — The line, after
passing above that to Nantes, crosses the Cher and traverses marshy
tracts. — At (33/, M.) Joué-lés-Tours , the line to Loches-Chateau-
roux (p. 37) branches off on the left. 61/, M. Ballan. Pope Martin
IV. (Simon de Brion, d. 1285) was born in the neighbouring
Chateau de la Carte, the chapel of which has some fine stained
glass of the 16th century. 101/, M. Druye; 131/, M. Vaiiéres.

16 M. Azay-le-Ridean (Hot. du Grand Monarque), with 2175

inhab., has an interesting Renaissance *Chdteau (visitors admitted).

A branch-line runs hence to (12 M.) Crouzilles-St. Gilles (p. 17), for the

Camp du Ruchard (B1/3 M.), established in the ‘landes’ of that name.

The line crosses the Indre, and beyond (201/, M.) Rivarennes
traverses the forest of Chinon. 24 M. St. Benoist; 27 M. Huismes.
Before Chinon, which is seen on the right, a tunnel of 1000 yds. is
passed through.

31 M. Chinon (Hot. de France, Place de I'Hétel-de-Ville;
Boule d’Or, on the quay; de " Union, Place Jeanne-d’Arc; private
carr. dear), is a commercial town (pop. 6120), prettily situated on
the eminences of the right bank of the Vienne, and celebrated for
its history and its castle, It consists almost entirely of narrow and
tortuous streets in which are still seen houses of the 15th and 16th
centuries.
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Chinon already existed in the Roman period, under the name of Caino.
ubsequently it was oceupied by the Visigoths, belonged to the kingdoms
f Paris and Austrasia, then to the Counts of Touraine and to Henry II.
f England, who was fond of the town and died here in 118). Reunited
» France early in the 13th cent., it nevertheless changed hands frequently
p to the beginning of the 1bth century. It was here that Joan of Arc
ought audience of Charles VIL. in MQg to induce him to march to the
elief of Orleans.

The Rue Solférino leads from the station to a square in which is
n equestrian Statue of Joan of Arc, by Roulleau. — Farther along
he quay is a Statue of Rabelais, born at or near Chinon about 1495,
'modern bronze by Em. Hébert. Opposite is the Place de I'Hotel-
e-Ville, whence the Rue St. Etienne leads to the right to the Rue
'u Puy-des-Bancs, the principal approach to the castle.

The CastLE of Chinon really consisted of three distinct castles.
‘he Chdteaw de St. Georges (the least ancient), of which only the
ase of the curtain-wall remains, lies to the right of the entrance
o the two others, whose ruins are surrounded by a fine promenade,
yublic from noon till dusk in summer on Sundays and holidays.
‘he Chateau dw Miliew was built on the site of the Roman castrum
n the 14th cent. and was often repaired. Its chief parts are the
>avillon de I’'Horloge, at the entrance (ring), the Grand Logis, and
he donjon or keep. The Chdteau du Coudray has still a fine tower
vith a chapel of the 13th cent., and two round towers.

Near the foot of the approach to the castle is the church of S¢.
itienne, of the 15th cent., with a beautiful doorway, some fine stained
lass and a handsome modern gallery. It also still possesses a cope,
aid to have belonged to St. Mesme, which dates from the 10th or
1th century. Farther on, in a continuation of the Rue St. Etienne,
s the ruined church of St. MEsME, of which two Romanesque and
tothic towers are the chief remains. Adjoining is a tasteful modern
tothic Chapel.

On the opposite side, at the end of the Rue St. Maurice, which
so starts from the Place de I'Hétel-de-Ville, and in which there
re some interesting old houses, is the church of St. Maurice, of
he 12th, 15th, and 16th cent., with a steeple partly Romanesque,
nd fine vaulted arches. Among the paintings are a large fresco by
randin and a Madonna attributed to Sassoferrato, on the first

illar to the right.

BraNcH LINE to (91/3 M.) Port-Boulet, on the line from Tours to Nantes;
se Baedeker’s Northern France.

From CHINON TO PORT-DE-PiLps, 231/5 M., railway in 11/3-2 hrs.
ares 3 fr. 95, 2 fr. 95, 1 fr. 90 ¢.). This branch diverges to the left from
e line to Sables beyond the bridge and ascends the valley of the
ienne. — From (3 M.) Ligré-Riviére, a branch-line runs to (10 M,) Riche-
ew (pop. 2364), the birthplace of the famous Cardinal (1585-1642), who
ade a handsome town of it and built in it a splendid castle of which
early nothing remains. At Champigny - sur -Veude, the preceding station
) M.), there also stood a magnificent castle, of which the chapel is still
ctant, built in the early Renaissance style, and adorned with beautiful
ained glass by R. Pinaigrier. — 101/ M. Zle-Bouchard, a small town
yntaining the ruins of an 11th eent. priory, and near which is a large
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M.) Crouzilles-St. Gilles, we Jjoin the branch-line from
Azay-le-Rideau (p. 15). — 231/3 M. Port-de-Piles (p- b).

The railway crosses the Vienne at Chinon and affords a striking
view of the town. — 34 M. La Roche- Clermault. Beyond (38 M.)
Beuxes the keep of Loudun is seen on the left.

451/, M. Loudun (Buffet; Hit. des Iles, mnear St. Pierre-du-
Marché), the Juliodunum of the Romans, is built on an eminence
(pop. 4652). It played an important part in the Religious Wars and
gave its name to an edict favourable to the Protestants in 1616 ; but
it is still better known for the trial of the curé Urbain Grandier,
who was burnt alive in 1634, on a charge of sorcery.

Loudun has still many old streets, narrow and dark. Turning to
the left at the end of the Rue de la Gare, then to the right into the
Rue Séche, we reach Sz. Pierre-du- Marché, a Gothic church with a
Renaissance portal, and a lofty stone spire. The street on this side
of the Place leads to Ste. Croix, a fine Romanesque church with
nave and aisles and a transept, with ambulatory and little apses.
This church now serves as a market-house. — Turning to the right
on the other side of St. Pierre-du-Marché, we reach the Palais de
Justice, in front of which a bronze statue, by Alf. Charron, was
erected in 1894 to Theophraste Renaudot (1586-1653), physician
of Louis XIII. and founder of French journalism (1631). Behind
the Palais is the lofty square Keep of the old 12th cent. castle which
isin a close. — The street to the left, beyond the close, leads to
St. Pierre-du- Martray, a chureh with some good details in the
Flamboyant style. — Still farther is the Porte du Martray, the chief
remaining portion of the old fortifications of the town.

From Loudun to Angers (Saumur) see Baedeker’s Northern France.

From Loupux (AN6ERS) To CHATELLERAULT (p. 5), 311/5 M., railway in
11/5-13/4 hr. (fares b fr. 20, 3 fr. 85,2 fr. 50 ¢.). The prineipal intermediate
station is (201/5 M.) Lencloitre, a town whieh has sprung up around an
abbey of which the Romanesque church is still extant.

Frowm Loubvx 1o Porriees, 431/, M., railway in 2-61/5 hrs. (fares 7 fr,
25, 51r. 35, 3fr. 50 e.). — 5 M. Argay (see below). 121/, M. Moncontour, a
village famous for the vietory of the Duke of Anjou (Henri IIL.) over
the Protestants ecommanded by Coligny in 1569. It has a ruined eastle
and akee‘ﬂof the 13th century. "Branch to aom.) Airvault (p. 18), vid St

Mirebeau, with the

Jouin-de-Marnes, with its celebrated abbey. — 231/5 M.
remains of fortifieations; 33 M. Neuville-de-Poitou, the Junetion of the

Parthenay line (p. 18).

The railway skirts Loudun on the side of the Porte du Martray.
— 50 M. Ar¢ay, where the Poitiers line branches off (see above).
531/, M. Pas-de-Jeu, at the head of the Canal de la Dive.

About 21/3 M. to the S.W. is Oiron, with a Castle of the 16th cent.,

which was inhabited by Mme. de Montespan. It was ravaged at the Re-
volution, but some remarkable features remain. The rooms are still richly

dolmen. — At (121/3

S now used as a parish church, contains four fine mausoleums executed
n marble by Italian artists, but sadly mutilated by the Huguenots in
There are four dolmens in the park of Oiron.
Baedeker. South-Western France. 2nd Edit. 2
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64 M. Thouars(Buffet; Hot. du Cheval-Blanc, Grande-Rue; de
la Gare), with 5169 inhab., on the Thouet, was the capital of the
powerful viscounts of Thouars, almost always partizans of the
English, until it was taken by Bertrand du Guesclin in 1372. After—
wards it was long held by the Ducs de la Trémouille.

The Castle is a spacious structure of the 46th cent., built on steep
cliffs above the river, 4 M. from the station. It is now a prison and
cannot be visited without a special order; but visitors may obtain
admission (after 10 a. m.) to the chapel, called Ste. Chapelle, a fine
example of the Gothic style, finished in 1514. It has a crypt cut
out in the rock, with the vault of the Trémouille family. Fine view
of the valley of the Thouet from the terrace in front of the castle.

The Church of St. Médard, on the right of the main street as we
return, has a fine Romanesque *Portal. Sz, Laon, on the left of the
same street, dates from the 12th and 15th cent. ; interesting interior.

From Thouars to Saumur (Paris) vii Montreuil - Bellay (Angers) , see
Baedeker’s Northern France.

FroM THOUARS 10 N10oRT, 550 M., railway in 21/5-41/4 hrs. (fares 10 fr. 90
8fr. 25, 6 fr. 5e.). This section of the line from Paris to Bordeaux via
Saumur quits the Sables line beyond the viaduet (see below) and as-
cends the valley of the Thouet. — 15 M. Airvault (Hot. des Voyageurs),
a little town in which the church of St. Pierre, an old abbey-chureh, is
a very noteworthy example of the Romanesque style of the 10th cent. ;
it was repaired in the 12th. Here, too, are the remains ofa strong castle.
— The Thouet is crossed, 1/3M. higher up, by an 11th cent. bridge with
eleven arches, called Pont de Vernay. Branch to Moncontour, see p. 17.
— 171/, M. St. Loup-sur-Thouet, with a chiteau of the 17th century.

28 M. Parthenay (Buffet; Hot. Tranchant), a icturesque place of 7300
inhab., is still surrounded with ramparts of the 12-18th cent., whieh formed
three lines of defence. It played an important part in the wars against
England in the Middle Ages, in the Religious Wars, and in those of the
Vendée. The Church of St. Laurent, in the Romanesque and Gothie
styles, has a modern spire and a 12th cent. tower. Ste. Croiz is Roman-
esque. The ruined Chdteau, the Porte St. Jacques, and the ruins of Notre-
Dame-de-la-Couldre, in the Romanesque style, are also noteworthy. — Line
o Poitiers, see above.

50 M. Zchiré-St, Gelais, where the Sevre-Niortaise is crossed. About
3/4 M. to the right are the impressive ruins of the Chdtean du Couldray-
Salbart, built in the 9th century. — 55 M. Niort (p. 20).

The Sables-d’Olonne line now makes a great curve and crosses
. viaduet 425 ft. high and 850 ft. long, which affords a fine view, on
he left, of Thouars. The railway ascends nearly to Cerizay and the
asturage of the district grows like that of the Bocage (see p-19).

68 M. Coulonges-Thouarsais; then Luché, with an agricultural
olony. Beyond (74 M.) Noirterre, we rejoin and follow the line
rom Nantes (Angers) to Poitiers, noting on the left the fine steeple
f Bressuire.

79 M. Bressuire (* Buffet; Hotel du Dauphin), with 4793 inhab.,
ceupies a hill on the left. Like Thouars, it played a part in the
ars with England, and it was taken by Bertrand du Guesclin
\ 1371. 1t has a very curious Castle of the 12th and 15th cent.,
lf in ruins, half restored, and visible to the right of the via-
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duct before entering the station. It has two lines of defence with
48 towers. — The church of Notre-Dame belongs chiefly to the
12th and 15th cent., and has a steeple finished in the style of the
Renaissance.

Lines to Clisson (Nantes) and to Poitiers, see p. 27.

FroM BRESSUIRE T0 NIORT, 48M., railway in 2-21/4 hrs. (fares 7fr. 95,
51r. 90, 3 fr. 85 ¢.). — This line traverses part of the Bocage (see below),
with coal-mines. — 91/5 M. Moncoutant, where flax is cultivated and a
woollen stuff made which is ealled breluche. 18 M. Breuil-Barret, junction
for La Rochelle (see below). — 31 M. Coulonges-sur-Autise, with a castle of
the 16th century. — 39 M. Benet. Line to Velluire, see below. — 411/, M.
Coulon, beyond which we cross the Sevre-Niortaise. — 48 M. Niort (p.%l).

FroM BRESSUIRE 10 La RocueLLE, 661/, M., railway in 21/3-43/4 hrs.
(fares 11 fr. 60, 8 fr. 55, 5fr.55¢.). To (18 M.) Breuil-Barret, see above.
— Beyond (211/; M.) Chdtaigneraie we follow the valley of the Afere.
24 M. Antigny. 98 M. Vouvant, with a fine chureh (11-12th cent.) and a
ruined chateau (tower of the 13th cent.); 31 M. Bourneau - Mervent. —
36 M. Fontenay-le-Comte (Hotel de France), a venerable town with 9864
inhab., situated on a hill on the right bank of the Vendée, which here
becomes navigable. It suffered greatly during the Religious and Vendean
wars, and almost all traees of its strongly fortified castle have disap-
peared. The churches of Notre-Dame and St. Jean have each a fine Gothie
spire. The town also possesses a handsome Renaissance Fountain and
some interesting old houses. Branch-line to Benet (11 M.; Niort), see
above. — 391/ M. Fontaines- Vendée, — At (431/3 M.) Velluire we join the
line from Nantes to La Rochelle (p. 28).

82 M. Clasay; 89 M. Cerizay, with a modern chiteau on the

right. We cross the Sévre-Nantaise. — 921/, M. St. Mesmin-le-
Vieur. We are now in the Vendée and in the Bocage district fa-
mous in the annals of the Revolution. The land here is divided
into square plots, each 5 to 7 acres in area, fenced in by hedges 6
to 10 ft. in height, ornamented with trees.

971/, M. Pousauges. The large village , beautifully situated on
the slope of a hill, 21/, M. to the N., boasts of the ruins of a large
and picturesque keep of the 13-14th cent., which once belonged
to the famous Gilles de Laval, called ‘Bluebeard’ (p. 27). In the
neighbourhood are several interesting castles, picturesque ruins,
and fine points of view.

104 M. Chavagnes-les- Redouz. The line crosses the Grand-
Lay on both sides of the station. — 112 M. Chantonnay (pop. 4300).
The line, which intersects a very hilly tract, makes a wide curve
to the left, followed by two cuttings and a viaduet affording a fine
view. — Beyond (120 M.) Bowrnesaw is a forest. 125 M. La Chaize-
le-Vicomte, with 2740 inhabitants, Crossing the Yon we then re-
join the line from Nantes to La Rochelle and Bordeaux (R. 4).

133 M. La Roche -sur - Yon, formerly Napoléon and Bourbon-
Vendée (Buffet; Hot. de U Europe, in the Place; Hot. des Voya-
geurs, at the station), with 12,215 inhab., the chief town of the
department of the Vendée, on a hill washed by the Yon. There
was formerly a strong castle here which was a place of importance
both in the English and Religious wars. The town having become
the chief place of a prefecture, Napoleon I. erected numerous build-

XS
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ngs which are anything but remarkable. It is now a modern
own, regularly built and almost without interest. The large Place
Napoléon, in the centre, which is reached from the station via the
youlevard on the right, and the Rue des Sables, to the left, is adorn—
d with an equestrian bronze Statue of Napoleon I., by De Nie—
verkerke. Here also is the Hotel de Ville, with a garden behind it
ontaining a small museum of paintings and antiquities and a small
nonument to Paul Baudry (1828-1886), the painter, a native of the
own. On the other side of the Place is the Church, the interior of
vhich is in good taste and shows some fine modern stained glass.
\ little farther to the right, in a small square, is the Statwe of
feneral Travot (1767 - 1836) ‘pacificator of the Vendée’ during the
Tundred Days, an indifferent bronze by Maindron.

From La Roche-sur-Yon to Nantes and La Rochelle see R. 4.

Beyond (1381/, M.) Les Clouzeaux and the small station of Ste.
“laive, to the right, in the distance, is the Chiteau de l1a Bassetiére.
45 M. La Mothe-Achard; 1511/y M. Olonne. To the right lie salt
narshes, with large heaps of salt, and a succession of sand-dunes.

156 M. Les Sables-d’Olonne. — Hotels, GRAND-HOTEL DE LA PLAGE
; SPLENDID-HOTEL, HOT. DU REMBLAI, GRAND - HOtel DU Casixo, all on the
each; R. 21/3-51/5, B. 1, déj. 3, D. 31/5, omn. 1/5-3/4 fr. ; HoTEL DE FRANCE,
v CHEVAL-BLANc, Jougr, in the town.

Cafés. Café¢ de la Plage; Grand Café, Place du Minage, near the Rem -
lai. — Sea-Baths. Machine and towel 30 c.; bathing-dress 30 ¢. — Casino,
dm. 1 fr.; per month 30 fr. — Denkeys, 50 ¢. per hour.

British Vice-consul: Mr. Théophile Lelidvre.

Les Sables-d’Olonne is a much-frequented sea-bathing place,
ith a small harbour and 11,550 inhabitants. Its magnificent sandy
each, sloping gently towards the S. and stretching in a semicircle
or a distance of about 4 M., is flanked by a wide esplanade called
he Remblai and Quai Franqueville, with a carriage-road and nu-
1erous handsome villas. Near the end is an Agquarium (1/; fr.).
he town, however, is badly built, and the church is its only
bject of interest.

To reach the beach from the station we turn to the right, into
16 Rue de I’Hotel-de-Ville, and then follow the Rue Travot, the first
reet to the left. Carriages turn to the left farther on, at the Church,

Late-Gothic building, with fine vaulting. To the W. of the Remblai

e. to the right as we reach the shore, is the Casino, and farther
n is the narrow Channel leading to the harbour. Beyond the latter
ses the Arundel Tower, a modern erection with battlements and
achicolations, which serves as a lighthouse. Adjacent are the
1ins of a chéiteau of the same name. Here, too, lies the unim-
ortant suburb of La Chawme, near which the shore forms a pro-
ontory bearing a small fort. g

The Harbour, to the N., between the town and this suburb,
mprises a dry dock, a floating dock, and a graving dock. Near it

ere are Oyster Parks, and farther off, some Sal¢ Marshes which
ay be reached vid La Chaume (ferry 5 ¢.).



ST. MAIXENT. I. Route 3. 2

On this side the shore is bordered by dunes; to the S.E. ar
curious rocks, some ruins, and a wood of evergreen oaks.

On Sundays and festivals the varied head-dresses of the country-
women at Les Sables will attract the visitor’s attention.

3. From Poitiers to La Rochelle (and Rochefort).
90 M. RAILWAY in 31/ -51/3 hrs. (fares 14 fr. 90, 11 fr. 5_ 7 fr. 15 c.). —
The line to %ochefort (88 M.) diverges at Aigrefeuille , 1 . before La

Rochelle (p. 23).
Poitiers, see p. 5. The Angouléme line is followed as far as

(3 M.) St. Benoit (p- 9). Beyond (12 M.) Coulombiers we cross the
pretty valley of the Vonne by two lofty viaducts.

16 M. Lusignan (Hoétel de la Meélusine), a picturesquely situated
little town, partly on the bank of the Vonne and partly on a hill
crowned with the inconsiderable remains of the Chdteaw of the
illustrious family which gave kings to Jerusalem and Cyprus. This
stronghold is fabled to have been built by the fairy Melusine, whose
name is probably derived from the earliest chitelaine, the ‘Mother
of the Lusignans’ (‘mére des Lusignans’; Merlusina, Mélusine). The
chiteau was destroyed in the Religious Wars. The interesting
Church dates from the 11-12th centuries.

From Lusignan a diligence (75 ¢.) plies in 13/4 hr. to Sanxay (Hét. du
Bienvenu), a country-town 91/5 M. to the N.W., in the valley of the Vonne,
where considerable Celtic-Roman remains of the 1st cent. of the present
era were discovered in 1881-83, including a temple, baths, a circus, and
several large hostelries. There seems to have been a town of some size
on this spot, though its name has not come down to us.

20%/, M. Rowilld; 25 M. Pamproux. In the neighbourhood is
the Roche Ruffin, a grotto with an underground lake. — 29 M. Lq
Mothe-St. Heraye, a small town, most of the inhabitants of which,
asjof many other places in this district, are Protestants. We then
enter the valley of the Sévre- Niortaise.

34 M. St. Maixent (Ecu de France), a town of 5036 inhab., on
the Sévre-Niortaise, has an interesting church of the 12-15th cent.,
in great part destroyed by the Calvinists in 1562 and 1568, but
rebuilt in 1670-82 on the original plan. The fine tower over the W,
front, with its truncated spire, dates from the 15th century. The
oldest part is the crypt, which contains the tomb of St. Maxentius
(d. 513), the second abbot of the monastery round which the town

grew up. This monastery, rebuilt in the 17th cent., now serves as a
barrack. At St. Maixent is a Statue of Denfert- Rochereaw (1823~
1878), defender of Belfort in 1870-71.

The line now ascends and then descends rapidly to (38 M.) Ste.
Néomaye, (40 M.) La Créche, and (44 M.) Arthenay.

49 M. Niort. — Hotels, *Horrr pu Ratsiy ve BourcoGyE, Rue Victor-
Hugo 38; pes ETrRANGERs, Rue des Cordeliers 8; pE France, Place du
Temple 11; DE LA GARE, unpretending, good ecuisine, — Buﬁ'et, at the
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elsata‘ti;)]n, well spoken of, déj. 8, D. 31/ fr. — Cafés, in the Place de la
T e.
eccubs, 1 fr. per drive, 2 fr. per hr. (at night 11/ and 3 fr.).

Niort, with 23,225 inhab. on the Sévre - Niortaise, is the chief
town of the department of the Deux-Sévres. Handed over to
England with the domains of Eleanor of Aquitaine (p. 6), it was
several times taken and retaken in the Hundred Years War, on the
last occasion (1372) by Bertrand du Guesclin. Its Calyinist sym-
pathies also led to considerable suffering in the Religious Wars.
The chief industry of Niort is in hides and skins, and gloves are
largely manufactured here.

‘We enter the town, to the right , by the Rue de la Gare and the
Rue St. Hilaire. Near the end of the latter street is the large mo-
dern church of St. Hilaire, in a debased style. Adjacent is the spa-
cious Place de la Bréche, adorned with flower-beds and statues
in bronze and marble. Turning to the right (W.) and following
the Rue Ricard, we next reach the Rue Victor-Hugo, the chief street
of the town. The Rue du Pilori, on the right, leads to the so-called
Palais & Eléonore, the old Hotel de Ville. The present building,
flanked by two round machicolated towers, dates from 1520-30.
It contains the Musée Départemental, a collection of antiquities
and casts (open on Sun. and Thurs. 12-4 or 5, to strangers on other
days alsoj concierge at No 11, opposite the entrance). Farther on, to
the left, is the church of St. Andrew, lately rebuilt in the style of the
15th cent., and still farther on is the beautiful Jardin Public, laid
out on a slope by the river-side and affording pleasant views.

We now return by the Quays to the Halles, a tasteful iron struc-
ture at the end of the Rue Victor-Hugo. On the other side is the
Keep (Donjon) of a castle built by Henry Plantagenet, which con-
sisted mainly of two large towers with turrets. Beyond the keep
are the Préfecture (rebuilt in 1893), the Palais de Justice, and
Notre-Dame, the chief church of Niort, rebuilt in 1491-1534. The
N. portal is embellished with a curious balustrade, and the tower
has a stone spire surrounded with turrets bearing statues of the
Evangelists. In the interior are a Gothic pulpit, ‘Stations of the
Cross’ in carved oak, an elegant Renaissance gallery, etc.

The Grande Rue Notre-Dame leads to the right from this church
to the Rue St. Jean, which leads back to the Rue Victor-Hugo. At
the corner of the Rue St. Jean and Rue du Musée rises the hand-
some new Eecole de Dessin, behind which is the Library (open daily
1-5, except on holidays; closed in Aug. and Sept.).

In the Rue du Musée is the Musée de Peinture, occupying an old
convent and open to the public on Sun. and Thurs. from noon til
4 or B, to strangers on other days also. The first floor is devoted tc
sculptures, drawings, casts, and Natural History collections, while o
the second floor is a picture-gallery, containing about 200 paintings
including some good works of the Italian School, for the most par
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by unknown masters, and several works of the early French School.
On the landing-place of the first floor are 76 painted wood-carvings

of the 16th cent. in the Flemish style, representing Biblical subjects.

From Niort to Bressuire and to Angers, see p. 16 and Baedeker's North-
ern France.

From N1oRT TO SAINTES, 48 M., railway in 11/5-21/5 hrs. (fares 7 fr. 95,
5 fr. 90, 3 fr. 85 ¢.). — Beyond (33/4 M.) Aiffres the line to Ruffec (see below)
diverges to the left. — 18 M. Villeneuve - la - Comtesse, with the interesting
remains of an old ehiteau. — 30 M. St. Jean-d’Angély (Hotel de France; des
Voyageurs), a town with 7300 inhab., on the right bank of the Boutonne, which
here forms a small harbour. The town owes its origin to a Benedietine abbey,
destroyed in 1568 by the Calvinists, who had made the place one of their
chief strongholds. It was taken the following year by the Duke of Anjou
(Henri II1.) and in 1621 by Louis XIII., who levelled its fortifications.
Among the objects of interest are some remains of the abbey and its
church, rebuilt in the 18th cent.; a tower of the 15th cent.; an old market-
house; and the bronze statue, by Bogino, of Regnaud de St. Jean-d’ Angély
(d. 1819), a distinguished politician and father of the marshal of that
name. — At (411/3 M.) Zaillebourg we join the Rochefort line (p. 30).

Frox N1orr 10 RUFFEC, 511/5 M., railway in 21/5-41/3 hrs. (fares 8 fr. 45,
6 fr. 25, 4 fr. 10 ¢.). — 33/4 M. Aiffres. On the right diverges the line to
Saintes (see above), — 201/ M. Melle (Hétel Ste. Catherine), an ancient town
(Metallum) with 2848 inhab., built partly on the bank of the Béronne and
partly on a steep hill, which contained a silver and lead mine worked by
the Romans. The chief building is the Church of St. Hilaire, in the lower
part of the town, dating from the 12th cent. and containing some interesting
sculptures. St. Pierre, in the upper part of the town, is of the same period.
— 231/3 M. Maziéres-St. Romans. Near Mazitres is ‘a modern chiteau, with
the fine Zour de Melzéard of the 15th century. We now ascend the valley
of the Boutonne, a tributary of the Charente, which rises near (B41/, M)
Chef-Boutonne. — 511/y M. Rugfec, see p. 10.

541/, M. Frontenay - Rohan; 57 M. Epannes. The train tra-

verses a marshy district. 62 M. Mausé; 67 M. St. Georges-du-Bois.

691/, M. Surgéres ( Hot. du Commerce), a small town with a
Romanesque church of the 12th cent. and a ruined Chaiteau (14th
and 16th cent.). — 73 M. Chambon ; 19 M. Aigrefeuille.

From Aigrefeuille a branch-line runs to (91/2 M.) Rochefort (p. 28),
passing Ciré, with a 16th cent. chateau,

M. La Jarrie. The line describes a wide curve to reach La
Rochelle, which is seen in the distance to the right, and joins the
Nantes and Bordeaux line (R. 4).

90 M. La Rochelle. — Hotels. Horer b Fraxce (Pl.a; B, 3), Rue
Gargoulleau 26 ; Hor. pEs ETRANGERS (P1. b; C,3), Rue Thiers 12; Hot. pu
ComMERCE (PI. ¢; B, 3), Place d’Armes; RICHELIEU, bu MAIL, at the sea-
bathing place (see below). — Buffet at the station. — Cafés in the Place
d’Armes. — Post and Telegraph Office (P1. B, 4), Rue du Palais 12. — Sea-
Baths at the Mail (p. 21): Bains de la Concurrence, un})recending; Bains
Louise, similar, for ladies ; Bains du Mail, Bains Riche ieu, with hotels,
casinos, cafés, ete. — British Consul: Mr. R. 8. Warburton. — Steamboat
to the Zle de Ré, see p. 26.

La Rochelle, a seaport with 26,808 inhab., a fortress of the
second class, and the seat of a bishopric, was the ancient capital of
the Pays Aunis, and is now the chief town of the department of
the Charente Inférieure. Tt is situated on a bay in the Straits of

Antioche, sheltered by the islands of Ré and Oléron,
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Whether this town was the Portus Santonum of the Romans is un-
ertain. It first appears in unquestioned history at the end of the
Jth cent. under tge name of Rupella. Incorporated with England to-
ether with Aquitaine, it was permanently restored to France in 1372,
fter which it enjoyed two centuries of commereial prosperity, brought
) an end by the outbreak of the Religious Wars. Protestantism already
unted many converts here when Condé and Coligny made the town
1eir headquarters in 1568. It was the chief stronghold of the Hugue-
ots, and the cruisers of La Rochelle were well-known in the Atlantic
nd the English Channel. In 1572-73 the town sueccessfully withstood
siege of upwards of six months. The re-awakening of religious bitter-
ess in the reign of Louis XIII. hurried it into fresh contests (1622, 1626,
127-28) in which it was less successful. In the last of these it had
ken advantage of the hostilities between France and England, and the
tter country despatched more than one expedition to its relief, the
nief of which failed through the blundering of its commander, the Duke
f Buckingham. Richelieu succeeded in completely investing it, closed
1e port by a mole, part of which still exists (see below), and, after a
ege of 13 months, starved it into surrender. The fall of La Rochelle
estroyed the political power of the Huguenots, who never recovered
om this blow. Richelieu, however, did not abuse his vietory. In 1809
e English made an unsuccessful attempt to destroy the French fleet at
a Rochelle. The chief articles of the trade of La Rochelle, which
iffered greatly from the loss of Canada by France, are timber, coal,
randy, wine, vinegar, salt, preserved meats, and grain. Fishing is also
stively pursued and forms a staple industry. Among famous natives of
ie town may be mentioned Réaumur (d. 1757), Bonpland, the naturalist
. 1858), and Admiral Duperré (d. 1846).

From the station the town is entered by the PORTE DE LA GARE
+ St. Nicolas (P1.C, 4), erected in 1857. The fortifications were
structed by Vauban in the reign of Louis XIV., the old works,
ccept those on the seaward side, having been demolished after the
ege of 1627-28. They form an unbroken line about 3!/, M. in
ngth, strengthened with bastions, redans, and a hornwork (near the

ation).

The Harbour (PL. B, C, 4, 5), a little to the left of the entrance
the town, is partly within and partly without the walls. OQutside
e the Outer Harbour, and a Floating Dock; inside are a Careening
asin, a Dry Dock, a Canal, and the Reservoir of Maubec, the waters
‘which serve to scour the harbour. — Port de la Pallice, see below.

The Cours pES DaMES or Richard (Pl. B, 4), on the other side of
e dry-dock, is embellished with a bronze Statue of Admiral Du-
rré, by P. Herbert. Opposite is the Porte de la Grosse-Horloge,
e only old gate remaining, a large square tower with round turrets
the 14-15th cent., altered in the 17th and 18th centuries.

At the entrance to the dry-dock are two old towers (P1. B, 5): the
yur St. Nicolas (1384) to the left, and the Tour de la Chaine (1476)
~the right (facing the sea). The first is square with four round
rrets, and the interesting interior has been recently restored for the
eption of an antiquarian museum. The second tower is round and
s at one time 110 ft. in height. The harbour was formerly closed
th a chain, and the Tour St. Nicolas seems to have been united
th a ‘small chain-tower’ (now vanished) by a Gothic arch under
ich the ships passed. A little farther on, in a straight line, is the
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Lantern Tower (P1. B, 5; 1445-1476), deriving its name from having
served as a lighthouse. It is round, flanked by two turrets, and sur-
mounted by a stone spire. In the distance, by the Outer Harbour,
rises the black and white Richeliew Tower, with a bell rung by the
waves, which warns vessels of the mole above mentioned. The mole
itself is seen at low-tide.

The Porte de Mer, or Porte des Deux-Moulins (P1. A, 5), near the
Lantern Tower, leads to the Outer Harbour and to the Bathing-place
(p- 20), the arrangements of which are good , though the bottom is
covered with pebbles and shells. Above the bathing-place extends
the Mail, a promenade planted with trees and affording a series of
fine views. The new Pare Charruyer (P1. A, 5-2) skirts the forti-
fications.

At the Porte de la Grosse-Horloge (see above) begins the wide
Rue du Palais, flanked, like several others, with arcades. At one
corner, to the right, is an interesting house, built in 1554. Farther
on stand the Bourse and the Palais de Justice (P1. B, 4-3), buildings
of the 18th and 17th centuries. The Rue du Palais is continued by
the Rue Chaudrier, from which the Rue des Augustins diverges to
the right. In this last, No. 11 , at the end of a court, is the House
of Henri I1., the most quaint and interesting of the ancient houses
of La Rochelle.

The Cathedral (S¢. Lowis or St. Barthélemy; Pl. B, 3), farther on,
at the corner of the Rue Chaudrier and the Place d’Armes, was rebuilt
between 1742 and 1762 in the Greek style, after plans by J. Gabriel.
Behind it is a Tower of the 14th cent., a relic of the original church.
The cathedral contains modern stained - glass windows and paint-
ings, among which we may notice the ceiling of the Chapel of the
Virgin, in the apse. In the same chapel is the monument of Mgr.
Landriot (d. 1874), with a fine marble statue by L. Thomas.

The PLACE D’ARMES (PL.B, 3), the largest square in the town,
extends hence to the W. as far as the ramparts.

The Rue Gargoulleau, to the E., leads to the former bishops’
palace, containing the Library (P1. B, 3), which is open on Tues.,
Thurs., and Sat. from 12 to 4 or 5. The Museum, in the same
building, is open on Sun. & Thurs. from 12 to 4 or 5, and on other
days also to strangers. Its chief contents are some modern French
pictures by A. de Pujol, Antigna, Bouguereau, and Fromentin; a
painting of the great siege of La Rochelle by Van der Kabel ; and
works by Giordano and Vien.

The Rue St. Yon, diverging to the right at the end of the Rue
Gargoulleau, leads to the Hotel de Ville (PI. B, 3), the most interest-
ing building in La Rochelle. It was erected in 1486-1607, partly in
the Gothic and partly in the Renaissance styles, and has lately been
restored. Its most remarkable external features are a richly sculp-
tured gallery with a parapet, and two projecting belfries with corbels.
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)n the larger, to the left, is a recess with armorial bearings. The
agade towards the court, consisting of two distinct parts, is still
nore interesting. The smaller part, to the left, is of the time of
Tenri II. and has a modern staircase in front, with a painted
statue of that monarch. The ground-floor of the part to the right
s formed of an arcade with fine semicircular arches and a sculp-
ured ceiling. The two upper stories are adorned with four niches
;ontaining allegorical statues, between eight fluted columns, a dor-
ner window, pediments, and other ornaments of the time of HenryI'V.
1607). Inside is the Council Hall in which Guiton, the mayor and
intrepid defender of the town during its blockade by Richelieu,
swore to stab any one who should suggest surrender.

Beyond the bathing-place, 3 M. from the harbour proper, lies the Port
le la Pallice, a new harbour, constructed 1883-90 in the deep bay of that
vame , opposite the Ile de Ré. It consists of an outer harbour, about
0 acres in area, between two long piers, and a dock-basin, 28 aeres in
wrea, with quays 5900 ft. in length, and a depth of at least 28 ft. The
works, which can be enlarged if required, have cost about 80,0007. Mail-
steamers for South America leave La Pallice every fortnight.

In the neighbourhood of La Rochelle are numerous Salt- Marshes, a
visit to which is interesting. Most of them lie just beyond the hornwork

mentioned at p. 24

From La Rochelle to Nantes and to Rochefort and Bordeauz, see R. 4.

The Ile de Ré, about 10 M. to the W. of La Rochelle, but not more
than 21/5-3 M. from the little port of La Repentie (Inn) at the W. end of
the roadstead, is about 18 M. long and 21/5-3 M. wide. It is populous
(9500 inhab.) but of little general interest, consisting to a great extent
of productive salt-marshes. A steamer plies daily from La Rochelle to St.
Martin-de-Ré in 11/4-2 hrs. (fares 21/5 or 2 fr., return 33/4 or 3 fr.). Inter-
mediate station, La Flotte. Or we may proceed by omnibus to (3 M.) La
Repentie (60 c.) and take the steamer thence (four times daily; fare 75 e.)
to Rivedouz, whence another omnibus runs to (51/3 M.) St. Martin (1 fr.).

St. Martin-de-Ré (Hot. du Bateau a Vapeur) is a small town and port
on the N. side of the island, with 2600 ingabita.nts. It suffered much in
the English wars; its fortifications are the work of Vauban. St. Martin
is the depdt from which convicts are shipped to New Caledonia.

4, From Nantes to Bordeaux.
a. Via Clisson and La Rochelle.

939 M. RAILWAY in 9-153/4 hrs. (fares about 37 fr. 90, 28 fr., 18 fr. 35 ¢.).
The trains start from the Gare de U’Etat, but call at the Gare @’ Orléans
{8 min. later. At Bordeaux they arrive at the Gare St. Jean, not at the
Gare de la Bastide (p.46). — Breaks on the journey, see p. 3.

Nantes, see Baedeker’s Northern France. — The line crosses
three arms of the Loire, of which, as well as of Nantes itself, it
affords a striking view. — 41/, M. Vertow, a country-town, pictur-
esquely situated 11/4 M. to the right. — 91/, M. La Haie-Fouassiére ;
{2 M. Le Pallet, the birthplace of Abelard and of Astrolabe, the
son of Héloise. Beyond it the Sévre- Nantaise is crossed. — 15 M.
Gorges.

17 M. Clisson (Buffet; Hotel de U Europe, R., L., & A. 2-21/,
B. %/, d6j. 3, omn. 1/, fr.), a town with 2916 inhab., prettily situated
n two hills at the confluence of the Sévre and the Moine. The
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latter river is crossed by a handsome viaduect. The best view of the
town and ruins is obtained from the hill (on which is the hotel)
on the opposite bank of the Sévre, reached by following the road to
the left from the station. The old feudal Castle (13 - 15th cent.)
and the town itself were destroyed in 1793 - 94 in the wars of the
Vendée, so that nothing ancient now remains except the interesting
and picturesque ruins of the castle. On the capture of the latter
many of the inhabitants are said to have been thrown alive into
the castle-well and left there to perish miserably. The town was
rebuilt in a somewhat peculiar style, mainly after the plans of the
sculptor Lemot (1775-1827), the owner of the ruins. Both the
rivers are bordered with attractive ‘Garennes’ or parks, the finer of
the two being the Garenne Lemot, on the right bank of the Sévre,
while the Garenne Valentin occupies both banks of the Moine.
Clisson has given its name to a family of which the most famous
representative was Olivier de Clisson, Constable of France (d.1407),
one of the most distinguished champions of France in her wars with
England.

From Clisson a BraxcH RAILWAY runs to the 8. E. to (109 M.) Poitiers.
— U M. Torfou- Tiffauges. Tiffauges, a country -town on an eminence on
the left bank of the river, is dominated by the extensive ruins of a Castle
of the 11th, 14th, and 15th cent., which belonged to the infamous Gilles
de Laval, the original of the nursery hero Blue Beard (Barbe-Bleue;
p- 19). — 163/ M. Evrunes-Mortagne. Mortagne is another little town in
a picturesque situation on the right bank of the Sévre, Eiossessing a
ruined castle. We then quit the valley of the Sévre. — M. Cholet
(HGt. de Framce; de VEurope), see Baedeker's Northern France. — 37 M.
Chétillon- St, Aubin, Chdtillon-:ur-Sévre, 11/4 M. to the S.E., was named
Mauléon until 1736, — 441/ M. Nueil-les-Aubiers; 47 M. Voultegon. We now
ascend the valley of the Argenton. — 53 M. Bressuire, sece p.18. — 60 .
La Chapelle-St. Laurent is an important cattle-market. — 74 M. Parthenay,
see p. 18. Several small stations are passed. 941/y M. Villiers- Vouili¢.
Vouillé, where Clovis defeated Alaric II., king of the Visigoths, in 507,
lies 21/ M. to the S. — 109 M. Poitiers, see p. g

The train now enters the Vendée, traversing that part of it
which is called the Bocage (p. 19). — 24 M. Montaigu-Vendée, a
small town , prettily situated on the Maine, which is crossed here,
was the birthplace of Laréveillére - Lepeaux (1753-1824), one of
the five members of the Directory. A monument was erected to him
in 1886. — 301/, M. L’ Herbergement ; 40 M. Belleville-Vendde.

48 M. La Roche-sur-Yon (see p. 19).

931/, M. Nesmy; 61 M. Champ - St. Pére. The hedges separat-
ing the flelds now disappear and are replaced by trenches. —
661/, M. La Bretonniére.

71 M. Lucon (Hotel de la Téte- Noire, near the cathedral, R., L.,
& A. 11/,-2 fr., B. 60 c., 4éj. 21/, D. 3 fr.), a town with 6535 inhab.,
is the seat of a bishopric which Richelien held from 1607 to 1624,
The Cathedral, an old monastic foundation of the 11th cent., was
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Lugon stands on the N. border of the Marais, a swampy part of t.
Vendée, which extends in the direction of the Breton Straits as far as t.
Bay of Aiguillon, with which it communicates by a eanal 9 M. in lengt
Down to the 6th cent. of the Christian era this district was a gulf, oO:
of the arms of which extended on the E. as far as Niort, which is mno
37 M. distant from the sea. The gradual elevation of the distriet =3
which this metamorphosis is due, still continues. The entrance of  t1}
gulf, once upwards of 18 M. in width, is now not more than 3 M. acros
The marshy tracts are drained by innumerable eanals. The Marais affor
excellent pasturage and contains numerous productive salt-marshes, whi
near the mouth of the Sévre- Niortaise are extensive ‘bouchots’, «
‘parks’ in which mussels and other shell-fish are reared for the marke
of La Rochelle. This district and the other marshy regions fringing tFk
sea-shore beyond it are all more or less unhealthy.

TTM. Nalliers. Beyond (80 M.) Le Langon we traverse a corn e
of the Marais and cross the river Vendee. 86 M. Velluire; line t
Bressuire and Niort via Fontenay-le- Comte, see p. 19.

88 M. Viz. The large village of this name lies 2!/, M. to the left
on a hill, which was formerly an island in the gulf (see above), a
was also (93 M.) L’ Ile-d’ Elle beyond which we cross the Sévse
Niortaise. On this river stands (97 M.) Marans, a well-built littl
town with a large grain trade. At (102 M.) Andilly-St. Ouern. v
quit the Marais, and farther on we skirt the Nior¢ and La Rochell
Canal, which passes through a tunmnel at 1074/, M.) Dompierre-sazo--
Mer, the next station. To the left lie extensive salt-marshes.

112 M. La Rochelle (p- 23 ; Buffet). Line to Poitiers, see R. 3.

The direct line to Rochefort and Bordeaux now skirts for a con-
siderable distance the Pertuis or Straits of Antioche, bounded by
the Ile de Ré on the N. and the Ile d’Oléron (p- 30) on the S.w_.
1154/, M. Angoulins; 117 M. Chételaillon (HOt. des Bains), a smaij
sea-bathing resort. The ocean is steadily encroaching on the land
here, and has already engulfed the two towns of Montmeillan andg
Chatelaillon. To the right is the small IZe &’ Aix (see below). —
121 M. Le Marouwillet. 125 M. St. Laurent-de-la-Prée.

A branch -railway runs hence to (33/4 M.) Fouras (Hot. des Bains ; de
U’Océan), a sea-bathing place at the mouth of the Charente, with a castle
of the 14th eentury. — Near the Pointe de 1'Aiguille, the extremity of
the right bank of the Charente, is the small Jle @’Enet, connected with
the mainland at low tide. About 3/4 M. from the Pointe is the fle @ A7
(33/4 M. in length, and 1 M. in breadth), which was the last refuge of
Napoleon I. before his surrender to the British. Both islands are fortified.

At (126 M.) Charras the train crosses the canal of that name, *

130 M. Rochefort (Buffet). — Hotels. Horer pr Fraxcn (Pl.a;B, 3.4),
Rue du Rempart; pe ra RocHELLe (Pl b; B,4), Rue Chanzy; bu Granp
BacnA (Pl. ¢; B, 4), Rue des Fonderies et de I’Arsénal. — Cafés, Caré
Frangais, Place Colbert; des Voyageurs, corner of Rue Thiers and Rue
Audry de Puyravault; in the Rue des Fonderies, etc. — Post and Telegrapn
Office (P1. B, 3), Rue des Fonderies.

Rochefort, a town and fortress with 33,334 inhab. , situated on
the right bank of the Charente, 9 M. from the sea, is a modern and
regularly built place, containing little to interest the traveller. 7t
Possesses a naval as well as a commercial harbour, which, like the
town itself, were first established by Colbert in 1666.
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The naval harbour and its vast arsenal are the ‘lions’ of Roche-
fort. To reach the entrance,, which is near the end farthest from
the station , we turn to the right on entering the fortifications and
follow the Rue du Rempart and the Rue Thiers to the Rue de I'Ar-
senal. Or we may follow the Rue Begon in a straight direction, and
then turn to the right into the Rue La Touche-Tréville, whence the
Rue Chanzy leads to the Rue de U'Arsenal, at the corner of which is
a small Picture Gallery, with a library. Between the Rue Thiers
and the Rue Chanzy are the Lyceum and Church of St. Louis (P1.B, 3),
two modern buildings, the latter containing some fine stained-glass
windows. Adjacent is the Place Colbert, the centre of the town,
with a fountain.

The *Arsenal and the Dockyard (PL. C, D, 2-6) cannot be visited
without permission, to obtain which foreigners usually require a
letter of introduction from their government countersigned by a
French minister.

The visit takes at least 2 hours. The departments are not always
taken in the same order, and some of the magazines and workshops are
not shown. The Porte du Soleil (PI. C,4) is a handsome structure in
the form of a triumphal arch. To the right are the Offices, eighteen
Building Stips, for vessels of the first rank, an interesting Model
Room, several Store Houses, the Sail and Rigging Workshops, ete.
To the left are Repairing and Graving Docks, Anchors (some of
which weigh from 5 to 6 tons), Projectiles, Torpedos, Cannon, and
a large Salle d’Armes, decorated in a very ingenious fashion with
arms or groups of arms arranged as trophies, columns, etc. A Man
of War, too, is often shown.

Above this part of the arsenal, but outside the enceinte, is the
Naval Préfecture (Pl. C,4), which contains nothing of special interest,
and behind it is the Jardin Public, a fine promenade.

Farther on, to the N.E. of the town, is the Commercial Harbour,
or Cabane Carrée (PL.C, D, 1). It has two floating basins of moder-
ate size, and a much larger one (completed in 1890) higher up the
river. The chief articles of trade at Rochefort are wine, brandy,
grain, cattle, salt, timber, coal, and salt-fish.

£ On the N. side of the town, outside the fortifications, is a large
Naval Hospital (P1. A, B,?2; 800 beds), with a School of Naval Me-
dicine. There is also a very deep artesian well, the water of which
has a temperature of 100° Fahr. In front of the hospital extend the
Cours d’ Ablois and the Counrs Roy-Bry.

From Rochefort to Niort and Poitiers, see p. 21.

FrRoM RocHEFORT 10 LE CrAPUS (1le @ 0Oléron), 251/; M., railway in
3/4-21/4 hrs. (fares 4 fr. 2, 8fr.10¢., 2fr.). — To (7 ﬁ.) Cabariot, see
elow. — 21 M. Marennes (Hét. du Commerce), a small town (5415 inhab.),
amous for its oysters, of which about 25,000,000 are annually exported.
'he ehurch has a 14th eent. Tower, and there are numerous quaint old houses
1 the town. About 3/4 M. to the S. is the small harbour. — From the
'Wn an omnibus (1/5fr.) plies to @/3M.) La Cayenne, whenee a steam-
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ferry (25 ¢.) crosses the Seudre to La Gréve, united by railway with Pons
and Royan (p.59). — From (251/9 M.) Le Chapus a steamer (15 or 60 c.),
crosses to Le Chateau in the Ile d’Oléron.

The Ile d’0léron, which with the Ile de Ré (p. 26) bounds the straits
of Antioche, and is separated from the mainland by the Straits of Mau-
musson, is a flat, fertile, and populous island, measuring 18 M. in length
by 21/5-6 M. in width. Le Chdteau-d’ Oléron (HOt. de France) is a small forti-
fied town with 3458 inhabitants. About 7 M. farther (diligence) is St
Pierre-d’ Oléron, a town of 4556 inhab., with a cemetery containing a pretty
little beacon-tower (‘lanterne des morts’) of the 13th century.

On quitting Rochefort our line describes a considerable curve
to regain the valley of the Charente, leaving the Poitiers line (p. 23)
to the left. — 1331/, M. Tonnay - Charente, a small town with a
harbour on the Charente. — 136 M. Cabariot (branch-line to Le
Chapus, see above). — 140 M. Bords; 146!/, M. St. Savinien-sur- -
Charente. Farther on, to the right, on the opposite bank of the
river, are the chiteaux of Crazannes (13-18th cent.) and Pawlois.

151 M. Taillebourg (Hotel de France), a little town where St.
Louis defeated the English in 1242. By the treaty of Brétigny (1360)
it was assigned to the latter, but was recovered from them by Bertrand
du Gueselin in 1372. It is overlooked by the ruins of its Castle,
built on a sheer rock. We here join the line from Paris to Bordeaux
via Niort (p. 23).

157 M. Saintes (Buffet; Hotel des Messageries, Hot. du Com-
merce, both in the Rue des Messageries, to the left of the Cours
National), a town of 18,464 inhab., the ancient capital of the San-
tones and afterwards of the Saintonge, is prettily situated on the
left bank of the Charente. It was in great favour with the Romans
after their conquest of Gaul, and still possesses the remains of
several structures erected at that period.

Leaving the station we turn first to the left and then to the right,
and follow the Avenue Gambetta, crossing a suburb in which, within
a barrack-yard , stands the old and interesting monastic church of
Notre-Dame, dating from the 11-12th cent., but now in a dila-
pidated condition and no longer used for service. Over the crossing
rises a fine steeple, composed of a square tower, with three arcades
on each face, which is surmounted by a drum with twelve double
arcades, the whole ending in a conical roof with fish-scale orna-
mentation. The church of S¢. Palais, at the entrance to the barracks,
with its main portal concealed by a porch, dates from the 12-13th
centuries.

The town proper is entered by a stone bridge, to the left of
which is a marble statue, by F. Talhuet (1868), of Bernard Pa-
lissy, who was born at Saintes in 1510. The old Roman bridge,
which formerly crossed the river here, was pulled down in 1844;
and the Triumphal Arch which stood upon it was removed and
re-erected lower down, among the trees. The arch, erected in the
reign of Augustus in honour of Germanicus, consists of two semi-
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circular archways, each 13 ft. in span, and is decorated with pi-
lasters and engaged columns with Corinthian capitals.

On the other side of the bridge begins the Cours National, the
principal street of the town. The Rue d’Alsace-Lorraine, on the
left, leads to the old cathedral, the great tower of which is con-
spicuous. On the way to it we pass, on the right, the Old Hotel
de Ville, a Renaissance building with a small tower, containing
the Public Library.

The Church of St. Pierre, the ancient cathedral, is supposed to
have been founded by Charlemagne, but it has been twice rebuilt,
and dates in its present form from the end of the 16th century.
The tower, however, with the exception of the cupola at the top,
is a remnant of the second building, dating from the 15th cent. ;
and the arms of the transept are of the 12th century. Below the
tower is a fine doorway in the florid Gothic style. The nave, with
its large round pillars without capitals and its flat arches, is some-
what heavy. The small cupolas of the transept also belonged to the
old building.

Farther to the right is the Hotel de Ville, with a small Musée
of paintings (adm. on application). The concierge of the Hétel de
Ville also opens the Musée d’Antiquités, containing fragmentary
sculptures, inscriptions, etc.

Retracing our steps to the Cours National, we continue to follow
it towards the centre of the town. On a hill to the left stood a
Roman building called the Capitol (?), which was destroyed during
the wars with the English. Its site is occupied by a hospital, and
mothing remains of the Roman building but some fragments of the
walls. We now turn to the left into the Cours Reverseaux, which
leads through the hollow with the amphitheatre (to the right; p.32).

The Church of St. Eutropius, farther to the right, is of very an-
cient foundation, but was rebuilt in the 11th cent. and altered in
the 15th, and again, like the cathedral, after the Religious Wars,
The fine stone spire was also added in the 15th century. Nothing
has been left of the old nave, the present one being made up of
the old choir, in the Transition style, and part of the transept.
The capitals of the columns and the vaulting of the aisles should
be noticed. The present choir is of the 15th cent. and contains some
modern statues of the Apostles under old canopies. Below the
church there is a large and fine Romanesque Crypt of the {1th
cent., consisting of a nave and aisles with three chapels, the cen-
tral one of which has been rebuilt and transformed into a sacristy.
This crypt is lighted by windows and is entered directly from the
street. Behind its chief altar is the tomb of St. Eutropius, the first
bishop of Saintes, who suffered martyrdom here in the 3rd cen-
ury. It has recently been restored. The capitals in the erypt also

eserve notice.
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In a hollow near St. Eutrope, to the right, are the ruins of the
oman Amphitheatre, dating from the 1st or 2nd century A. D.
'hey are reached by the street in a straight direction, or (better) by
lane near the church, at the end of which we turn to the left. The
mphitheatre was oval in form, measuring 436 ft. by 354 ft., and
as capable of holding 20-22,000 spectators. There was but one
er of arches, inclined towards the arena, and one ‘prazcinctio’, or
)bby, with three flights of steps. Of its 74 arches nine only remain
1 more or less good preservation. The services of the guide are
ot needed unless the visitor wishes to inspect the interior of the
rches and galleries. A street on the other side of the hollow takes
s back to the Cours Reverseaux (p. 31).

From Saintes to Niort, see p. 23; to Angouléme, p. 12.

164 M. Chaniers, with a Romanesque church, visible to the
ght. The train now crosses the Charente, quits its valley, and as-
ends that of the Seugne. — At (1621/, M.) Beillant (Buffet) the line
) Angouléme diverges (p. 13). — 167 M. Montils-Colombier.

172 M. Pons (Buffet ; Hotel St. Charles), a town of 4615 inhab.,
, prettily placed on a hill rising from the Seugne, 1/; M. to the
ght of the line. It has still some remains of ancient ramparts and
s dominated by a Keep of the 12th century. The adjacent Hétel
e Ville was formerly the chiteau; it dates from the 15-16th cent.
nd is partly built on semicircular arches. There is also a pleasant
ardin Public. The river banks here are very picturesque.

From Poxs 170 RoyAN, 29 M., railway in 11/4-81/4hrs. — From (281/5 M.)
1ujon, the sixth station, a town with 3132 inhab., on the Seudre, a braneh-
ne runs to (131/; M.) La Tremblade (see below). — 29 M. Royanr, see p. 59.

From Poxs 1o LA GRBVE (Ronce-les-Bains), 38 M., railway in 2-23/4 hrs.
To (231/5 M.) Saujon, see above. — 37 M. La Tremblade (France; Cheval
anc), a small town surrounded by salt-marshes and sand-dunes, 13/4 M.
om which is the sea-bathing place of Ronce-les-Bains (H6t. du Grand
1alet). — 88 M. ZLa Gréve, port of La Tremblade, on the Seudre, facing
arennes (p.29) and not far from the Straits of Maumusson (p. 30

1771/ M. Mosnac-St. Genis; 180 M. Clion-sur-Seugne.

1831/, M. Jonzac (Ecu), a town with 3434 inhab., on the Seugne,
ith a castle of the 14-18th centuries. — 189 M. Fontaine-Ozillac ;
)2 M. Tugéras - Chartuzac, in a barren sandy district. 197 M.
lontendre, a country-town situated on a hill to the right, with a
stored keep of the 12th cent.; 205 M. Bussac. — From (208 M..) St.
[ariens (Buffet) a branch-line runs to (151/, M.) Blaye (p. 59).

Beyond (210 M.) Cavignac the line to Coutras (p. 14) diverges

the left. 214 M. Gawriaguet; 217 M. Aubie-St. Antoine.

219 M. St. André-de- Cubzac, a small industrial town with a
ndsome modern chiteau.

From Sr. ANDRE-DE-CUBZAC T0 BLAYB AND Sr. CIERs-LALANDE, 33 M.,
al railway, on the right bank of the Dordogne, then of the Gironde.

8 M. Bourg-sur-Gironde, an ancient little town, with quarries and
ebrated vineyards. 15 M. Plassac is also noted for its wine. 181/ M.
aye (p. 59). — The line now quits the Gironde and runs via St. Martin,

Seurin, Eyrans-Carteléque, ete., all noted for wine, to (33 M.) St.
rs- Lalande.
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Beyond (220 M.) Cubzac-les-Ponts the train traverses a viaduct,
11/, M. in length, including a *Bridge over the Dordogne, 620 yds.
long and 72 ft. high. The piers on the banks of the river go down
95 ft. below high - water mark and 75 ft. below the river-bed. The
road from Paris to Bordeaux also passes near this point, to the left,
crossing the river by a splendid iron and stone bridge nearly 1 M.
long, which replaces a suspension-bridge, partly destroyed by a
hurricane in 1870. The Dordogne joins the Garonne a little way
to the right, at the Bec d’Ambés (p. 39), and the two together form
the Gironde. The tract between the Dordogne and the Garonne is
known as Entre-deux-Mers. — 2231/, M. La Grave-d’ Ambarés.

Crossing the line from Paris to Bordeaux (p. 15) we pass (226 M.)
Carbon - Blane and (230 M.) Bordeaux - Benauge and ecross the
Garonne by the bridge mentioned on p. 15, obtaining a fine view
on the right of Bordeaux and its harbour.

232 M. Bordeaux (Gare St. Jean), see p. 46.

b. Vii Challans and La Rochelle.

253 M. RAILWAY in 103/4-161/, hrs. (fares same as via Clisson). The
trains start from the Gare @ Orléans, but stop also at the Gare de I’Elat.
Arrival at the Gare St. Jean, p. 46.

Nantes, see Baedeker's Northern France. — The train crosses
several arms of the Loire. 33/, M. Pont-Rousseau; 41/, M. Les
Landes; 5!/, M. Bouguenais; 9 M. Bouaye. To the left is the Lac
de Grand-Liew, in form almost oval, 51/, M. long by 3%/, M. wide,
but very shallow, in the midst of meadows which it overflows in
winter. — 13 M. Port-St. Pére.

At (16%/, M.) Ste. Pasanne the line to Paimbemuf and Pornic
diverges on the right (see Baedeker's Northern France). 251/, M,
Machecoul. Near (30 M.) Bois-de-Céné we enter the Vendée., —
331/, M. La Garnache.

37 M. Challans (Gautier), a small commercial town.

A Divieexce plies from Challans to (23 M.) Noirmoutier (51/ fr.),
passing (11 M.) Beauvoir-sur-Mer, — The flat and sandy Island otzlloir-
moutier, 51/o M. from Beauvoir, is separated from the mainland by a
narrow channel (2 M.) which is dry at low tide. The greater part of its
surfaece is below the level of high tides and requires to be protected by
dykes, but there are some picturesque rocks at its N. end. It is 11 M.
long and 4 M. wide at the widest part, and contains some fertile ground
and several salt-marshes. In 1793-94 the possession of the island was
vigorously disputed by the Vendeans and the Republicans, and it was
he;e ghat D’Elbée, the commander-in-chief of the former, was taken
and shot.

Noirmoutier (Hoétel du Lion-d’0r), the chief town of the island, has
6120 inhab. and a small fortress. About 11/4 M. to the N.E. is the sea-
bathing resort of Za Chaise, near whiech are woods of pines and evergreen
oaks. La Chaise is only 10 M. distant from Pornie (see Baedeker’s North-
ern France), which lies opposite it, on the mainland.

A DiriceENce (31/5 fr.) also plies from Challans to La Barre-de-Monts
and (151/5 M.) Fromentine, the starting-place of the steamer for (2 hrs.) the
Ile d’Yeu. — The Ile d’Yeu or Dieu, a small fortified island, 6 M. long and
21/3 M. broad, with 3426 inhab., lies 18 M. from the mainlang. The coast

Baedeker. South-Western France. 2nd Edit.
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very roeky on the W., but easily aceessible on the E, where lies the
arbour of Port-Joinville (HOt. Camaret). The chief town is Si. Sauveur,
. the centre of the island.

41 M. Soullans; 441/, M. Commequiers, a large yillage with a
astle, a menhir, and two dolmens.

A branch-railway runs hence to (8 M.) S, Gilles-sur-Vie (Malescot), a
mall seaport and bathing-place. Opposite is Croiz-de- Vie, a small fishing -
ort.

Our line now crosses the Vie. 47 M. St. Maixent-sur- Vie ;

1 M. Coéx; H8 M. Aizenay, a town with 4170 inhabitants. Beyoud
33 M.) La Genétouzewe join the line from Nantes vid Clisson (p. 26),
nd that from Tours to Les Sables-d’Olonne (R. 2).

69 M. La Roche-sur-Yon (p. 19). Hence to (263 M.) Bordeawa,
ee p. 27.

5. From Orléans (Paris) to Bordeaux vid Périgneux.

313 M. RAILWAY in 143/4-191/, hrs. (fares 61 fr. 40, 46 fr. 10, 33 fr.
5e¢.). — From Orléans to Bordeaux via Tours, see R. 1.

1. From Orléans to Limoges.

173 M. RaiLwAy in 5-93/4 hrs. (fares 31 fr. 70, 21 fr. 40¢c., 14 fr.). —
‘rom Paris, 248 M., in 7-133/4 hrs. (fares 44 fr. 90, 30 fr. 35, 19 fr. 80 c.).

Orléans, see p. 3 and Baedeker’s Northern France. — Beyond
{1/4 M.) Les Aubrais we quit the Paris and Bordeaux line, skirt the
(. side of Orléans, and cross the Loire (good view of the town to the
ight). 7 M. St. Oyr-en-Val. — 131/, M. La Ferté-St. Aubin, on
he right, a very ancient town of 3341 inhab., with a church of the
2th cent. and a chateau of the 17th century. — 19 M. Vouzon. —
31/, M. La Motte-Beuvron, on the Beuvron and the Canal de la
auldre, possesses a chiteau of the 16-17th cent., which has been
onverted into an agricultural station. Branch-line to Blois, see
3aedeker’s Northern France. We now enter the plateau of the
ologne.

The Sologne, which occupies an area of about 2000 sq. M., was down
y 1860 a sterile and marshy region. The number of ponds in it was
sckoned at 1200; and the total number of inhab. did not reach 100,000, less
an 50 per sq. M. Previously it had been a flourishing and well-peopled
istriet; its ruin dates from the Religious Wars and the Revoeation of
1e Edict of Nantes, which caused numerous Protestant families to leave it.
overnment and an agricultural association for the purpose have done
wch to render it healthy and to restore its ancient prosperity, especially

y the planting of pines on an extensive scale and by the eonstruction of
yads and canals. The population has already inereased 50 per cent.

Beyond (271/, M.) Nouan-le- Fuselier wecross the Grande-
auldre. — 35 M. Salbris, a commercial and industrial town con-
ining a church with fine stained glass. Beyond (42!/, M.) Theillay,
e train passes through a tunnel 1345 yds. long, with 34 air-shafts
1d traverses the Forest of Vierzon. s

49 M. Vierzon (Buffet; Hot. des Messageries; du Boeuf), an in-
nstl;'ial town of 10,559 inhab., situated on the Cher and the Canar
w Berry. -
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From Vierzox 1o Tours, 70 M., railway in 21/5-31/, hrs. (fares 12 fr. 65,
81fr. 55, 5 fr. 55 ¢.). This line (for details, see Baedeker’s Northern France)
descends the valley of the Cher. Best views to the left. — 10 M. Mennetou-
sur-Cher, with ramparts of the 13th ecentury. — From (151/5 M.) Ville-
Jranche-sur-Cher a branch-line runs to Blois, passing (b M.) iomonntin
(Lion-d’0r), a cloth and linen manufacturing town of 7800 inhab., on the
Grande Sauldre. From (26 M.) Selles-sur-Cher (Lion-d’Or) a diligenee (13/4 fr.)
runs to Valeneay (Hét. d’Espagne), noted for its magnificent Renaissance
*Chdteau, which belonged to Prince Talle rand, and was the place of
retirement of Ferdinand VIL. of Spain from 1 to 1814. — 35 M. St. Aignan,
a little town, 11/4 M. to the S., with a chiteau of the 13-16th eenturies, —
46 M. Montrichard, a small town, with a fine ehurch of the 13th century.
Beyond it, to the left, is the Chateau of Chenonceaux.

50 M. Chenonceaux (Hétel du Bon - Laboureur), a village with a cele-
brated *CuAtEAv, in the Gothic and Renaissance styles, built on piles in
the bed of the Cher. To reach the latter, we pass through the village
which is 1/5 M. from the station (omnibus). Beyond the first eourt we
reach a Keep of the 15th cent., where we apply for admission (open Tues.
and Thurs., 2-4). The chief fagade (beginning of the 16th cent.) is elabo-
rately and tastefully ornamented. The most interesting parts of the
interior are the Dining Hall and the Chapel, on the ground - floor, and
the Store-room and the Kitchen in two large piers of the bridge. A less
ancient Bridge supports a two-storied building of very singular appearance
erected by Diana of Poitiers at a somewhat later date. The first story
is fitted up as a picture gallery.

661/5 M. St. Pierre-des-Corps, where we join the Orléans line. — 70 M.
Tours (see p. 4 and Baedeker’s Northern France).

We now leave the Bourges line (R. 35) on the left and cross the
Cher and then the Arnon. 58!/, M. Chéry. Among the numerous
chiteaux seen on the right the most striking is that of La Ferte-
Reuilly (17th cent.), beyond (61 M.) Rewilly. The line now follows
the valley of the Théols to (67 M.) Ste. Lizaigne.

7 M. Issoudun (Hitel de France), a town of 13,564 inhab.,
situated on a declivity to the left, and surrounded by vineyards. The
town sustained several sieges by the English in the Middle Ages and
one by the army of the Fronde in 1651, which have left very few of

its houses standing.

Turning to the left on leaving the station and then to the right,
we reach the Place du Marché, in which is the modern Palais de
Justice and a 16th cent. Town Gate. A little to the left is the
Hbtel de Ville, in the garden of which is the Tour Blanche, a keep
of the beginning of the 12th cent., 88 ft. high. The Musée in the
Hotel de Ville is open daily 9-4, except Mon. and Frid.

The Rue de la République leads from the Place du Marché to
St. Cyr, an uninteresting Gothic church with a fine large ancient
stained - glass window. — Notre-Dame-du-Sacré-Coewr, a little
farther on, is a modern and tasteless Gothic building (closed).

A branch -railway runs hence to (15 M.) St. Florent (p. 225) via the
little town of (71/5 M.) Chdrost.

79 M. Neuvy-Pailloux. Before reaching Chéteauroux, we cross

the Indre. To the right are the fine towers of Déols (p. 36) and
Chiteauroux.
88 M. Chateauroux (Hitel Ste. Catherine, Place du Marché; de
France; Rue Victor-Hugo; de la Gare, unpretending;3Gmnd Café,
#*
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yue Victor - Hugo), the chief town of the department of the Indre,
rith 23,924 inhab., is situated on the right bank of the Indre. It
s now a manufacturing town of some importance and has been
ruch improved in recent years. Its chief products are woollen stuffs
nd coarse cloth.

The *CHUurCH OF ST. ANDREW, a few minutes walk to the right
f the station, is a fine reproduction of 13th cent. Gothic, built in
864 -75 from the designs of Dauvergne. The W. front is flanked
y two towers with stone spires. The aisles have galleries above
hem and side-chapels opening off them. The interior contains
ome fine stained glass by Lobin of Tours and others; alarge wrought—
ron chandelier by Larchevéque, of Mehun, near Bourges; and a
tone organ-loft.

A little farther on, to the right, is the Place Lafayette (see below)
nd, to the left, the Place Gambetta with the T'heaire. The Rue Victor—
Tugo, behind this building, leads to the Place du Marché and the
Fotel de Ville, the latter containing a small Museum, open to
he public on Sun. from 1 to 4, and to strangers on other days also.
[he entrance is on the other side.

Room I. Engravings, drawings, ete. — Room II. To the right: 46.
olenaer, The fortune-teller; 35. Van Goyen, Sea-piece; 15. Le Bourguignon,
Javalry -charge; 49. Van der Poel, Conflagration; 8. ‘Velvet’ Brueghel,
Holy Family; 26. Franck the Elder, Scenes from the story of Esther; 10.
Bys, Sea-shore; 88. Unknown Master, Virgin, on a gold ground; 70. Flemish
School, Sea-piece; 39. Largilliére, Portrait; 6. Bouts, Procession; 80. Un-
noun Artist, Descent from the Cross; 9. ‘Hell-fire’ Brueghel, Temptation
f St. Anthony. — Roowm III. To the left: 85. Unknown Masier, Esther.
A\t the end of the room is a cast of the Zomb of St. Ludre (original at
Déols, see below). A glass-case contains souvenirs of Napoleon I. and
\is friend General Bertrand, a native of Chiteauroux. In another glass-
ase in the centre are some fine enamels and medals.

Norre-DAME, in the street that descends in front of the Hotel
le Ville, is another handsome modern church in the Romanesque
tyle, with a dome surmounted by a gilt figure of the Virgin, a
ower over the W. front, and fine stained-glass windows.

Near this point is the CoATeaAu Raovun (Chiteauroux), an edifice
f the 14 -15th cent., now used as the Préfecture. It occupies the
iite of an earlier castle which gave its name to the town. To see
t properly we must descend to the bank of the Indre by the Rue
le 1a Manufacture, passing in front of Notre-Dame.

The Rue Grande, beyond the Hotel de Ville, leads to St. Martial,
in old church of little interest, and terminates at the other end of
he Place Lafayette. The latter is adjoined by the Place Ste. Héléne,
vhich is embellished with a Statue of General Bertrand (1773-
844), in bronze, by Rude.

Déols, 3/4 M. from Chiteauroux, reached by a pleasant road begin-
ing at the Place Lafayette, possesses the ruins of a once notorious
bbey, consisting of the fine Tower of the interesting Romanesque chudeh
nd some fragments of seulpture (to the right on entering the village).

arther on, to the left, is a Gateway of the 15th eent., with two round
ywers. Beyond this stands the Church of St. Stephen, the crypt of which,
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to the right of the choir, contains the Zomb of St. Ludre, with bas-reliefs
dating from the earliest centuries of the Christian era (copy in the Cha-
teauroux Museum, see p. 36). The chureh also possesses some paintings,
which, though of no intrinsie value, are interesting as giving views of
the ancient abbey.

From CriteEAUROUX TO ToURS, 73 M., railway in 23/4-31/; hrs. (fares
13 fr. 80, 8 fr. 90, 5 fr. 80 ¢.). — This line follows the valley of the Indre. —
16 M. Buzancais, which is to be eonnected by another line with Le Blane
(p- 10). — 21 M. Palluau-St. Genou. The former contains a ruined chateau,
seen in the distance to the right; the latter, an interesting Abbey Church
of the 11th century. Near (26 M.) Ze Clion, to the right, is the Chdteau de
Ulle-Savary. The Indre is then erossed several times. — 31 M. Chatillon-
sur-Indre, which has also a ruined castle, with a keep of the 12th cen-
tury. As we approach Loches we have a fine view , to the left, of its
keep and chiteau. To the right is the steeple of Beaulieu (see below).

44 M. Loches (Hétel de la Promenade), a town with 5132 inhab., pie-
turesquely situated on the left bank of the Indre, possesses a celebrated
castle, the ancestral home of the Plantagenets. At the entrance to the
town rises the ZTower of St. Antoine, a fine remnant of a 16th ecent.
church. Following the Rue de la Grenouillére in a straight direction,
we see on the left the Porte Picoys, an erection of the 15th cent., through
which we pass to the Hotel de Ville, a pleasing building in the Renais-
sance style. Farther on, to the right, is the Rue du Chiteau, containing
some interesting houses of the Renaissanee period.

The castle, which had a fortified enceinte of about 11/4 M. in extent,
resembles a little town. The first street on the left leads to the eollegiate
*CHURCH oF St. Ours, a very interesting relic of the 12th century. The
nave consists of two square divisions, divided by a plain Gothie arch,
and each surmounted by a lofty octagonal eupola without windows. The
Romanesque W. doorway is richly moulded and sculptured , and under
the porech in front of it is a holy-water basin made out of an old altar,
also adorned with seulptures. Adjoining the church is the Royar PALACE,
a building of the 15-16th cent., with a fine facade, now the Sous-Préfec-
ture. In one of the towers of the fagade is the Monument of Agnes Sorel
(d. 1450), mistress of Charles VIL, formerly in the church, and in another
part of the palace is the pretty Oratory of Amme of Bretagne (d. 1514),
wife of Charles VIIL. and of Louis XII. — The ancient *Kegp or Doxgox,
at the other end of the enceinte, is the most interesting part of the
upper town. To the left, on entering, is the Keep i)roper, a reetangular
tower of the 12th cent., 82 ft. long, 46 ft. wide, and 130 ft. high, of which

-the walls alone remain. To the right of the keep is the Martelet, in one
of the dungeons in which Lodovieo Sforza, Duke of Milan (d. 1510), was
imprisoned for nine years by Louis XIL; it contains some inseriptions
and his portrait done by himself. Still more to the right is the Round
or New Tower, which confained the famous iron cages in which Louis XI,
confined Cardinal de la Balue, the inventor, the historian Philip de Com-
ines, ete. —In the street below by the side of the Indre, near the tower
of St. Antoine, stands the Porte des Cordeliers, of the 15th eentury. On the
opposite bank of the river is Beaulieu, with its fine Romanesque abbey-
church. — A branch-line runs hence to Montresor and Ligueil. The former
contains a Renaissance chiteau and a fine chureh of the same period.

561/5 M. Cormery, with a fine spire. — 63 M. Montbazon, dominated
by the huge keep of a castle whiech dates back to the 11th century. On
the top is a modern statue of the Virgin. — 691/s M. Joué-les- Tours
(p- 15). — T3 M. Tours (see p. 4 and Baedeker’s Northern France).

From CHATEAUROUX ToO MoxtLugoN, 65 M., railway in 3 hrs. (fares 11 fr.
85, Tfr. 95, 5fr. 15 ¢.). — Ascending the valley of the Indre we reach
(8 M.) Ardentes, a little village to the right, with a partly Romanesque
church. — 15 M. Mers; 20 M. Nohant, with a chitean formerly inhabited by
George Sand (see p. 38).

22 M. La Chatre (*Hotel St. Germain or Descrosses, Rue Nationale), a
commercial and industrial town with 5048 inhab., on the left bank of the
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ydre. In a square 1/ M. from the station is a fine marble Statue of
eorge Sand, the famous authoress (Baroness Dudevant, 1804-76) , by
. Millet. Proceeding thence to the left, we reach the Church, which
ontains some fine modern glass and a painting by Heim. To the left,
eyond the church, is a square Zower, a relic of the chiteau of La
hatre, and farther on lies the fine Promenade de I’Abbaye, overlooking
he valley.

Beyond La Chitre, on the right, we pass the Chdteau de la Motte-
euilly, which dates from the 12th century. We then quit the valley
nd aseend towards a plateau where chestnuts are extensively grown. —
{ M. Champillet -Urciers, a large station where a branch-line to (231/5 M.)
.avaud - Franche (p.228), vid (20 M.) Boussac, diverges on the right. —
51/o M. Chdteaumeillant, a town with 3892 inhab., with an interesting
hateau and chureh, sitnated in a finely wooded distriet. Beyond (42 M.)
‘ulan, to the left, is a small lake. The train then crosses two viaduects,
he second of which is very high. — 481/5 M. St. Désiré, with a noteworthy
2omanesque church (to the left); 511/ M. Courcais. Extensive view to
he left. Farther on, in the valley of the Cher, we join first the Bourges,
hen the Guéret line. — 65 M. Montlugon, see p. 227,

951/, M. Luant, in the Brenne, a district in parts marshy and
sterile. Beyond (99 M.) Lothiers the train passes through some
suttings and a tunnel 2/3 M. long and crosses a viaduct, which
\ffords a striking view of the valley of the Bouzanne, which we
soon cross, and of the magnificent 15th cent. chéteau of (104 M.)
Chabenet.

107!/, M. Argenton (Buffet; Hotel de la Promenade), a little
cown (6270 inhab.) on the Creuse, the Argentomagus of the Romans.
We turn to the left on quitting the station. The Creuse is here
spanned by two bridges, near the second of which are several quaint
yld houses. Of the castle, destroyed after the war of the Fronde,
ynly a few scanty remains are now extant. — Branch-line to Le
Blanc and (76 M.) Poitiers see p. 10.

About 11/4 M. to the N. is St. Marcel, a small town of 2570 inhab.,
‘ormerly walled, with an interesting church of the Transition period. —
(n the pretty Valley of the Bouzanne, which is traversed by the road from
Argenton to Chateauroux vii St. Mareel, about 4 M. from the latter town,
wre several castles, some in ruins, but others still inhabited. About 1/5 M.
below the road, on the right bank, is the Castle of Rocherolles. At the
;ame distanee above the road, also on the right bank, are the ruins of
Prunget; 11/4 M. farther on, on the left bank, are those of Mazidres, on the
site of a Celtie- Roman town. Still farther on, on the right bank, are
‘he castles of Broutay (2 M.) and Plessis (1/g M.).

The Valley of the Creuse, above Argenton, also displays some fine scenery.
The village of Gargilesse (Hotel Chamblant), T1/3 M. from Argenton, by the
right bank of the Creuse (a fine walk), possesses a Transition chureh, with
v fine erypt, wall-paintings of the 13th cent., and a curious old tomb.
Adjacent is a ruined castle. About 2 M. to the W., on the left bank of
he Creuse, are the remains of the castle of La Prune-au-Pot.

Near (1131/, M.) C¢€lon, to the right we see an old castle with
machicolated towers. — 120 M. Eguzon (HOt. de France), about
11/, M. to the E. Omnibus to Crozant (see below), 6 M. to the S.E.
About 3 M. to the N. is the ruined castle of Chateaubrun, on the
ight bank of the Creuse. — Station of La Chapelle-Baloue.

About 21/ M. to the E. lies Crozant (Hot. du Rendez - Vous des Touristes).
On a rugged and sheer promontory, at the confluence of the Sédelle and
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the Creuse, stands the picturesque ruined *Castle (adm., 50 c.), a medieval
fortress the history of which is almost unknown.

From (125 M.) St. Sébastien (Buffet), a branch-line runs to
(281/, M.) Guéret (p. 228). — 129 M. Forgevieille.

1361/, M. La Souterraine (Hot. de France), a town with 4770
inhab., still possessing a fortified gate of the 16th cent. and a very
interesting Romanesque and Gothic church. In the cemetery is a
Lanterne des Morts, a kind of tower in which a lamp was formerly
kept burning through the night.

We next pass through a tunnel, 2/; M. long, piercing the granite
rock which forms the groundwork of the plain extending from
Argenton to Thiviers (p. 42), about 40 M. beyond Limoges.

142 M. Fromental, with a chiteau. Farther on our line is joined
on the right by that from Poitiers (p- 9) and crosses a viaduet,
615 ft. long and 174 ft. high, with two tiers of arches. Fine view of
the valley of the Gartempe. — 149 M. Bersac. The railway skirts
(on the right) the wooded hills of the Echelles (2250 ft.) and threads
a tunnel piercing the central chain of the Limousin.

153 M. St. Sulpice- Lauritre (Buffet), a picturesque village sur-
rounded with mountains, 1/, M. from the station. From St. Sulpice
to Poitiers, see p. 9; to Guéret, Montlugon, etc., see p. 229.

Oar line next passes through a tunnel, 1/y M. long, into the
valley of the Vienne. 157 M. La Jonchére. — 162 M. Ambasae, with
3670 inhab. and a church, in the Romanesque and Gothic styles,
containing a beautiful Shrine of 8t. Etienne de Muret in gilt and
enamelled copper (12th cent.) and a dalmatic (deacon’s garment)
given by the Empress Matilda, wife of Henry V. of Germany (d.
1125). — The train now passes through two tunnels and reaches
(166 M.) Les Bardys-St. Priest, beyond which it crosses a viaduect
111 ft. high. — 173 M. Limoges (Buffet).

Bt i Frn

Limoges. — Railway Stations, Gare des Bénédictins (P1. D,2, 8), the
centralfstation ; Gare de Montjovis (P1. A, 2), for the line to Angouléme,
communicating with the former.

Hotels. *GRAND-HOTEL DE LA Parx (PL. a; C,4), Place Jourdan, R., L.,
& A.3-6, B. 11/4, déj. 3, D. 315, omn. 1/, fr.: Rricmeniev (PL.b; A, 4,
Place d’Aine; BouLe p'Or (Pl.e; A,3), Boulevard Victor-Hugo; Graxp
HOT. VEYRIRAS (Pl.e; A,3), Rue Montmailler 29-33, near the Gare de
Montjovis, well spoken of, R., L., & A. 23/4-83/4, B. 1, déj. 21/3, D. 81/,
omn. 1/s fr.; CAILLAUD, Place Jourdan, next door to the Hotel de la Paix,
R, L,&A.2 D. 3, omn. 1/, fr.

Restaurant, Zaverne du Lion-d’Or, Place de la République. — Cafés,
De la Paiz, ete., in the Place de la République ; de I’Univers, de la Division,
Place Jourdan.

Cab for 1-2 pers.,;er drive 1 fr., per hr. 11/, fr.; for 3-4 pers. 11/,
r 2 fr.; at night 11/, s Or 21/5 fr, — ramways traverse the Boulevards.

Post and Telegraph Office (P1. B, 3), Boulevard de la Pyramide 7.

American Consular Agent: My, Waiter 7. Grifien.

The Churches are elosed from midday to 2 p. m., according to a custom
mmon in the S. of France.

Limoges, the ancient capital of the Limousin, now the chief

wn of the department of the Haute Vienne, the headquarters
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of the 4th army corps, and the seat of a bishopric, rises in the
form of an amphitheatre from the right bank of the Vienne. Pop.
72,697. Although the town has been greatly improved since its for-
tifications were demolished in the last century, especially of late years,
during which its population has more than doubled, the older
quarters still contain numerous narrow, crowded, and tortuous
streets, impracticable for carriages and unfavourable to health.
Many old timber-built houses still exist.

At the time of the Roman conquest this town was the eapital of
the Lemovices, a powerful Gallic tribe, able to send 10,000 men to the
suecour of Alesia. After its incorporation with the Roman empire it had a
senate and abounded in fine buildings, such as temples, theatres, palaces,
publie baths, ete., of which, however, scarcely any trace remains. St. Mar-
tial, the patron-saint of the Limousin, first preached the Gospel here.
The town preserved a part of its importance down to the Middle Ages,
but unfortunately it formed two distinet towns, often at rivalry with each
other, and it suffered much during the English wars, especially in 1370,
when it was taken and sacked. The Religious Wars, plague, and famine
desolated it afresh in the 16th cent., and in 1630-31 it again suffered from
a terrible visitation of the plague. Under the administration of Zwurgot
(d. 1781) it began to revive, but a terrible fire eonsumed nearly 200 of
its houses in 1790. Of the numerous other fires from which it has suffered
the most disastrous was that of 1864.

Limoges is well known as the birthplace of the greatest masters in
the art of enamelling, which seems to have flourished here as early as
the 12th cent. and reached its culminating period in the second halif of
the 16th century. The most famous masters were Nardon Pénicaud,
Léonard Limousin, Jéan and Pierre Courtays, Pierre Reymond, and Noél
Laudin. At the present day the porcelain of Limoges is highly prized,
and the kaolin, or china-clay, prepared here, is exported to America and
other countries. Admission is easily obtained to one of the numerous
porcelain manufactories in the town, which employ about 5000 workmen
and produce about 20 million pieces a year. Limoges has also thread
and textile manufactories, large shoe and sabot-making workshops, ete.

The Gare des Bénédictins or d'Orléans (Pl. D, 2, 3) is in the
lower part of the town, near the Place Jourdan and the cathedral.
On the right, above it, is the Champ-de-Juillet (Pl. C,2,3), a large
square, to the N. and W. of which lies an extensive modern quarter.

The Place Jourdan (Pl. C,3,4) is adorned with a bronze Statue
of Marshal Jourdan, a native of Limoges (1762-1838), by Elias
Robert. The first street to the left leads hence to the —

*Cathedral or St. ETIENNE (PL. D, 4), the most important and
interesting building in the district, only recently completed. Tt
occupies the site of a Romanesque church, of which the erypt (see
below) still exists. The foundation dates from 1273 ; the choir was
finished in 1327; the S. portal a little later; the N. portal and two
bays of the nave in the latter half of the 15th century. The remain-
der of the building is partly of the 15th cent. and partly modern.
To the left of the main portal, recently completed , is an octagonal
Spire (200 ft.) rising in three stages from a square and massive
lower story. It is partly Romanesque and partly Gothie in style
and is surmounted with turrets. The N. Portal is very richly
ornamented, but has no statues.
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The INTERIOR presents a very imposing gggearanee. Beneath the organ
is a magnificent Rood Lost, executed in 1 and placed here in 1789.
Its ornamentation, which is of the utmost delicacy, includes, curiously
enougl six bas-reliefs representing the Labours of Hercules. Some of
the Stained - Glass Windows date from the 14th cent., but have been
restored in the 16th cent. and again more recently. In the ehoir are
the interesting, though somewhat dilapidated, Zombs of three bishops:
to the right is the tomb of Raynaud de la Porte (d. 1325); to the left
those of Bernard Brun (d. 1349), and Jean de Lanjeac (d. 1541). The
last has lost its bronze statue, but retains fourteen bas-reliefs represent-
ing the visions of the Apoealypse. — The Crypt¢, under the choir, is at
present inaceessible. — In the Sacristy are some magnificent Enamels by

Noél Laudin.
The streets to the W. of the cathedral lead to the *Hotel de

Ville (P1. C,5), a fine structure in the Renaissance style, built in
1878-1881 by Alfons Leclerc. The Museum of Painting and
Sculpture installed here is not very important though it contains
some interesting antiquities. It is open to the public on Sun., 12-2;
to strangers on other days also.

The Boulevard Gambetta, which ascends hence to the W., marks
the limits of the ancient town. — The old Rue de la Boucherie
(P1. B, 4, 5) is still exclusively occupied by the butchers, whose
guild was formerly very influential in the town. In front of the
little church of S¢. Awurélien is a fine stone cross (15th cent.).

The church of S¢. Michel (P1. B, 4), the spire of which, surmounted
by a ball of disproportionate size, the visitor will have noticed on
arriving, is of the 14-15th cent., with nave and aisles of equal
height and width. It contains some stained-glass windows and
modern paintings.

To the W. of this church in the Place &’ Aine (Pl. A, 4) with
the Statue of Gay Lussac (1778-1850), the chemist, erected in 1890.
Here also is the Palais de Justice. This building and the Place
d’Orsay, behind it, occupy the site of the Roman amphitheatre.

Adjacent, to the N., lies the extensive Place du Champ-de-Foire,
on the other side of which stands an old hospice, containing pro-
visionally the Musée Céramique (P1. A, 3), one of the chief objects of
interest in Limoges, now belonging to the State. It is open to the
public on Sun. and Thurs. from noon till 4 or 5 o’clock, and to
strangers on other days also. It occupies five rooms and consists

mainly of a collection of porcelain and modern fayence, in which the
ware of Limoges itself is represented to great advantage. — A special
building is to be erected for the museum.

The adjacent Place Denis-Dussoubs (P1. A, B, 3) is named in honour of
a Limousin avoeat, who was killed in Paris before a barracade at the
coup d’état of 1851. His statue was erected here in 1892.

The Rue Turgot, to the E. of the Place du Champ-de-Foire, leads
back to the Place Jourdan, passing near the Place de la République
(P1.B, C, 3, 4), on the S. side of which stands the Theatre (Pl. B, 4).

The Church of St. Peter (St. Pierre; Pl. C, 4), in the Rue Porte
Tourny, to the S. of the Place de la Répubhque, dating chiefly from
the 13th cent., is of irregular shape, with nave and double aisles
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all of the same height. At the end it terminates in a flat wall. T
interior contains at the E. end a fine stained-glass window of t
16th cent. by Pénicaud, representing the Death and Coronati
of the Virgin (to the right), and some good modern windows ]
Oudinot.

To the S. of this church, in the Rue du Collége, is the Lyce
(P1. C, 4), dating substantially from the 17th and 18th centuries. Th
chapel contains an Assumption ascribed to Rubens.

An interesting excursion mo%y be made from Limoges to Solignac an
the Castle of Chalusset, see p. 105.

From Limoges to Angouléme, see p. 13; to Le Dorat and Poitier
see p. 9; to Périgueux, see below; to Toulouse, see R.12.

Froum Limoces 1o UsskrL (Clermont-Ferrand), 71 M., railway in 33/4-4 hr;
(fares 12 fr. 75, 8 fr. 60, 5 fr. 60 c¢.). — The train starts from the Gare de
Bénédictins (p. 39) and ascends the valley of the Vienme. 151/5 M. S
Léonard (Boule d’Or), an old industrial town of 6000 inhab., has a Roman
esque church of the 11-12th centuries. — 32 M. Eymoutiers (Hot. Pintou
a busy little town on the Vienne, has a Romanesque church (Gothie choir
with fine old stained glass. — About 3 M. to the S. W. of (451/5 M) Via
is the Saut de la Virole, a very fine cascade formed by the Vézére. — Th
railway now crosses the Vézére, and attains its highest level (3015 ft.). -
At (63 M.) Meymac we join the line from Tulle to Clermont- Ferranc
T1L M. Ussel, see p. 236.

II. From Limoges to Bordeaux via Périgueux,

RALwAy to Périgueuz, 611/y M. in 2-23/4 hrs. (faves 11 fr. 30, 7 fr. b
4fr. 95 ¢.); from Périgueux to Bordeaux, 79 M. in 23/4-51/4 hrs. (fare
14 fr. 30, 9 fr, 60, 6 fr. 25 c.).

The line passes under the town by a tunnel 1115 yds. in length
TM. Beynac; 12!/, M. Nexzon, a place of 3155 inhab., with a chure
of the 12th and 15th and a chateau of the 16th century. Line t
Toulouse vid Brive, see RR. 15, 16. — 171/, M. Lafarge. Fine viey
to the left. From (231/, M.) Bussiére-Galant a branch-line diverge
to Saillat (p. 13). Beyond (30 M.) La Coquille we traverse moorlan
and pass through a short tunnel.

381/, M. Thiviers (Hotel Lambert), a small and prettily situate
commercial town (pop. 3765), with a Romanesque church of th
12th cent. and the fine Renaissance Chdteau de Vococour.

Branch-line to Angouléme vii Nontron, see P- 18. This line is bein;
extended to (49 M.) Brive, via (121/y M.) Ezcideuil (p. 45) and (20 M.
Hautefort, with a chiteau of the 16-17th eenturies. — Agrc've, see p. 106.

After passing through another tunnel we reach (45 M.) Négronde.
and (511/; M.) Agonac, the latter with a Romanesque-Byzantin
church. — 56 M. Chdteau-U Evéque, so named from its chateau,
building of the 14th cent., which was once the residence of the
bishops of Périgueux.

TRAMWAY vid Chancelade to Brantéme and St. Pardouz, see p. 45.

-The train now crosses the Beauronne several times , describes
a wide curve to the left, and enters the valley of the Isle. The line
to Bordeaux runs to the right, crossing the Isle.

611/, M. Périgueux. — Hotels. Hotxr pb Fraxcs (PL. a; D, 3), Place
Francheville; pes MEssAGERIEs, same Place (Pl. b), R., L., & A. 4-5, déj.
2/s, D. 3, omn. 1/, fr.; bp L'Uxivers (Pl e; D,3), Rue de Bordeaux; pu
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tories (the first with pilasters, the second with columns), a circular
tory surrounded by a colonnade, and, lastly, a kind of dome covered
vith fish-scale ornamentation (like Notre-Dame at Saintes, p. 30).

The Rue St. Front, which leads to the right, passing in front of
he Freemasons’ Lodge, a noteworthy modern edifice, ends to the
N. of the cathedral at the Cours Tourny (PL.E,F, 1), a fine prome-
1ade planted with trees, and containing the Museum, the Préfecture,
nd a statue of Fénelon.

The Museum (PL F, 1), to the right, is open to the public on
Sun. and Thurs. from 1 to 4 p. m.

Grouxp-FrLoor. Room I. Roman sculptures, inscriptions, and archi-
ectonic fragments; modern seulptures. — Room II. Antique inseriptions,
‘ases, glass, ete.; prehistoric remains; medieval arms; bronzes; fine
tenaissance chimney-piece. — FirsT Froor. Chief Room. Paintings :
11. 0. Venius, Conception of the Virgin; 22. Bronzino, Portrait; 16. 2.
Bouillon, (Edipus and Antigone; 103. R. Fleury, Death of Montaigne; 5i.
Fuet, Troops returning from the Crimea; 316. Venitian School of the 17th
ent., Venus and Adonis; 104. Rugendas, Fox- hunting; 33. J. L. Dawvid
Mars disarmed by the Graces; 105. I Scheffer, Virgin and Child ; 368. J,
fi. Lafon (of Périgueux), Mary Magdalen at the Sepulehre; 32. Dauzats.
Poledo; 6Y. Labbé, Friday on the Asiatic shores of the Bosphorus; 86,
Maratti, Nativity; 52. Giordano, St. Paul on the way to Damascus; 12.
Bloemaert, Landscape; 56. Guesnet, Roland at Roncevalles. — 135. J. B.
Debay , Bust of Montesquieu; 147. Maillet, Young huntsman (bronze). —
'he glass-cases contain enamels (78. Laudin; 94. Nouailker) and small.
vorks of art. — 130. Bust of Attila, an Italian work of the 16th cent. ;
335. Portrait of Brantome (p. 45). — The Cabinet contains engravings.
lrawings, porcelain, and a few paintings: 24. Carpaccio, Arrival and
\doration of the Magi (sketch); 83. £il. Lippi, Virgin and Child ; 51. Giotto,
Virgin and Child, with saints.

Farther on, at the end of the Cours Tourny, we obtain a fine
iew of the valley of the Isle. To the left rises the Prefecture , a
nodern building in the Italian style. At the opposite end of the
Jours is a bronze Statue of Fénelon, a native of Périgord (1651-
715), by Lanno (1840).

To the left lies the Cours Michel - Montaigne (P1.D,E, 1,2),
vhich extends from this point to the Place Bugeaud (p. 39) and is
he most animated part of the town. It is embellished with statues
f two other illustrious natives of Périgord: Montaigne, the
ssayist (1533-92), also in bronze by Lanno, and General Dawmesnil
1776-1832), in bronze after Rochet.

Returning to the Place Bugeaud, we descend to the left to the
Place Francheville (P1. D, E,3), near which, on the left, rises the
"our Mataguerre (Pl. E,3), a relic of the 15th cent. fortifications.

The street on the other side of the Place Francheville leads to the
hurch of St. Etienne (P1.D,4), in the Cité. This church, which
as the cathedral until 1669, is of almost the same period as St.
ront and resembles it in style, but it has now only two cupolas.
1 the interior is a carved oak reredos, 30 ft. high and 36 ft. wide,
xecutfad by a Jesuit in the 18th cent. and representing the As-
tmption. The pulpit and the frescoes by M. Brucker deserve notice.
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The street to the right, in front of the church, leads to the N.W.
to the ruins of the Amphitheatre (P1. C,3), a Celtic-Roman erection
of the 3rd cent., the only remains of which are a few arches and
fragments of walls, in the middle of a square. The amphitheatre was
about 440 yds. in external, and 290 yds. in internal circumference.

The street running to the S. from the Amphitheatre crosses the
railway by a bridge, whence there is a view of the Chdteaw Barriére
(PL. C, 4), dating from the 10-12th cent., and built on the Roman
fortifications, of which two towers still remain. It was burned by
the Protestants in 1575. The entrance is on the other side. Beyond
this bridge is the Tour Vesone (P1. D, 4), another relic of the Roman
period. This is a cylindrical building, open on one side, which is
supposed to have been the cella of a temple.

From Périgueux to Agen and Tarbes, see R. 14; to Brive, Tulle, Cler-
mont-Ferrand, ete., see p. 105, and R. 36 B. — Grotte de Miremont, see p. 101.

Frox PERIGUEUX To Riskrac, 23 M., railway in 1-11/, hr. (fares 4 fr-
15, 2 fr. 80, 1 fr. 80 ¢.). — 121/, M.’ Lisle, 5 M. to the N. E. of which, in the
valley of the Dronne, is Bourdeilles, which has a curious castle of the
14th and 16th cent., with a keep 130 ft. high. — The line then follows
the valley of the Dronne. 141/, M. Tocane-St. Apre, 3 M. to the N. of
which is Le Grand-Brassac, boasting of a Romanesque -Byzantine chureh
of the 13-14th cent. with eupolas and very remarkable sculpturesin exeellent
preservation. — 18 M. St. Méard. — 93 M. Ribérac (p. 13).

Froy PERIGUEUX 10 ST. PARDOUX (Nontrom), 33 M., steam -tramway,
starting from the Place Francheville (P1.D,E,3). — 41/o M. Chancelade,
with an old abbgy-church. — TM. Chateau -1’ Evéque (p. 42). — 201/ M.
Brantéme (Hotel Chabrol), a town of 2422 inhab., prettily situated on
the Dromne. 1t possesses the interesting remains of an old Benedictine
abbey, dating from the days of Charlemagne, and once owned by the
chronicler Pierre de Bourdeilles (1527-1614), who assumed its name. The
Romanesque Zower, standing on a sheer roek honeyecombed with caverns,
is one of the oldest in France. The Church is partly Romanesque and
partly Gothie. Adjoining are portions of the 15th cent. Cloister. The
abbey itself was rebuilt in the 18th century. — Bourdeilles (see above)
lies 5 M. to the S.W. The chateau of Richemont, 5 M. to the N.W., was
built and inhabited by Brantéme. — 83 M. St. Pardouz, on the line from
Angouléme and Nontron to Thiviers (p. 42).

From PERIGUEUX To ST. YRIEIX, 461/5 M., steam - tramway from the
Place Francheville. The chief station on this interesting route is (221/, M.)
Ezxcideuil (p. 42), with a chiteau of the Talleyrand - Périgord family (13-
16th cent.). — 461/, M. St. Yrieiz, see p. 106.

The Bordeaux line now follows the valley of the Isle as far as
its confluence with the Dordogne, crossing the river several
times. Many picturesque castles are seen on the banks. 671/, M.
Razac, in a hilly district. — 72 M. St. Astier, with a domed church
of the 11-12th cent., afterwards rebuilt. — 77 M. Neuvie, with a
chiteau of the 16th century. From (83 M.) Mussidan a branch-line runs
to (20 M.) Bergerac (p. 14). — 88 M. Beaupouyet; 93 M. Montpont.
About 3 M. to the N. of the last is the Carthusian convent of
Vauclaire, dating from the 14th cent. and lately restored. — 98 M.
Soubie. Beyond (104 M.) St. Médard, we join the line from Paris
to Bordeaux.

108 M. Coutras, and thence to (139 M.) Bordeauz, see p. 14,

/
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6. Bordeaux.

Railway Stations, Bordeaux has three railway stations: (1) Gare de
Paris or de la Bastide (P1. E,4,5), the central station, on the right bank
of the Garonne, facing the town; (2) Gare du Midi et de I’ Etat or de St. Jean
(PL. E, 7; buffet), to the S., on the left bank of the Garonne, 11/5 M. from
the centre of the town, communicating with the Gare de Paris (see p-3);
(3) Gare du Médoc (P1.D,1) at the N. end, for the line of that name and
for trains to Lacanau (R. 7). — The Gare de la Sauve (P1.F,6) is no longer
used for passenger-traffic. There are no hotel-omnibuses, but the trains
are met by railway-omnibuses and cabs (see below).

Hotels, HOTEL pES PRINCES ET DE LA Pa1x, Cours du Chapeau-Rouge
40, near the Grand Theatre (Pl.C,4); pE FRANCE BT DE NANTES, Rue
Esprit-des-Lois 11, close to the Bank (P1. C,4), R. (3rd floor) 3, L. 1/, A. 1,
déj. 5, D. 6 fr.; *Ricuerieu, Cours de I'Intendance 4, near the Place de
la Comédie (P1. C,4), R. from 3, déj. 3, D. 31/5, served separately, 4 and
5 fr.; pEs AMBASSADEURs, Cours de 1'Intendance 14 (Pl. B, C,4). similar
charges; METroPOLE, Rue Condé and Rue Esprit-des-Lois, near the Theatre,
R.3-15, L. & A. 11/5-2, B. 11/5-2, déj. 4, D. 5 fr. (or a la carte), pens. 12-15 fr. ;
DE BAYONNE, Rue Martignac 4, near Notre Dame (Pl. C, 4), no table-d’héte;
pE Nice, Place du Chapelet 4, refitted; pEs AMERICATINS (commereial),
Rue Condé 6, déj. 3, D. 31/5 fr.; pES QUATRE-S&URs, Cours du Trente-
Juillet 6, restaurant & la carte; LAxta, Rue Montesquieu, 6, near the
Marché des Grands-Hommes (Pl. C, 4; restaurant, dear); pe TouLoUSE,
Rue Vital-Carles 6-8, and Rue du Temple 7; Gr. Hor. CENTRAL, Gr. HoT.
& RESTAURANT FRANGAIS, Rue du Temple 8 and 12 (P1.C,5); Nicorer, Rue
du Pont de la Mousque 10 (PL. C,4,5), R., L., & A. 21/, fr., good restau-
rant; D’AQUITAINE & DE LA GIRONDE, Place St. Remi and Rue du Pont
de la Mousque; MoxTRE, Rue Montesquieu 4, NorMANDIE, Rue Gobineau
and Cours du Trente-Juillet, DELARc, Rue de Grassi 18 (Pl. C,5), these
three hétels meublés; pu PERIGORD, D'ORLEANS, third-class houses, in the
Rue Mautrec. — HOTEL DU PRINTEMPS, R. 2 fr.; pu FArsax (R., L., & A
21/5-51/3, déj. 2, D. 3 fr.), Rue de la Gare, and the other hotels near the
Gare du Midi are all 3rd class houses.

Restaurants. At most of the hotels; Chapon - Fin, Rue Montesquieu 7,
déj. 21/5, D. 3 fr. (also a la earte); Comédie, at the Grand Theatre, déj. 4, J
D. 5fr.; de Paris, Allées de Tourny 26; de Tourny, same street No. 16 f
*Café Bibent, same street, No. 1; at these three déj. 21/5, D. 8 fr.; Parisien,
Rue Mably 7 (PL C,4), déj. 11/ fr.

. Oafés. Café de Bordeaux, Place de la Comédie 2; Café de la Comédie,
in the Grand Theatre; Grande Taverne Anglaise, ete., on the E. side of the
Allées de Tourny ; Café de I'Opéra, Cours du Chapeau-Rouge 50; Cardinal,
Tortoni, Montesquieu, Cours du Trente-Juillet 2, g, and 12; Bibent, Allées

de Tourny 1; Zurc, Place Gabriel, at the Exchange. — There are several
Brasseries (beer-houses) in the Allées de Tourny.
Cabs, From 6 a. m. to midnight. || From midnight to 6 a. m.
Voit. de Place. Drive [ist hour Eﬁcg:&l' Drive |[Ist hour dE.Bth ad-
One-horse .. . fl4fr. 75|14 fr. 75| 1 fr. 50| 2 fr. 25 2fr. 25 1lf:r. 07%‘-

Voit. sous Remise.

One-horse (coupé) [f2 » —[2 > — |1 » 75)(8 » — |3, — 2., 9
» (fiacre) |2 » — 25 — (1> 7518 » — |3 » — 2 » 50
['wo-horse (closed) |2 > — |25 — 1.2 758 » — |83 » —|9 , 50
» (open).3'—3-—-—2»504-—4,__3,_

In hiring by time che first hour must be paid for in full, after whieh

he time may be reckoned by spaces of 1/4 hr. — Luggage: 50 ¢. f
r 2 packages, tl_xen 25 ¢. per package. — Outside the barrier the cha(x)-;ei
re somewhat higher. — Per Day (12hrs.), 15,20, and 25 fr. aceording

o the ecarriage.
 Tramways and Omnibuses, There are eight lines of tramway (s
A ) 8. ee Pl
nd five lines of omnibuses with ‘correspondances’ as in Paris. l¥a(res ins?«lilg

s
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20 ¢., outside 15 ¢. (including correspondance); return, 30 ¢., 25 ¢. — Tram-~
ways (managed by a British company). 1. From the Boul d Jean-Jacq
Boscq (to the S. E. of Pl. F, 8) or Footbridge (P1. E. 7) to the Rue Lucien-Faure
(PLF,1). — 2. From the Place Magenta (P1. B, 6) to the Bastide (PL.F,4).
3. From the Gare du Midi (P1. E,7) to the Gare du Médoc (P1. D, 1) or
Rue Lucien-Faure. — 4. From the Place de Bourgogne (Pl. D, 5) to the
Boulevard du Tondw (to the W. of PL. A, 6). — 5. From the Place Riche-
liew (P1. C, D, 4) to the Boulevard du Bouscat or de Caudéran (Pl. A, 2), via
the Allées de Tourny. — 6. From the Place Richeliex to the Boulevard de
Caudéran, via the Rue Judaique (Pl. A, B, 4) or Rue de la Croix-Blanche
(PL. A,4). — 7. From the Place Richelieu or Croix de St. Genés to the Boule-
vard de Talence (Pl. B, 8), vid the Rue de St. Genés (Pl. B, 6-8) or Rue de
Pessae (Pl. B, 6,7). — 8. From the Place d’Aquitaine (P1. C,6) to the Boule:
vard de Talence (P1.B,8), viA the Route de Toulouse (Pl C, 7,8), or via
the Route de Bayonne (Pl. B, C, 7,8) — Omnibuses, 1. From the Rue Lucien-
Faure (P1. F, 1) to the Passage Lormont (to the N. E. of PL.F, 1). — 2. From
the Quai des Chartrons (P1.D,2,3) to the Cours d’Albret et d’ Aquitaine (Pl.
B,6). — 3. From the Place de la Comédie (P1. C,4) to the Place Nansouty
and Boulevard de Begles (P1.C,8). — 4. From the Place de la Bourse (Pl
C, D,5) to the Boulevard du Tondu et de Caudéran (Pl. A,3-5). — There are
other omnibus services in the environs.

Railway Omnibuses. These ply from the following offices in the town.
For the Gare de Paris: Rue Gobineau 2, at the Allées de Tourny (starting
3/4 hr. before the departure of the train). For the Gare du Midi: Cours
du Trente-Juillet 16 (starting 35 min. before the departure of the train).
For the Gare du Médoc: Rue Gobineau 2. Fare from the office 25-30 ¢.,
from a private house 50 e.; each article of luggage 20 c.

Steamers. Hirondelles, Gondoles, and Abeilles ply in the harbour and
to places in the immediate vicinity. Larger steamers run to Castets, La
Réole, Agen, and other places above the town, and to Pauillac, Royan, ete.,
below (see p.5S). Ferry to La Bastide every dmin. (10¢.). — For the
steamers of the Messageries Maritimes, of the Pacific Steam Navigation Com-
pany, and of the Compagnie Générale Transatlantique (South Ameriea, ete.),
see the Indicateur or the Livret Chaix.

Commissionnaires. Per 1/ hr., with a letter, 25 ¢.; per hr., with a
pareel of any weight 50 e., or 60 c. if a barrow is required.

Post & Telegraph Office, Rue du Palais Gallien 7-13 (P1. B, 4), near the
Place Gambetta; sg;,ﬂval sub-offices. — Zelephone to Paris, 5 min.’s use
31/, fr. by day, 2 fr. 10 e. at night.

Theatres. Grand Thédtre (Pl. C,4), for opeéras (prices 1-5 fr.);
Thédtre Frangais (P1. B, O,4); Des Arts (P1. B, 4,5;1/5-4 fr.), Rue Castelnau-
d’Auros 1-7; Casino des Lilas, Boul. de Caudéran. — Cirque Bordelais, Quai
de la Grave, above the stone bridge; Hippodrome, Boul. de Caudéran, —
Bands play in the Jardin Public (p. 5{), Parc Boredlais (p. 56), ete.

Baths. Hot Baths, Allées de la Place des Quinconees (11/4 fr.)." Cold
Baths, Eeoles de Natation, above the Pont de Bordeaux, ete. Hydropathic
Establishment, Place Longchamp 4 (P1.B,3; from 60 c.).

Consulates. British Consul, Mr. William Ward, Cours de Gourgues 9;
Viceconsul, Mr. W. J. Norcop. — American Consul, Mr. John M. Wiley.

English Church, Cours du Pavé-des-Chartrons (Pl C, 3); Chaplain.
Rev. J. W. L. Burke. — French Protestant Churches, Rue du Ha 32 (P1.C,5),
Rue Notre-Dame (P1. D, 3), Rue Barennes 19 (P1.B, C.3), and Impasse St,
Jean (PL.D, 7). — German Protestant Church, Rue Tourat 31 (P1. C, 3).

Bordeaux, the ancient capital of Guyenne, the chief town of the
department of the Gironde, the headquarters of the 18th army
corps, and the seat of a bishopric and a university (D faculties), is
a town with 252,415 inhab., situated on the left bank of the Ga-
ronne, 16 M. from the Bec d’Ambés at the confluence of thig river
with the Dordogne (p. 59), and 60 M. from its mouth on the Atlantic.
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It is t»h‘e fourth largest town in France and also one of the leading
towns in the republic in virtue of its commerce (p. 49), its splen-
dl‘d site, and its imposing appearance. The Garonne furnishes it
with an excellent harbour and with a safe and convenient water-
way to the ocean.

P Burdigala, the capital of the Bituriges Vivisci, was one of the chief
cities of Gaul in the Roman period. It became the capital of Aquitania
Secunda, endured the devastations and the yoke of the Vandals, Visigoths,
Fra.nks, and Normans, and became part of the Duchy of Aquitaine or
Guienne, which passed to England on the marriage of Eleanor to Henry
Plantagenet (see p. 6). More fortunate than other towns of the provinee, it
suffered little from the wars for supremacy between France and England,
and it became loyally attached to its new masters, who did mueh to
encourage its commerce, and retained it in their hands for 300 years (down
to 1453). The imposition of the salt-tax, under Henri IL., caused a
serious insurrection here, for which the town was cruelly punished by
the Constable de Montmorency in 1548. Contests also arose between the
Catholies and Protestants of Bordeaux, and 264 of the latter were mas-
sacred after St. Bartholomew’s Day. The distriet was again disturbed
by dissensions under Louis XIV., who regarded the town with particular
favour. From the reigns of Louis XV. and Louis XVI., when Bordeaux
had for its governor the Marquis of Tourny, date its prineipal embellish-
ment and the construction of its spacious thoroughfares. The ambition
of its ‘Parlement’ was easily repressed; but it did not so easily eseape
the eonsequénces of revolting against the Convention after the proseription
of the Girondins, at the head of whom were Vergniaud, Guadet, Gen-
sonné, Grangeneuve, Ducos, and Fonfréde, the deputies of the depart-
ment. The town could not reconcile itself to the rule of Napoleon, who
ruined its commerce, but its attachment to the Bourbons was also luke-
warm. In 1870-71 it was for three months the seat of the Provisional
Government, and then of the National Assembly, which here accepted the
preliminaries of peace with Germany.

The traveller who reaches Bordeaux by the Paris line, quitting
the train at the Gare de la Bastide, at once gains an idea of the
imposing character of the town, as he enters it by the *Pont de
Bordeaux (P1.D,5). This bridge was for a long time without a rival
and it is still one of the most remarkable in the world. An attempt
made in 1810 to build a bridge of timber was abandoned, and the
present permanent one of stone and brick was erected (1819-21) by
the engineers Deschamps and Billaudel. Tt is 532 yds. long and
16 yds. wide, and has 17 arches, the central and widest of which
have a span of 87 feet. Inside, between the arches and the roadway,
are passages, which lighten the structure and facilitate its being
kept in a proper state of repair without interruption to the traffic.
The interior may be visited (9-11 and 1-5) by applying to the custo-
dian, who lives at the Bastide end of the bridge. The bridge com-
mands a splendid *View of the town and harbour. Higher up the
river we see the Railway Tubular Bridge, which is 546 yds. long
and is connected with a viaduct 110 yds. in length. The railway
bridge also has a passage for pedestrians. Near it, on the left bank
of the river, is the Gare du Midi.

The Harbour is one of the chief attractions of.Borgeanx. The
Garonne here describes an almost complete semicirele, the arc of
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which measures 3!/, M. and the radius about 2 M. Along this cres-
cent stretches the town, which is in the shape of a half-moon and
is barely 11/ M. across at its widest part. Although Bordeaux is
60 M. from the mouth of the Gironde, the tide comes quite up to it
and vessels of 2000 or 2500 tons easily reach the port. The ordi-
nary depth of the river here is 20 ft., and this is sometimes doubled
at spring-tides. From 1000 to 1200 ships can anchor in the har-
bour; and a vast floating basin, 25 acres in extent, has lately been
constructed lower down, at the end of the quays, for the accommo-
dation of the largest vessels, of which it can hold seventy or eighty.
Spacious quays, dating, like most of the adjoining buildings, from
the end of the 18th cent., extend from one end of the harbour to the
other. Bordeaux, which now ranks as the third seaport of France, has
regular communications with most of the ports of the Atlantie, the
English Channel, the North Sea, and the Baltic, with N. and S.
America, with Africa, and with India, and its shipping amounts
annually to nearly 2 millions of tons. Its commerce is chiefly in
wines, colonial produce, metals, English coal, timber from N. Europe,
vinegar, grain, brandy, and manufactured products. It is at the
same time an industrial town, and has a large number of dockyards
and establishments for the supply of everything connected with
shipping.

The Cours Victor-Hugo (PL. C, D, 5, 6; see p. 54), which forms
a continuation of the Pont de Bordeaux and bends to the right to-
wards the cathedral, marks the limits of the old town, which in the
other direction (down stream) did not extend beyond the Place des
Quinconces (see below). The Porte de Bourgogne, at the beginning of
the Cours, was erected in 1751-55, but altered in 1807. From
the Quai de Bourgogne, the first below the bridge, the Cours d’Al-
sace-Lorraine (Pl. C, D, ), a wide and handsome new street, leads
to the W. direct to the cathedral. Farther along the quay, to the
left, is the PorTE DE CATLHAU, called also Porte Royale or Porte du
Palais (P1.D,5), the ancient gateway of the Palais de 'Ombriére,
pulled down in 1800, once the residence of the Dukes of Aquitaine,
and afterwards the seat of the governors of the district and of the
Parlement of Bordeaux. Itis a fine Gothic structure flanked by two
round towers dating from 1495. 4

The Quai de Bourgogne is adjoined by the Quai de la Douane,
with the Hotel de la Douane, or Custom House (P1.C,D,5), built
by Jacques Gabriel at the end of the 18th cent., under the Marquis
de Tourny. Adjacent is the Place de la Bourse, adorned with the
fine bronze Fontaine des Trois Grices, executed by Gumery , after
Visconti. The Hatel de la Bourse or Exchange (Pl C,4,5), which
is a counterpart of the Hétel de la Douane, built at the same time
and by the same architect, has lately been restored, and the N. fa-
c¢ade in the Place Richelieu, and the W. facade, towards the Cours
du Chapeau-Rouge (see below), are new. The old allegorical sculp-

4

Baedeker. South-Western France. 2nd Edit.
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res on the pediments of the Bourse are due to Francin, the new
 Coueffard (Place Richelieu) and to Jouandot.

A little farther on is the Place des Quinconces (Pl. C,4), the
rgest in Bordeaux, occupying the site of the Chiteau Trompette
[ropeyte), built at the same time as the Fort du Ha (p. 55), by
harles VIL, after the submission of Bordeaux in 1453, to ensure
e obedience of the town. This chiteau was destroyed in 1789.
he Place is 425 yds. long and 360 yds. wide, without reckoning
he semicircle with a fountain, which forms an addition to it on
e side opposite the quay. On the side next the river are two
ostral Colwmns, 65 ft. high, surmounted by statues of Commerce
nd Navigation, by Manceau, and serving also as lighthouses. To
1e right and left of these are two Bathing Establishments. Nearer
e middle of the square, among the trees, are colossal marble sta-
wes of Montaigne (d. 1592; to the S.) and Montesquiew (d. 1755 ;
) the N.), two celebrities of the province, by Maggesi (1858).

In the centre of the place a Monument to the Girondins (p. 48),
y Dumilitre and Riche, is to be unveiled in 1895. The design
1cludes a column surmounted by a gilded bronze statue of Liberty
nd surrounded by groups of the leading Girondins; and two foun-
iins with figures of Concord and the Republic seated in cars drawn
y sea-horses.

The Rue Foy leads to the N. from the Place des Quinconces, passing
e vast warehouses of the Entrepét Réel, to the church of St. Louis

’1. C,3), a fine modern Gothic edifice in the style of the 13th eent., with
one spires, and an elegant porch.

The Cours du Trente-Juillet, which runs along the W. side of
1e Quinconces, ends on the N. at the Jardin Public (p. 51)' and
1 the S. at the Allées de Tourny (see below) and the Place de la
omédie (Pl C,4). The last, which owes its name to the neigh-
ouring theatre, is the busiest point in the town, of which it may be
alled the centre. To the E. runs the handsome Rue Esprit - des-
ois, and to the S. is the busy but narrow and crowded Rue Ste.
atherine. The S. side of the Place de la Comédie also joins the
ain line of thoroughfare which intersects the town from E. to W.,
eginning at the Quai de la Bourse with the Cours du Chapeau-
ouge, which is continued towards the W. by the Cours de I’ Inten-
ance and the Rue Judaique.

The Grand-Théatre (Pl. C,4), to the S. of the Place de la Comé-
e, built in 1755-80 by Victor Louis, but lately restored, has long
nked as one of the finest theatres in Europe. It is in the classi-
1 style and is 290 ft. long, 154 ft. broad, and 62 ft. high. In front

a portico of twelve Corinthian columns, above which is a ba-
strade with twelve colossal statues. At the sides are spacious
lonnades. The most noticeable features of th® interior are the
stibule, with its sixteen Ionic columns; the grand staircase,
hich ascends in two flights; and the circular auditorium, which
embellished with twelve composite columns. Above the vesti-



Jardin Public. BORDEAUX. I. Route 6. 51

bule is a concert-hall. — It was in this theatre that the sittings of
the National Assembly were held in 1871.

Behind the theatre is the Préfecture (Pl.C,4), also built by
Louis, in 1775, for the ‘Avocat Général’ of the Bordeaux Parle-
ment. The facade, towards the Cours du Chapeau-Rouge, was restor-
ed in 1873.

The Allées de Tourny (Pl. C,4), an oblong ‘Place’, formerly
embellished with trees, now offer one of the most bustling scenes
in Bordeaux. Most of the cafés (p. 46) are situated here. At each
end is a monumental fountain. In the middle formerly stood a
bronze statue of Napoleon IIL, by Debay, on the pedestal of which
might be read the words from his famous Bordeaux speech (1852):
‘L’Empire, c’est la paix’; but this was removed in 1870.

A little to the left is the church of Notre-Dame (Pl. C,4), found-
ed in the 13th cent., rebuilt in 1701 in the style of the period, and
restored in 1834. The internal decorations are elegant and luxu-
rious. We note especially some paintings by Romain Cazes, the
chief of which is a large fresco representing the Madonna enthroned
(1874).

To the right of the church, in the Rue Mably, is the new Public
Library, open daily, except holidays, 11 -4 and 8- 10 in winter,
11 -5 in summer; during the vacation (Sept. and Oct.) on Wed.
only, 11-4. The library comprizes upwards of 150,000 volumes and
250 MSS. The chief curiosity is a copy of the ‘Essays’ of Montaigne,
covered with annotations in the handwriting of the author. There
is here also a Collection of Arms and Antiquities (open on Sun. and
Thurs. from 11 to 4 or5). — Behind the library is the Marché des
Grands-Hommes, a circular market-hall of iron and glass.

On the N.W. the Allées de Tourny end in a small circular Place
with a Statue of Tourny, of no artistic merit, erected in 1825.
To the left diverges the Cours de Tourny, leading to the Place
Gambetta; to the right is the Cours du Jardin-Public.

The Jardin Public (P1. B, C,3), which was originally laid out
by the Marquis de Tourny, but completely transformed in 1859, is
the finest promenade in Bordeaux. It consists of two parts: an
English Park, with a large number of splendid magnolias and other
exotics, and a well-stocked Botanical Garden, with large conser-
vatories. A grove of China palms (Chamerops excelsa) flourishes
here in the open air. The park is much frequented on Sun. and
Thurs., when a military band plays here at 8 p. m. in summer and
2.30 p. m. in winter. — On the S.W. side of the garden, and with
a direct entrance from it, is the Museum, open on Sun. and Thurs.,
11-5 in summer, and 11-4 in winter, and to strangers on other days
also. It comprises natural history, ethnographical, and prehistoric
collections ; the first being much the largest.

Leaving the Jardin Public by the gate at the S.W. corner, beyond

the Museum , and taking the Rue du Colisée, the fourth ecross-
4w
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treet to the right, we see in front of us the main part of the ruins
f the Amphitheatre (Pl. B, 3), generally called the Palais Gallien
secause the Emperor Gallienus (d. 268) is supposed to have erected
t. The arena proper was oval in form and measured 84 yds. by
50 yds., while the whole structure was 144-149 yds. long and 1414-
124 yds. wide A great part of the building was still standing in
1792. The four arches under which the street passes formed the W,
entrance. The ruins at this point are still over 60 ft. in height.

From the amphitheatre we may proceed to the S. to the old
cathedral of 8t, Seurin (P1. B, 4), built in the 11th cent. on the site
of a much more ancient church. Parts of the building, however,
are not later than the 13-15th cent., and a few additions have been
made more recently still. The W. facade, which is surmounted by
2 spire, is of the 14th cent., but it was masked in 1829 by a poor’
porch. On the S. side is an interesting *Doorway of the 13th cent.,
with a Renaissance porch in front of it. The principal subject of
the sculptures, which have been restored, is the Last Judgment.

The Interior is very low and dark. The roof is borne partly by enormous
round pillars, and partly by pillars grouped with half-columns. The ehurch
is throughout embellished with fine modern stained-glass windows. To the
left, in front of the choir, is a large new Gothic chapel, .near which is
a chapel of the 13th cent., with graceful arches and a handsome altar.
The choir contains an elaborate episcopal throne in the Flamboyant style.
On an altar in front of the throne is an ancient alabaster altar-sereen.
part of which is in the Chapel of the Virgin. Its seulptures, comprising
wbout 40 groups, represent the Crucifixion and scenes from the life of St.
Seurin, Bishop of Bordeaux in the 5th century. Under the choir is a very
)ld and interesting Crypt, divided into three vaulted aisles with semi-
sireular vaulting (for adm. apply to the sacristan). It contains a Renais-
ance cenotaph, placed over the tomb of St. Fort, first Bishop of Bor-
leaux, the tomb of St. Veroniea, and six marble sarcophagi, of the
-6th cent., adorned with seulpture.

Crossing the Allées Damour, to the S. of St. Seurin, and follow-
ng the Rue Judaique, to the left, we soon reach the Rue St. Ser-
1in, in-which, to the left, is the Institution Nationale des Sourdes—
Muettes (Institution for Female Deaf-Mutes; Pl. B, 4), a handsome
lassical building, (with a statue of the Abbé de I’Epée at the en-
france. Nearly opposite, to the S., is a large Ecole Professionnelle.

A little farther on the Rue Judaique ends at the Place Gambetta
P1.B,4,5), a fine square from which the Cours de I'Intendance
mnd the Cours Tourny diverge to the E. and N.E. From its S. E.
sorner we enter the Rue Porte-Dijeaux, so named from an old town-
ate, and turn at once to the right into the Rue des Remparts,
vhich takes us to the Hotel de Ville, the new Musée, and the
Jathedral. The Hotel de Ville (P1. B, 5), formerly the archiepiscopal
valace, was built in 1770-81 for the Prince-Cardinal de Rohan-
suéménée and was restored after a fire in 1862. It is a handsome
uilding with a conspicuous entrance between two colonnades.

The Musée (P1.B,5), at the back of the Hétel de Ville, and
acing the Cours d’Albret, consists of two wings, one on each side
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of a small garden. It is open to the public daily, except Mon.
and Frid., from 12 to 5 in summer and 12 to 4 in winter; and
strangers are admitted on Mon. and Frid. also.

The Right Wing is devoted to the old masters. — The VEestisuLE
contains a few sculptures: 708. Hoursolle (of Bordeaux), This age is
pitiless; 712. Lemot, Apollo. — Room I. To the right, 223. P. Grebber,
Bathsheba bathing; 233. Holbein the Younger, Portrait ; 568. Monvoisin, Battle
of Denain (1712); 80. School of Murillo, Virgin and Child; 41. Lorenzo di
Credi, Annunciation; 146. Titian, Triumph of Galatea; 32. L. Carracci (?),
Dance of Amoretti; 76. Murillo, St. Anthony of Padua in an eecstasy:
23. P. Veronese, Holy Family; 117. Sabattini, Holy Family; 664. Dutch
School, Portrait; 22. P. Veronese, The Woman taken in adultery; 75. Moya,
Portrait of a painter; 125. Solimena, Joseph in prison; *12. Pietro da
Cortona, Virgin and Child; 138. After Andrea del Sarto, Holy Family;
113. Salvator Rosa, Ajax:; *147. Titian (?), The Woman taken in adultery;
643. Italian School, David before Saul; 78. Murillo (?), Portrait of Don Luis
de Haro; 21. Paolo Veronese, Adoration of the Magi; 2. Correggio (?), Gany-
mede; 108. Seb. Ricci, Love jealous of Fidelity; 103. Ribera, Conventicle ;
*143. Vasari, Holy Family; 63. Liberi, St. Apollonia and an angel;
15. Moretto, Virgin and Child; 8. Fra Bartolommeo, Holy Family ; 84. Palma
Vecchio, Holy Family; 139. Perugino, Virgin and Child, with SS. Jerome
and Augustine; 87. Palmezzano, Crucifixion ; 77. Murillo (?), A philosopher;
649. Italian School, Ecce Homo; 42. G. Poussin, Landscape; 99. Guido Reni,
Mary Magdalen; 133. Tiepolo, Eleazar and Rebecea; 5; Giordano, Venus
asleep; 93. Bassano, Jesus with Martha and Mary ; 148. Titian (?), Tarquin
and Luecretia; 3. School of Allegri, Venus asleep; 95. Il Calabrese (Preti),
Guitar-player; 126. Spada, The four ages of life; io. Cesari, Jesus washing
the Disciples’ feet; 96. Cam. Procaccini (), The Annunciation; 150. School of
Titian, Mary Magdalen. — Room II. To the left: 128. Tavella, Mary Magdalen
with two angels; 92. Bassano, Leaving the Ark. — Roox III. To the right:
264. De Momper, Landscape; 311. Teniers the Younger, Village festival;
296. School of Rubens, Adoration of the Magi; no number, Weerts, The
exoreism; 320. 0. van Veen, Marriage of St. Catharine ; 293. Rubens, Bacchus
and Ariadne; 157. Bakhuizen, Sea-piece; above, J. Coudray, Copy of the
Hunt by Delacroix (see below); 246. Lingelbach, Flemish topers:; 268.
Moucheron, Landscape ; 254. Maes, Portrait; 218. Govaerts, Landscape, Diana
resting; 253. Maes, Portrait of a man; 213. Franck the Younger, Christ on
Calvary; 214. School of Franck, Different ways of attaining immortality;
186. Benj. Cuyp (?), Interior of a barn ; *292. Rubens, Martyrdom of St. Justus;
304. J. van Steen, Tavern-scene; 185. A. Cuyp, Landseape; 187. B. Cuyp (?),
Interior; 237. Karel du Jardin, Landscase with animals; Snyders, 305. Fox-
hunting, 302. The aged lion; 182. Ph. de Champaigne, Joseph’s dream (in-
jured); 212. Franck the Younger, Christ on Calvary; 166. N. Berghem, Land-
scapes; 316. Tilborgh, Interior; *291. Rubens, Martyrdom of St. George ; 310,
Teniers the Younger, The incantation; 263. H. Mommers, Landscape with fig-
ures; 283. School of Rembrandt, Adoration of the Shepherds; 23f Hobbema,
Landscape with figures; 301. Siberechts, Landscape ; 178. ‘ Velvet® Brueghel,
La Rosiere; Rubens, . Villagers dancing, . Crucifixion; 265, 266.
Momper, Landseapes ; 217. Gedam, St. Jerome ; 200. Van Dyck, The penitent
Magdalen; several Flemish and Dutch landseapes. — Room IV. 729. Ragyi,
Bronze statue of Louis XVI., 21 ft. high (1829).

The Left Wing is devoted to modern works. — The VESTIBULE con-
tains sculptures: Carnielo, Mozart dying. Paintings: Gigouz, Baptism of
Clovis; Rosa Bonheur, Five dogs (sketches). — Rooxm I. To the right, 543.
Lethidre, Louis IX. visiting the plague-stricken ; 385. Bouguereau, Bacchante ;
466. Frangais, Landscape; 368 Bellangé, Cuirassiers of Waterloo; 631.
Troyon, Oxen ploughing; 441. Eugéne Delacroiz, Lion-hunt (a fragment,
the picture having been partly destroyed by a fire; copy see above);
510. Jouy, Execution of Urbain Grandier Sg 17); 473. Claude Lorrain,
Landseape ; 563. Mignard, Louis XIV.; 45. Ferrandiz, Judgment of the
Syndies of Valencia (Spain); 349. Antigna, Image-seller; 415. Cogniet, Tin-
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retto painting his dead daughter; 591. Pils, Trench before Sebastopol ;

Fr.-Aug. Bonheur, Return from the fair; 350. dntigna, Mirror of the
ood; 606. Restout, Presentation in the Temple. Seculptures: Blanchard,
iscovery ; T01. Cambos, La Cigale; 384. Bouguereau, All Souls’ Day. —
oom II.  To the left: 479. Géréme, Bacchus and drunken Cupid; 308. Rosa
onheur , Fox; 384. Bouguereau, Jour des Morts; no number, £. Buland,
he heirs. In the middle: 7T14. Lemoyne, Bust of Montesquieu; Chapu,
ust of Carayon-Latour; 698. /s. Bonheur, Cow defending her ecalf, in
ronze. — Room III. To the right, 153. A. Achenbach, Sea-piece:; 508.
abey , Burning of the steamer Austria (1858); 355. Baudry, Toilette of
enus; 432. Daubigny, The banks of the Oise; H48. Luminais, Gallic scouts;
5. Gros, Embarkation of the Duchess of Angouléme (1815); 359. Beaulieu,
uel; 579. Palliere, Bazeilles (1870); no number, Roll, The old carrier; no
amber, Delacroiz, Boissy d’Anglas; no number, Corot, Landscape; 496.
udin, Captain Desse saving the crew of a Dutch vessel (1822); 300. Schenck,
eveillé; no number, Azguin, Summer on the Grande Cdte (p. 60); 440.
elacroiz, Greece expiring amid the ruins of Missolonghi; no number,
' Quinsac, Fountain of youth. — Sculpture: Longepied, Neapolitan fisher-
an. — Room IV. contains pictures and sculptures of little interest.

The *Cathedral (St. André; Pl. B, C. D), a few yards to the S. E.
f the Hotel de Ville, is one of the finest Gothic churches in
1e S. of France. It consists of a large nave, destitute of fagade and
isles, dating from the 11-412th cent., with Romanesque arches; a
ansept; and a choir with double aisles of the 14th century. The
rincipal portal, on the N. side, is flanked with two towers sur-
ounted by stone spires. The sculptures in the tympanum re-
resent the Last Supper and the Ascension. In the trumeau is a
atue of Bertrand de Goth, archbishop of Bordeaux, afterwards Pope
lement V. (d. 1314), who contributed largely to the building. The
_portal is of the same character, but its towers have no spires.

The Caoir is the most admired part of the interior. Among the chief
orks of art are the monument of Cardinal de Cheverus (d. 1836)., with
s statue, by Maggesi (near the pulpit); opposite, the monument of Mgr.
onnet (d. 1882), with his statue and figures of Faith and Charity, by
elaplanche ; a Resurrection, by Alessandro Veronese (opposite the pulpit) ;
Crueifixion, by Jordaens; a Raising of Lazarus, by Jadin (1877); two
rge bas-reliefs of the Renaissance, below the organ, originally part of
rood-loft and representing the Descent into Hell and the Resurrection ; a
saring of the Cross, attributed to Ag. Carracci (at the side); the monument
‘Monsgr. d’Aviau in the second choir-chapel to the right; a statue of St.
nne, of the 16th cent., some fine wood-carvings, and the monuments of
nt. de Noailles (1662) and Mgr. de la Bouillerie (d. 1882), in other ehapels.
- Richard II. of England was christened in this cathedral.

About 30 yds. to the right of the choir of this church, opposite
e end of the Cours Victor-Hugo (p. 49), is the CrocHEr PEYBER-
\ND, built in 1440 by Archbishop Pierre Berland. It was sold
. the Revolution and partly pulled down, but was bought back in
350 and restored. Unfortunately, however, the spire has been left
 a truncated condition, with a gilded statue of the Virgin at the
p. This tower contains a bell weighing about 10 tons.

To the S.W. of the cathedral rises the Palais de Justice (Pl. B,
6), a vast building erected in 1839-46, with a heavy fagade, upwards
150 yds. long. In the centre is a peristyle portico of the Doric
der, and the projecting wings are crowned with seated figures of
alesherbes, Aguesseau, Montesquieu, and 1'Hopital.
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Behind the Palais de Justice is the Prison, which occupies the
site of the Chateau du Far or Fort du Ha, built at the same time as
the Chateau Trompette (p. 50).

To the S. of the Palais de Justice is the extensive Hospital of
St. Andrew (650 beds; PL B, 6), rebuilt in 1825-29, with a hand-
some entrance. A little farther on, to the left, is the church of Ste.
Eulalie (Pl. B, C, 6), of very ancient foundation but rebuilt in the
14-15th centuries.

The Rue de Cursol (Pl. B, C, 6) leads to the Cours Victor-Hugo,
which extends from the cathedral to the Pont de Bordeaux. At the
bend which it makes near the Rue de Cursol are the new buildings
of the Faculties of Theology, Science, and Literature (P1. C,5, 6).
The vestibule contains a monument to Montaigne, who is interred
in the basement. Farther on, to the left, is the Grand Marché, a
recent erection of iron and glass, and almost opposite is the new
Lycée National. In a short street to the right stands the Porte de
U’ Hotel de Ville, a fine relic of the old Hotel de Ville, dating in its
lower part from the 13th cent., while the upper half, with its three
turrets, was rebuilt in the 16th century. Above the arch, through
which the street runs, is a curious clock in the Renaissance style.
Higher up is another arch with a bell, and on the top of this is a

lantern surmounted by a lion. -— Adjoining this gate is the modern
entrance of the church of St. Eloi, which itself dates from the 15th
century.

The church of St. Michel (PL. D, 6), near the Quai des Saliniéres,
a little above the Pont de Bordeaux, is a fine Gothic edifice, found-
ed in the 8th or 9th cent., but rebuilt in 1149 and in the 15-16th
centuries. Its three portals are adorned with interesting sculptures,
representing the Nativity, the Adoration of the Shepherds, the Sa-
crifice of Isaac, Abraham (to the N.), and the appearance of St. Michel
to the Bishop of Sipontum. The choir is lower than the nave, and
the wall above the arch by which it is entered is pierced by a
window. In the fourth choir-chapel to the left is a Descent from the
Cross, carved in the 16th century. The chapel of St. Joseph dates
from the Renaissance period.

The BELL-TowER oF St. MicHEL, standing apart like that of the
cathedral , 32 yds. from the W. front of the church, was built in
1472-92. The spire, destroyed by a hurricane in 1768, has recently
been rebuilt, and the structure has also been strengthened by the
erection of six buttresses, crowned with statues, round the base.
The total height of the tower is 354 ft.

The soil of the old cemetery which once occupied this spot had the
singular property of preserving the dead bodies committed to it; and a
guide is at hand to eonduet strangers into a Vault where about forty
natural mummies of this kind may be seen (adm. 1 fr.). The melancholy
aspect of this exhibition is made almost fantastic by the attitude of the
mummies, placed upright against the walls. The guide recounts a more
or less true history of several.
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Ste. Croix (PL. D, 6, 7), in the midst of the populous artizan
quarter which lies to the S. of St. Michel, is also one of the most
interesting churches of Bordeaux. It was originally founded in the
7th cent., or even earlier, but it was rebuilt in the 10th cent. in
the Romanesque style and has been restored several times since.
Its most striking part is the W. front, which recalls those of Notre-
Dame at Poitiers and the cathedral at Angouléme. No satisfactory
explanation of the sculptures of this facade has been given, the
only recognizable details being the signs of the zodiac and a knight
slaying a dragon at the feet of the Virgin. The interior, part of
which is in the Gothic style, contains a noteworthy tomb of the 15th
century.

Adjoining this church is the Ecole des Beaux-Arts, in an old
Benedictine abbey, with a Renaissance gateway.

The street to the left of Ste. Croix leads back to the Quays, which
it reaches not far from the railway-bridge mentioned at p. 44, and
the Gare du Midi, rebuilt in 1891-94.

The Boulevards of Bordeaux are noteworthy for their extent,
their fine trees, and their handsome buildings. Beyond the Boul.
de Caudéran (Pl. A, 2, 3; tramways) is the Parc Bordelais, a new
public park, still somewhat bare and dusty (band 4-6 on Sun. and
holidays). Cafés-restaurants in the vicinity.

From Bordeaux to Paris see R. 1; to La Rochelle and Nantes, see R. 4 -
o Périgueux and Limoges, see R. D; to Royan, see R. T; to Arcachon, see
R. 8; to Bayonne and Biarritz, see R.9; to Toulouse and Cette, see R. 10,
0 Tarbes (Pyrenees), see R. 14.

FroM BoRDEAUX TO LA SAuvE, 17 M., railway in 1-11/5 hr. (fares 3 fr. 30,
2 fr. 5, 1 fr. 35 ¢.). The trains start from the Gare de la Bastide (comp .
p. 46). — The intermediate stations are of no interest to the tourist. Near
La Sauve (Hotel Frangais) are the ruins of an abbey founded in the 10th cent.,
and rebuilt in the 13th eent., with a beautiful church. — This line is to be
continued to join the railway from Marmande to Bergeraec (p. 14) at
(42 M.) Eymet (p.72), and will pass Duras, a town with a chiteau and
fortifications of the 15th century.

7. From Bordeaux to Royan.
a. By the Médoc Railway.

RAILWAY to (621/ M) Le Verdon and STEAMER thence, in conneetion
with the trains, to Royan, at the mouth of the Gironde. The whole jour-
ey takes 41/3-41/; hrs. Tickets to Royan allow the holders to break the
ourney at Soulac and Le Verdon. Fares 11 fr. 40, 8 fr. 50, 6 fr. 20 ¢. ; re-
urn-tickets, available for 8 days, 13 fr. 65, 10 fr. 30, 7 fr. 45 ¢.; cheap ex-
ursion-trains run in summer (return-fares 6 fr. 85, 5 fr. 95 c., 5 fr.). The
rains start from the Gare du Médoe (p. 46). The sea is sometimes rough
t the mouth of the Gironde.

The whole journey may be made by railway (92 M., in 3-5 hrs. ; fares
tﬂ g- 75’(1()%5 30, 6 fr. 8 e.), vid the State line (Gare du Midi) and l’)ranch

ons (p. 32).

Bordeauz, see p. 46. — From (2!/, M.) Bruges a branch runs to
30 M.) Lacanau (p. 61). — At (5 M.) Blanguefort there is an old castle.
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Here begins the Médoc, a district of the Bordelais occuPying the

tongue of land between the Gironde and the sea (Medoe = ‘in medio

aquae’) and long celebrated for its wines. The vineyards extend along
the left bank of the river in a band 5-12 M. in width reaching as far as
(48 M.) St. Vivien (see below). There is a great variety in the growths,
but as a rule, only five kinds are distinguished as ‘erus classés’ (elassi-
fied growths). The first-class growths are confined to Upper Médoe,
which extends from Ludon to a little beyond St. Estéphe. Most of the
Médoe wines are red, but excellent white wines are also produced, though
the best of these, the Sauternes, are grown higher up on the left bank of
the Garonne (see p. 71). Some of the white wines are called ‘graves’
because produced on the gravel deposits (‘gravier’) at the confluence of
the rivers. The soil of the vineyards elsewhere consists mainly of si-
liceous deposits, quartz, ete., brought down from the Pyrenees by the
Garonne. These deposits are particularly suitable to the vine because they
are very loose and retentive of the heat. In consequence of the ravages
of the phylloxera and a series of bad harvests the wines of Bordeaux are
becoming more and more expensive, and those of the first growths, which
are generally exported, are extremely dear. The vintage generally be-
gins after the middle of September and lasts till nearly the end of
October.

Beyond Blanquefort, to the right, lies Parempuyre, with vine-
yards and ponds in which the breeding of leeches is carried on
on a large scale. Fine modern Chateau. — 91/; M. Ludon produces
wines of the third class (Chiteau de la Lagune). — 11 M. Macau,
with a small harbour on the Garonne, which the line touches here.
The Bec d’Ambés (p. 59) lies to the S. E., but is hidden by an island.
To the right lies Cantenac, producing Brane-Cantenac, a wine of
the 2nd class.

151/, M. Margaux produces wines of the 1st, 2nd, and 3rd
classes. The finest, known as Chitean Margaux, is the best Médoc
wine but one, being surpassed by Chateau Laffitte alone (see below).
— 171/, M. Soussans ; 20 M. Moulis.

251/, M. St. Laurent-St. Julien. St. Laurent, a small town
11/, M. to the left, produces wines of the fourth quality. The wines
of St. Julien, 21/, M. to the right, are mostly of the second class,
and are widely known under the names of St.Julien, Chéiteau Léo-
ville, etc. — Farther on, we pass on the right the domain of Chateaw
Latour, the wine of which ranks next to Chéateau Laffitte and Cha-
teau Margaux. The line again approaches the river.

29 M. Pauillac (Grand-Hoétel), an old town of 4564 inhab., lies
on the left bank of the Gironde and possesses a harbour used by
vessels which cannot get up to Bordeaux. Its wine-district, reckon-
ed the second of the Médoc in general importance, includes the
domain of Chateau Laffitte, which produces the finest wine of all.
This domain (170 acres) was purchased in 1868 for about 180,000 .
by the Rothschilds. The wine is worth 80-1207. per ‘tonneau’ of
198 gallons. Over 80,000 bottles are stored in the vaults. The
domain of Mouton-Rothschild (170 acres) produces wine of the 1st
and 2nd classes.

32 M. St. Estéphe, with the largest vineyard in the country. Its
chief-growth, Cos-Destournel, ranks among the second class wines.
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~ 35 M. Verteuil has an interesting Romanesque church. — 381/, M.
t. Germain-d’ Esteuil.

42 M. Lesparre (Lion d’Or), a town with 3972 inhab., has a
ower of the 14th cent., a relic of an old castle, and a fine modern
hurch. It is the junction of a line to Facture and Arés (Arcachon;
ee p. 62). — 4T M. Queyrac; 50 M. Vensac; H11/, M. St. Vivien,
vhere the vines give way to marshes. This large village has a
hurch belonging partly to the 14th cent., with a fine modern spire.
— 54 M. Talais.

58 M. Soulac-les-Bains (Hotel de la Paix, Hotel Fontétes, both
xpensive), a small watering-place, with a fine beach and surrounded
)y pine-woods. Near the village, which lies 1/, M. from the station,
s the curious Romanesque church of Le Vieux Soulac, buried after
he middle of the 13th cent. by the encroaching sand-dunes, which
1ave once more uncovered it in their advance inland. An inter-
sting walk may be taken at low tide along the foot of the dunes, to-
vards the Pointe de Grave (see below). The sea, which is extreme-
y violent in this vicinity, has swallowed vp the harbour of Soulac
nd various other localities, including the Roman town of Nowvio-
nagus. Extensive dykes (‘epis’), constructed with great difficulty,
iave been raised at the Anse des Huttes (11/; M.), the Pointe de
irave (5 M.), and elsewhere, to resist the encroachment of the waves.

63 M. Le Verdon (Hotels), the terminus of the railway, is at
resent of little importance, but possesses a small harbour of refuge.

From the station we proceed by tramway (no extra charge) through

fine pine-forest to (!/; hr.) the steamboat. To the right of the pier

s a fort. To the left, in the direction of the Pointe de Grave,
ppears Royan, with its conspicuous casino. Directly opposite us
s St. Georges-de-Didonne (p. 59).

The voyage usually takes less than 3/, hour. In the distance to
he left, is the Lighthouse of Cordouan (p. 60). Good view of Royan
s we approach. — Royan, see p. 59.

b. By the Gironde.

StEAMERS ply from Bordeaux (near the Quinconces; Pl. D, 4) to Royan
n 41/5-51/5 hrs., twice a day in summer (July, Aug., Sept.) and thrice
eekly (Tues., Thurs., and Sat.) during the rest of the year. They start
1 summer at 8a.m. and 2 p. m. (returning from Royan at 7 and 2), in
inter at 8 or 8.30 a. m. Fares 6 fr., 4 fr.; return-tickets, available for
days, 9 fr., 6 fr.; fare by Sun. excursion-steamer in summer 3 fr., 2 fr.,
turn-ticket (valid till Mon.) 6, 4 fr. Restaurant on board.

The scenery is dull and monotonous, but the great width of the Gi-
mde , amounting at places to 7!/ M., makes it impressive, though
e water is generally turbid. Numerous islands are passed. The pas-
ge is sometimes considerably protracted when the tide is rising or the
a at the mouth of the river rough. It is not possible to make the ex-
irsion both ways by steamer in one day (except by excursion-steamer in
mmer), but those who are much pressed for time may go by water and
turn by railway, or viece versa.

The steamer at first threads its way through the harbour of
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Bordeaux, which is fringed by warehouses, manufactories, and ship-
building yards. To the left are the docks and a floating basin. To
the right rise the heights of Lormont (p. 15), with its picturesquely
situated chiteau ; 1. Parempuyre (p. 57); r. Montferrand ; 1. Macaw
(p. 57); r. Ambés and Le Bec d’Ambés, the latter a low and narrow
tongue of land stretching for some distance between the Garonne
and the Dordogne.

The Mascaret, a tidal wave similar to the Barre on the Seine
and the Bore on the Severn and sometimes 8-10 ft. high, advances
as far as this point in August and September. It appears on a
rising tide and is, partly at least, the result of the two opposing
currents in the bed of the river.

‘We next pass some long islands on the left, while to the right
are several quarries.

r. 20 M. Blaye (Hotel du Médoc), a town of 5015 inhab., which
existed under the Romans and to this day retains a certain impor-
tance as a stronghold. It is prettily situated, partly on a hill,
but offers nothing of interest to the tourist. Its Citadel, on a rock
beside the river, is supplemented by the Fort du Pdté, on an islet,
and the Fort Médoc, on the left (opposite) bank. A branch-rail-
way runs hence to (151/, M.) St. Mariens (p. 32) ; another to (14 M.)
St. Ciers-Lalande (p. 32).

The steamer now heads for the left bank, on which are the
Chateau de Beychevelle, the slender spire of S¢. Julien, and several
vineyards (p. 57). The right bank is now, in its turn, hidden
by islands. To the left lies (37 M.) Pauillae (p.57), and farther on
are the hospital of Pauillac or Trompeloup, and St. Estéphe (p. 57),
the latter on a knoll. Still farther on, to the left, rise the towers of
St. Christoly and of Valeyrac. Near this point the Gironde is at its
widest. In mid-channel there is a sandbank about 8 M. long,
beyond which we again steer for the right bank, on which little
is seen but chalk-cliffs. Lastly, on the same side, lies St. Georges-
de-Didonne (p. 60), a small river-port and bathing-place surround-
ed by woods, 21/, M. short of Royan. On the left off the mouth
of the Gironde stretches the Pointe de Grave (p.58). Out in the
open sea rises the Lighthouse of Cordowan (see p. 60). On the right
bank stands —

Royan. — Hotels. HOTEL DE BoRDEAUX ET DE FRANCE, DE PaRIs,
D’ORLEANS (R. 2-3 fr.), all in the Boulevard Thiers, near the harbour; pu
CoMMERCE, Boulevard Lessore, RICHELIEU, Boulevard Botton, both near the
baths ; DE LA Cro1x-BLANCHE, Rue de Rochefort and Boul. Botton, déj. 21/,
D. 3, pens. 8 fr.; pE FrANCE, Rue Gambetta 45 and Boul. Lessore, D. 3 fr.;
HoTEL-RESTAUR. DU CENTRE, Rue Gambetta 52, R., L., & A. 2-3, B. 1/5-1, déj.
A/5, D. 28/4, pens. T1/3-8 fr.; Hor.-REsT. DEs VoYyAaGEURs, Rue de la Plage.
— At Pontaillac: Graxp-Horer, R., L., & A. 3-8, dej. 31/5, D. 41/, fr.;
H61. D’ANGLETERRE, DE PONTAILLAC, DE L'EUROPE, on the beach. At the
Pare : GRAND HOTEL, on the beach.

Cafés, Des Bains, de France, Boul. Thiers, at Royan; de la Plage, at
ontaillae.
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Sea Baths, with bathing-box and dress, 60 ¢. to 1 fr. — Casino. Adm.
by day 1-2, in the evening 3-4 fr.; subseription, per week 21, per fortnight 35,
per month 55, per season 100 fr. (families at a reduction).

Cabs, per hr. 3 fr., each additional 1/4 hr. 1/5 fr.; donkey -earriage,
2 fr. — Horse, per hr. 21/5, Donkey, 11/ fr. — Steam Tramway (Decau-
ville) to Pontaillac (see below), to the Parc and St. Georges-de-Didonne (see
below,) 25, 40 ¢. — Steamboat to Le Verdon (p. 58), 2 fr., return-ticket 3 fr.
This boat starts very punctually.

Post and Telegraph Office, Boulevard Botton 54.

Royan, a modern town with 7247 inhab., is one of the chief
sea-bathing resorts in France, being frequented by about 40,000
visitors annually. It is well built, partly on the rocks which
overlook the mouth of the Gironde, opposite the Pointe de Grave,
and it offers to visitors all the usual amenities of a fashionable
watering-place. Its four Conches, or beaches, are covered with fine
sand and afford admirable facilities for bathing. At Royan itself
the sea is generally calm, even when the waves are breaking furi-
ously at Pontaillac, 11/4 M. to the W. (hotels, see above). Between
the two lie the Conche de Foncillon, and the small Conches de Chay
and du Pigeonnier, beyond a small fort. The Grande Conche lies
to the left of the harbour. A new bathing-establishment has been
built here, near which is the handsome new Casino Municipal
(opened in 1895). The Statue of Eugéne Pelletan (1813-1884), by
Aubé, commemorates a benefactor of Royan. Near the quay where
we disembark is a fine park, which we may enter also from the Rue
du Casino, near the harbour, between the Boulevard Thiers and the
Rue Gambetta. The last-named street leads to the church of Notre-
Dame, a handsome modern Gothic structure. — The Railway
Station (line to Pons, see p. 32) is about 3/4 M. distant in the same
direction.

About 21/ M. from Royan by road (tramway, see above) and nearly
3 M. by the beach is St. Georges-de-Didonne (Hotel de I’Océan), another
sea-bathing resort.

The chief excursion from Royan is to the Lighthouse of Cordouan,
to which steamers ply during the season, usually on Sun. and Thrsday.
The lighthouse stands on a rock 71/3 M. from Royan, accessible from the
shore at low tide. The islet was formerly, it is said, attached to the
Pointe de Grave (see p. 58), which is now more than 3 M. from it. The
tower was perhaps originally constructed by the Saracens or by Louis the
Pious, but it was rebuilt by Edward, Prince of Wales (the Blaek Prince)
in 1370, and again in 1584-1610 from the plans of Louis de Foix, one
of the architects of the Eseurial. The present tower, however, dates
from the beginning of this century. The lighthouse, with its basement,
rises to a height of 212 ft. Such is the violence of the sea at this spot,
that the waves, though broken by reefs, still rise more than 40 ft. against
the tower. The light is visible for 30 M. In the second story of the
tower is a chapel of Notre-Dame-de-Cordouan.

Another excursion may be made to the Grande Céte (omnibus there
and back 1 fr. 60 ¢.; see the bills), about 6 M. to the N.W., where the chief
attraction is the spectacle of the stormy sea dashing on the rocky coast.

From Royan to Soulac (p. 58); fares 2 fr. 70, 2 fr. 45, 2 fr. 35 ¢.; ret i
ticket 4 fr. 50, 4 fr. 15, 3 fr. 95 c. : 2 i o

Railway from Royan to Pons and to La Tremblade, ete., see p. 32.
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8. From Bordeaux to Arcachon.

35 M. RAaiLwAy in 11/3-23/4 hrs. (fares 4 fr. 25, 3fr. 25, 2fr. B ec.;
return-ticket 6 fr., 4 fr. 50, 3 fr. 50 ¢.). Exeursion-trains at reduced fares
on Sun. and holidays in summer (return 3 fr. 50, 2 fr. 50, 1 fr. 50 ¢.). The
trains start from the Gare du Midi or de St. Jean.

Bordeaux, see p. 46. This line diverges to the right from the
Toulouse railway (R. 10), and passes, partly in cuttings, through a
wine-growing district, the finest product of which is the Hawui-
Brion, a wine of the premier cru (p.57). 33/4 M. Pessac.

The disappearance of the vineyards and the appearance in their place
of plantations of pines now indicate that we have entered the singular
district known as the Landes (waste lands). The name is given to a vast
triangular plateau, 150-200 ft. above the sea, and bounded by the Atlantic
and the valleys of the Garonne and the Adour. On the side next the
sea it is upwards of 120 M. in length, its maximum width is about
60 M., and it eovers an area of 2300 sq. M. The soil is composed of a
layer, about 11/, ft. deep, of sand and alios, i. e. vegetable detritus solid-
ified by a ferruginous cement, which renders it unfit for eultivation.
Even after the great improvements of modern times the district is still
dried up in summer and marshy in winter, the alios rendering the soil
impervious to moisture, while the sand-dunes (200-300 ft.) along the eoast
hinder the escape of the surface waters. These dunes moreover used to
invade the country, advancing about 20 yds. every year, but the attack has
been arrested by the planting of sea-pines (pinus maritima), begun in 1786.
The ecirculation of the waters, too, has been regulated, and the forests, al-
ready of great extent, are daily gaining on the bare ground. There still
remain, however, vast stretches of eountry, almost entirely waste, over-
grown with heath, furze, reeds, bracken, and broom, and presenting a
unique but monotonous appearance. It will be noticed that the trunks of
the pines are scored with gashes, below whiech small tin vessels are
placed. The purpose of these is to eolleet the resin, which forms a very
important article of commeree here. The sea-pine is not, however, the
only tree which thrives in the Landes: the acacia, the ailanthus, the oak,
and the cork-tree are successfully grown, the last chiefly near Bayonne.

In order to traverse the sands and the marshes, the inhabitants of the
Landes have had to adopt the ecustom of walking on stilts, 4-6 ft. high,
supporting themselves by a pole whieh serves as a walking-stick. It was
formerly no uncommon sight to see the natives, often elad in sheepskins,
traversing the Landes with the speed of a horse at full gallop, or
supported on the end of their long poles, tranquilly watehing their
flocks and knitting the footless stoekings peeuliar to the distriet. Nowx
a-days, however, the tourist, or at least the railway-traveller, will see
nothing of this kind, for there are fewer marshes and fewer pasturages
than formerly, and many roads have been made throughout the Landes.

6%/, M. Gazinet; 11 M. Pierroton; 14 M. Oroix-d’Hins; 17 M.
Marcheprime ; 20!/, M. Canauley; 23 M. Facture.

From FACTURE (ARCACHON) To LesPARRe (Royax), 561/3 M., railway in
23/4-41/4 hrs. (fares 9 fr. 40, 7 fr. 5, 5 fr. 15 ¢.). This line, whieh traverses
the Landes of the Gironde, skirts at first the N.E. side of the Basin of
Areachon (p. 63). — 8 M. Taussat, a small sea-bathing place; 13 M. Ares,
a country-town and bathing-resort. The line then turns to the N., skirt-
ing the W. side of the sand-dunes, which here attain a height of more
than 200 ft. and have several times necessitated the removal of the neigh-
bouring hamlets. — 28 M. Lacanau (Hdotel Caupos), to the E. of the pool
of the same name, which is 5 M. long and 2 M. broad. It is the junetion
of a line to Bruges and Bordeaux (see p. 56). — Beyond (35 M.) Carcans,
we pass the Ftang de Carcans or & Hourtin, 11 M. long and 21/5-31/o M.
wide. — 43 M. Hourtin. — 561/o M. Lesparre, see p. 58.
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The railway just described is continued to the S.E. of Facture by a
ine running through the valley of the Leyre (see below) vid Hostens
junetion of a line to Beautiran, p. 70) and (31 M.) St. Symphorien (p. T1)
o (45 M.) Luxey. 3

‘We now cross the Leyre, a navigable river flowing into the Basin
f Arcachon, and at (25 M.) Lamothe diverge to the right from the
Bayonne line (p. 64). — 261/, M. Le Teich; 29 M. Gujan-Mestras ;
31 M. La Hume.

33 M. La Teste, a town of 6480 inhab., represents the ancient
capital of the Boii, which the dunes have driven back to its present
site. In the Middle Ages it was the residence of the famous Seig-

heurs of Buch, whose castle has disappeared.

La Teste is the junction of a branch-railway to (8 M.) Cazaux, a vil-
age on the lake of the same name, which has an area of 17,000 acres
and is more than 150 feet in depth. It formerly communicated with the
sea, but is now 80 ft. above the sea-level. Steamboats ply on Thurs.
and Sun. to Sanguinet and Navarosse, with their picturesque woods.
Farther on is the similar Lake of Parentis. >

35 M. Arcachon. — Hotels. Graxp-HéreL, R. from 3, B. 11/5-2,
déj. 4, D. 5, pens. 9 (R. extra; less in winter), omn. 1 fr.; CONTINENTAL,
with dépendance in the forest, R., L., & A. 4-15, B. 11/5, dé). 4, D. b (both
inel. wine), pens. 12-20, omn. 1-11/; fr.; RICHELIEU; DB FraNcE; all in
the Boulevard de la Plage, with verandahs on the side next the Bassin:
JamPY, in the same Boul., but not facing the sea, pens. 10 fr. — GRAND-
HoTeEL B LA ForEr, near the Grand Casino, R., L., & A. 4-9, B. 11/5, dé€j.
31/, D. 41/, omn. 11/2 fr.; LEGALLAIS, Boul. de la Plage, at a distance
from the eentre; RoYAL Horer, in the Ville d’Hiver, ete. — Furnished
Houses; Chalets from 100 to 2500 fr. per month; Villas in the forest.

Cafés. *Grand Café, Molitre, Central, Boulevard de la Plage.

Sea Bathing., Three establishments: Grand Hitel, Grands Bains, near
the centre; Eyrac, to the E. Bathing-box 3/4-1 fr., with bathing-dress.

Casino. Adm. 1 fr. (50 e. when there is no concert or theatrieal re-
presentation), children half-price. Adm. to theatre: 1, 21/5, 4 fr. Sub-
seription, including the theatre: for gentlemen, per week 185, fortnight
30, month 50, season 100 fr.; for lady accompanying her husband, 14, 25,
40, or 90 fr., from July 15th to Sept. 15th; about half these charges in
winter. — Club des Etrangers and Yachting Club, at the Grand Hoétel.

Carriages. Per drive 11/ fr.; with two horses 2 fr.; per hour 21/5 or
8 fr.; 50 e. extra on Sunday and at night. Carriage without driver, 3 or i fr.
per hr. Saddle-horse, 2 fr. per hr. — Boats 3 fr. per hour. — Steamer to
Cape Ferret and the lighthouse (p. 63), there and back 2 fr.

Post & Telegraph Office, Avenue Gambetta, near the Place Thiers.

13 GK;}M:-Aquv.rium, {161 Boul. de la Plage, beyond the Chateau, adm.
2 2 Ir.

English Church (St. Thomas's). Rev. S. Radeliff, B. A., Chaplain. —
British Vice-consul: Mr. (. P. Wenber.

Arcachon is a charming sea-bathing and winter resort, which has
recently come into vogue and is now annually frequented by 100,000
visitors. The resident population is 7910. On Sundays and holi-
days it is inundated with excursionists from Bordeaux. It consists
of two parts, the town proper, situated on the lagoon of the same
name (see below), and the Ville d’Hiver, or winter-town, in the
forest planted on th_e dunes to the S.

Opposite the exit .from the station is the Chdteaw Deganne, an
elegant modern mansion in the Renaissance style. Thence we take

the Boulevard Deganne to the left, then the Boulevard Gambetta to
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the right, and reach the Place Thiers, almost the only spot in the
town where there is free access to the beach. Arcachon still lacks
a promenade-pier.

The Bassin d’Arcachon is a capacious gulf or lagoon, nearly
50 M. in circumference and 60 sq. M. in area, of which, however,
two-thirds are dry at low - water. Its form is triangular, the apex
being to the N., near Arés (p. 61), and the base extending from
the mouth of the Leyre on the N.E. to the strait which connects it
with the open sea, on the S.E. The shore is a very safe one for
bathing, of gentle slope and of fine sand. The water is as strongly
impregnated with salt as that of the open sea, but vigorous bathers

will miss the buffetting of waves.

In the centre of the Bassin are the Oyster Parks (see below), and on
the opposite side extends a tongue of land consisting of sand-dunes and
ending to the S. in Cape Ferret, on which stands a lighthouse of the first
class (8 M. from Arcachon). The roadstead protected by the cape is
broad and safe, but aceess to it is made difficult by banks of shifting
sand. A scheme has been mooted of narrowing the c¢hannel by means
of dykes and so establishing a refuge on this part of the coast, which is
dangerous and offers no other shelter.

The long Boulevard de la Plage runs in front of the houses
fringing the Bassin, and is continued towards the W. by the Boule-
vard de1’Océan. Arcachon extends to the E. and W., with its pretty
houses of every style scattered amid gardens and parks.

The street nearly in front of the Grand Hdétel, a handsome edi-
fice to the W. of the Place Thiers, ascends to the Casino, a large
building in the Moorish style, comprising a concert-hall, reading
and conversation rooms, card-rooms, and cafés in the Oriental
style. At one side is an iron Observatory, or belvedere, commanding
a fine view (10 ¢.). — Farther to the W. is the church of Notre-
Dame, built in 1856 by Alaux, in the Gothic style.

The Ville d’ Hiver is snugly ensconced among the pine-woods,
the resinous emanations of which combine with the bracing sea-air
to make it a peculiarly healthy resort. The temperature is at the
same time very favourable to invalids, the mean of the whole year
being 59° Fahr. and that of winter 48° Fahr. The villas of the winter-
town are even more luxurious than those on the beach. — Arcachon,
however, is far inferior to the Mediterranean winter-stations; the
monotony of the woods and the absence of view are apt soon to
pall upon visitors.

A pleasant walk may be taken as far as Moulleau, a village about
3 M. to the W., with an institution and a chapel founded by the Domi-
nicans. It may also be reached by the beach, by a route passing, to
the right at the end of the Boulevard de 1’0Océan, the Parc Pereire, a
private park to which the public are not admitted.

Oyster Parks, Those parts of the Bassin which are left dry by the
tide, called ‘Crassats’, are utilised for the breeding of oysters, which is
the chief industry of the distriet, supporting about 20,000 persons. The
oysters of Arcachon are in high repute and millions of them are sold
annually, representing a value of about 180,000i. A visit to the oyster-
beds is interesting if time permit. Fresh oysters may be obtained there
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and in the town for about 15 ¢. per dozen. In the middle of the Bassin,
reached by boat in 3/4 hr., is the Ile des Oiseaux.

The steamboat trip to Cape Ferret (p.63) is not recommended to visii-
ors pressed for time. It takes at least 3 hrs., and presents no special
attraction execept the view of the open sea. The walk from the steamboat
quay, over fatiguing sand-hills, may be avoided by using the tramway
(return- fare 40 ¢.). The lighthouse is too far from the landing-place to
be eonveniently visited. — The excursions to the lighthouse and to the
open sea, at the entrance to the bay, are scarcely more interesting. To
the Etang de Cazauzx, see p. 62.

9. From Bordeaux to Bayonne and Biarritz.

RAILWAY to (123 M.) Bayonne in 3-51/4 hrs. (fares 22 fr. 30, 15 fr. 5,
9 fr. 7 ¢.). — LocAL RAILwAY from Bayonne to (5 M.) Biarritz in 1/4 hr,
(fares 75, 45 ¢.). — Through -tickets to Biarritz convey the traveller to
La Négresse station (p.123). — The trains start from the Gare St. Jean (p. 46).

From Bordeaux to (20 M.) Lamothe, see p. 62. The line then
runs straight across the Landes for a distance of nearly 30 M. —
39 M. Caudos; 39 M. Lugos; 47 M. Ychoux (branch-lines to
Parentis, T/, M. to the W., and to Pissos, 9/, M. to the E.); 50 M.

Labouheyre, a small industrial town (branch-lines to the W. to
Mimizan, 17 M.; to the E. to Sabres, 12 M.); 60 M. Solferino, a
modern place, with large plantations.

68 M. Morcenx (* Buffet; Hotel du Commerce), a large village,
11/4 M. to the S. of the railway.

From MorceNx 10 TArBEs, 8 M., railway in 4-41/4 hrs. (fares 15 fr. 35,
10 fr. 35, 6 fr. 75 ¢.).

24 M. Mont-de-Marsan (Hoitel des Ambassadeurs; des Voyageurs), a eom-
mereial town with 12,030 inhab., the capital of the department of the
Landes, is pleasantly situated at the confluence of the Midou and the
Douze, which together form the Midouze, an affluent of the Adowr. It
possesses little of interest to the tourist. A branch-line runs hence to
(61 M.) Marmande, see p. 72. Another branch-line runs to (101/5 M.) St. Sever
(H6t. des Ambassadeurs; de France), a town of Roman origin with an
old abbey-chureh (10th cent., altered in the 15th).

We now reach a more fertile country and gain our first sight of the
Pyrenees, on the n’%ht, the Pic du Midi d’Ossau (p. 147) being the chief
s!:mmit visible. — M. Grenade - sur-U’Adour. About 31/ M. distant is
ZLugénie-les-Bains, a small watering-place with warm sulphur baths.

44 M. Aire (Poste), a very ancient town with 4551 inhab. and the seat
of a bishoprie, also on the Adour. The cathedral and the church of
)!as d’Aire (13-14th cent.) are interesting. Beyond (50 M.) St. Germé the
l‘me erosses_the Adour. — 531/, M. Riscle, the junction of a new line to
Condom (p. 72). — 741/y M. Vic-en-Bigorre, with 3640 inhab., is the junction
for Agen and Périgueux (see p. 105). — 85 M. Zarbes, see p. 135.

From Morccx.lx a branch-line, devoid of interest, erosses the Landes
to the W. via Sindéres to (14 M.) Mézos and (181/, M.) Uza.

76 M. Rion; 83 M. Laluque (branch-lines to Linxe, 161/, M. to
the W., vid Castets; and to Tartas, 8!/, M. to the E., on the Midouze).
In clear weather the Pyrenees now come into view on the left. —
871/; M. Buglose, a hamlet belonging to St. Vincent-de-Paul (for-
merly Pouy), the birthplace of the saint of that name. A handsome
?hapel has recently been erected here to the saint, and at Buglose
is a pilgrimage-chapel, with a wonder-working statue of the Virgin.
— We now quit the Landes and enter the valley of the Adour.
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92 M. Dax. — Hotels. Graxp HoteEL pEs THERMES, pens. 8-11 fr. in
summer, 10-13 fr. in winter; Gr. HoT. pE LA PAlx, R., L., & A. 2-5, B. 1-2,
déj. 3, D. 31/, pens. 8 fr.; pe L’EuroPE. — Invalids find accommodation
at Les Baignots, 5l/4-8 fr. per day, inel. treatment. — Café de la Re-
naissance, Promenade des Remparts. — Baths, 1/5-2 fr. — Cab from the
station 3/4, per drive 11/5, per hr. 21/; fr.

Dazx, a town with 10,240 inhab., on the left bank of the Adowr,
3/4 M. from the station, is the old capital of the Tarbells, called by
the Romans, in honour of its thermal waters, Aquae Tarbellicae,
afterwards Civitas Aquensium, and then simply Aquae or Acgs.
After submitting in turn to the Goths, the Franks. and the Vascons,
the town was reconquered by Charlemagne, destroyed by the Nor-
mans and the Saracens, and held by the English from 1177 to the
end of the 15th century. s

In spite of its antiquity this town has no noteworthy monuments.
It is, however, of importance as a thermal station, and even as a
winter-resort. The waters (108° Fahr.) are used in baths of every
description (including mud-baths) for rheumatic, surgical, neuralgic,
and uterine diseases. Some of the baths are fed by the bed-water
of a mine of rock-salt.

A bridge leads over the Adour from the station to the (1/, M.)
town. To the right, on the opposite bank, are the well - managed
Thermes de Dax, with rooms for boarders. To the left, above the
bridge, is the copious Fontaine Chaude, the chief spring, which
supplies the Thermes Romains and the Bains Lavigne, etc., while
the water is also used for domestic purposes.

The site of the old walls beside the Adour is occupied by the
pretty Promenade des Remparts, and in the former moat are the
mud-baths of S¢. Pierre. — The former Cathedral was rebuilt in
the 17-18th centuries. In the adjoining square is a statue, by Aubé,
of Borda (1733 -1799), the mathematician, a native of Dax. The
neighbouring Hotel de Ville contains a small Museum of antiquities
and natural history. — Farther down the left bank are the Thermes
Séris and the Baignots, both unpretending but well-managed. — Be-
hind the Establishment is a pretty Promenade, with the Tour Borda.

About 1/5 M. to the W. of Dax is St. Paul-lés-Dax, with an interesting
Ch“"ah' — At Tercis, 4 M. to the S.W., are warm baths containing chloride
of sodium.

STEAM - TRAMWAY from Dax to (211/; M.) Moliets, via (10 M.) Magescq
and (18 M.) Léon, near the Etang de Léon (39 sq. M.), under eonstruetion.
Cork-oak plantations; cork-manufacturing, ete.

From DAx ro Pav, 53 M., railway in 11/5-31/, hrs. (fares 9 fr. 50,
6 fr. 45, 4 fr. 20 ¢.). — This line skirts the town on the S. and erosses
the Adour. — 8 M. Mimbaste; 13 M. Misson - Habas. The train then passes
through a tunnel and enters the valley of the Gave (torrent) de Pau,
affording a fine view of the Pic d’Anie (p. 140) and other summits of the
Pyrenees. — 19 M. Puydo, on the line from Bayonne to Pau (see p. 127).

The line to Bayonne now descends the valley of the Adour.
98 M. Riviere; 101 M. Saubusse, with mud-baths ; 104 M. St. Géours ;
107 M. St. Vincent (branch to Soustons, 71/, M. distant); 111 M.
Benesse; 115 M. Labenne. Our route now approaches the sea, which
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comes into view on the right, as we emerge from the forest. Th
Adour reappears at the next station. — 121 M. Le Boucaw, no

far from the outlet of the river.

The Adour has not always had its mouth at this place. Down to 136(
or even later, it flowed along the dunes and entered the ocean 8-9 M
farther N., at the small port of Cap Breton. This outlet having been choke
by a storm, the river was forced to seek another at Vieuz-Boucau, 10 N
farther on. This ehange having proved very prejudicial to the navigatio
of the river and particularly to the trade of Bayonne, Louis de Foi>
architeet of the Eseurial, was commissioned in 1578 to create the prese:
outlet, which owes its continued existence to strong embankments cutlin
the river off from its older and natural channel.

We now follow the right bank of the Adour and pass the foc
of the citadel of Bayonne, skirting the quarter of St. Esprit, in whic
is the principal station. For the line to Biarritz, see p. 68.

123 M. Bayonne, — Hotels. *Gr. Hor. pu Commerce, Rue Thiers 2
moderate  PaxiEr-FLEURI, Impasse Port-Neuf, well spoken of, D. 31/5 fr.
DE PARIS & BILBAiNA, Rue Thiers 13; St. ETIENNE, Rue Thiers 4, R., L
& A. from 4, B. 11/5, déj. 4, D. 5, omn. 1/2 fr.; pE L’EUROPE ET ST. MARTD
Rue Thiers 12; DE LA PAIX, at the station, unpretending. — Café du Gran
Baicon, Place d’Armes. — Omnibus from the principal station to the Biarri
station, 20 ¢. — British Vice-Consul, Capt. E. P. Leeson.

Bayonne, a town and fortress with 27,192 inhab., is prettil
situated at the confluence of the Adour and the Nive, 3'/, M. fro:
the Bay of Biscay. It is badly built and presents few objects ¢
interest, except its fine cathedral; but its situation gives it a quair
and interesting appearance. The population consists mainly «
Basques and Spaniards, whose types, manners, language, and dre:
form a striking contrast to those of the other inhabitants.

Bayonne, which is probably the Lapurdum of the Romans, acquire
some importance in the Middle Ages by its whaling fleet, its trade wi
Spain, its tanneries, and its manufactures of arms. The bayonet is sa
to have been invented here. Acquired by England along with Aquitain
the town remained faithful to that country till 1451, thanks to the priv
leges granted to it. It offered a vigorous and successful resistance
Spain in 1523. Here, in 1565, amid great rejoicings, took place the inte
view between Charles 1X. of France and his sister Elizabeth, Queen
Spain, in the presence of their mother, Catherine de Médicis, and {]
Duke of Alva, when the Massaere of St. Bartholomew is said to have bee
glanned. In 1814 Bayonne made a brave resistance to the British a:

panish troops under Sir John Hope and was still untaken when pea:
was declared. The name Bayonne is Basque and means ‘port’.

The suburb of St. Esprit, in which the station lies, formed a sep:
rate town until 1857. It is dominated by a Citadel, built by Vauba
(1674-79) and considered one of his best works. It has never bee
taken, and over the entrance is the inscription ‘Nunquam polluta
L‘[t .cor'n}{nnds a fine view, but admission is not easily obtained. Th
Cimitiére des Anglais’, at the N. base of the citadel, owes its nam
to the total defeat of three English regiments.

Turning to the right on leaving the station, we soon cross th
Adour b}.' a bridge from which there is a striking view. At the en
01: the bn.dge is a fortified gate, the Rédwit, near the mouth of th
Nive, which divides Bayonne into two parts. Petit- Bayonne, th
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quarter adjoining the Adour, is chiefly occupied by the working-
classes. It contains the Military Hospital; the Chateau - Neuf
(15th cent.), converted into a barrack and military prison; the
Arsenal; and the Church of St. André, a modern Gothic building
in the style of the 15th century, containing (in the last chapel on
the right) an Assumption by Bonnat.

The Pont Mayou, the first bridge over the Nive, on the other side
of the Réduit, leads us to the Place de la Liberté. The large building
here comprises the Town Hall, the Theatre, the Public Library,
containing some important records, and a small Musewm. On the
other side of the town is the Place d’Armes, at which the Rue Thiers
(see below) begins; farther on, outside the fortifications, is the Gare
de Biarritz (see below).

The Rue Victor-Hugo, the principal street of the town, and its
prolongation, the Rue de I'Argenterie (on the right), lead from
the Pont Mayou to the —

#*CATHEDRAL, originally founded in 1140, but rebuilt after a fire
in 1213. The choir was first taken in hand, and the work was
continued till 1544, when the great portal was left unfinished. In
1847 a citizen of Bayonne, M. Lormand, bequeathed a sum of
35,000 fr. a year for the restoration and completion of the build-
ing, and the work is still going on under the direction of M. Boes-
willwald. Both spires are modern. The usual entrance is by the
portal on the N. side, which is preceded by a vestibule. On the S.
side of the church, which is hidden by other buildings, stands a
cloister of the 13th cent., formerly used as the burial-place of the
chapter. The fine *S. Portal adjoins the Sacristy, which contains
beautifal and well-preserved sculptures of the 13th cent. (entr.
from the interior of the church). — The internal proportions of
the Cathedral are vast and harmonious; the transepts project very
slightly beyond the aisles. Among the most noticeable points are
the triforium (with stained-glass windows of the 15-17th cent.), the
handsome high-altar (modern), the marble pavement of the sanctu-
ary (modern Italian work in imitation of an Oriental carpet), and
the modern mural paintings on a gold ground in the apsidal chapels.

In the Place de la Cathédrale is a small Fountain in memory
of two Bayonnais killed at Paris in 1830, with the inscription: ‘Les
révolutions justes sont le chatiment des mauvais rois’. Near the
cathedral, to the N. W., stands the Chdteaw- Vieuz, of the 12th and
15th cent., which is supposed to have been built on a part of the
Roman enceinte. It is now occupied by military offices. Descending
farther we reach the Rue Thiers, with the principal hotels (p. 66)
and the Place d’Armes, near the fortifications. Outside the town is
the Allée de Paulmy, a promenade skirting the fortifications (ad-
jacent is the small Biarritz Station, see p. 68); and opposite are
the Allées Marines, a fine promenade about 11/, M. long, on the
left bank of the Adour.

e
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Bayonne has a handsome modern Amphitheatre in the Moorish sty le,
or bull-fights and other entertainments; it lies a little to the W. of the
OWn. — Race Course, see p. 69.

FroM BAYoNNE TO Brarrrrz, 1/, hr. by local railway (see p. 64);
rains every hour, or oftener, from the station near the Allée Paul my
0. 67). There is also a tramway-line from the Place d’Armes at
ayonne to the beach at Biarritz, in 35 min, (fares 50, 35 ¢., re-
ri-ticket 90, 55 c.). Travellers are advised not to go to Biarrit:
y the Hendaye line (p. 123), the station of which is about 21/, M.
om the Baths, as omnibuses do not always meet the trains.

Biarritz. — Hotels. HoreL D’ANGLETERRE, Rue Mazagran, beyond
e Casino; GRrRAND HoTEL, Place de la Mairie and Place Bellevue, before
e Casino; pu CAsiNo, at the Casino; these three overlook the beach -
ICTORIA, in the lower town, near the beach, R. from 5, L. & A. 13/4,
11/, déj. 4, D. 6 (both inel. wine), pens. in winter 10-14, in summenr
-20, omn. 1fr.; CONTINENTAL, adjacent; pu PALAIs, in the former Villa
ugénie (see below); pe PAr1s, Place Ste. Eugénie, at the end of the Rue
dzagran, also with a sea-view; pms PRINCES, Rue Gambetta, to the left
' the Mairie; pe L’EUROPE; DE FrANCE, Place de la Mairie; pE BAvyon~Ee
' DE L’OcEAN, Rue Gambetta, R. 2-4, A, 1/2, B. 1, déj. 8, D. 4, pens. from
fr., ete. — Furnished Houses and Apartments abound.

Cafés, Anglais, de Paris, Place Bellevue; de U Europe, Place de la Li-
Tte.

Baths at the Bathing Establishments (see below) 85 ¢., with dress 50 ¢ _

Cabs. With one horse 11/5 fr. per hr.; with two horses 2 fr.; 1/5 fr.
re outside the town’; 1 fr. more at night (10 p. m. to 7 a, m.). — BAaTH
AIRS drawn by donkeys, 1 and 11/5 fr. — OmxiBUs to La Négresse station
123), 1 fr.; particulars at one of the offices in the Place de la Mairie.

Casino, Adm. 1fr.; 3 fr. after 7p. m. Subseription for a week 15,
a fortnight 25, for a' month 40 fy.
English Church (St Andrew’s); Cha lain, Rev.W. G. Sharpin. — British

e-consul: Mr. E. H. W. Bellairs. — nglish and American Physicians:
Macken, Dr. Welby, Dr. Malpas,

Biarritz, a town of 9177 inhab., situated on a line of cliffs
ing the Bay of Biscay, is one of the most frequented bathing-
ces in France, especially during September. The court patron-
- of the Second Empire undoubtedly contributed to this result,
_the reputation of the place is also founded on its real merits,
h as its singular situation and its magnificent beach. The cli-
e is mild and free from extremes, so that Biarritz is now in
ue as a winter-resort. On the other hand, the parks and woods
ch constitute the charm of Arcachon are altogether wanting
. The tone of society, too, is very different, Biarritz being
ially frequented by the upper classes, by the aristocracy of
thern France and' by Spaniards in summer, and by the English
inter.

Che station is now in the Place de la Liberté, near which, to
ight, is the Place Bellevue, between the Casino and the Grang
. From the Place we obtain a fine view of the sea and of
eautiful situation of Biarritz, :

he Grande Plage, which is more than 1/, M, long, extends
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on the N. to Cape St. Martin, on which is a lighthouse of the first
class. Itis divided into two parts by a small promontory on which
stands the former Villa Eugeénie, alarge and massive building erected
by Napoleon IT1. for his wife, converted into a hotel in 1894. Op-
posite is an elegant new Russian Church. At the beginning of
the Grande Plage is the principal Bathing Establishment, in the
Moorish style, with a terrace which always presents a scene of great
animation. The fine sandy beach is safe and pleasant for bathing,
and the force of the waves is slightly broken by a barrier of rock.
The road passing the base of the Casino leads to the Atalaye, a
promontory crowned by a ruined castle and surrounded by a pie-
turesque chaos of rocks called La Chinaougue. On one side of it is
a small fishing harbour, on the other (reached by a tunnel 82 yds.
in length) a harbour of refuge, the half-ruined pier of which affords
a fine view of the Spanish mountains near the mouth of the Bi-
dassoa. From the tunnel, a road descends to the Port-Vieuz, a
narrow and perfectly sheltered creek between rocks. Here stands
the Bathing Establishment for persons who are weakly or unaceus-
tomed to the sea. — Farther on we reach another beach, the Cote
des Basques, where the waves, with nothing to arrest them, attain
extraordinary force. There is a third bathing establishment here,
On the second Sunday in September the Basques resort to this
beach in vast numbers, and bathe all together, affording a very

curious spectacle.

In 1893 Saline Baths, connected with a hydropathic establish-
ment, swimming-bath, ete., were opened at Biarritz, on the Bayonne
road. They are supplied by the saline springs of Briscous, 12 M. to
the E., whence the water is brought by means of subterranean canals.

The Race Course is at La Barre, near the entrance to the harbour of
Bayonne, reached by the road followed by the tramway, then by the
Avenue du Phare, and the Chemin des Pignadars.

From Bayonne to St. Sebastian, see R. 18; to Pau, Toulouse, ete., see R. 19.

FroM Bavonse To Campo, Sr. JEAN-PIED-DE-PORT, AND Roxcevaux,
To (12 M.) Cambo, Rarnway in 35-40 min. (fares 2 fr. 15, 1 fr. 45, 95 c.);
thence to (24 M.) St. Jean-Pied-de-Port, by rail to (131/, M.) Ossés, whenee
a diligence (1 fr. 20 ¢.) plies in connection with the trains, pending the
completion of the railway: from St. Jean to (181/3 M.) Roncevauz, intey-
esting carriage -road. — The railway aseends the left bank of the Nive,
passing (6 M.) Villefranque, (8 M.) Ustaritz, a small industrial town, and
(10 M.) Halsou. — 12 M. Cambo (Hoitel Angleterre or St. Martin, de Paris,
both near the Baths; de France; des Basques) is a picturesquely situated
village, partly on a steep eminence on the right bank of the Nive (Haut-
Cambo) and partly in the valley (Bas-Cambo). About 3/4 M. farther (sta-
tion, see p. 70) is a bathing-establishment, with iron and sulphur springs.
The climate is hot in Summer, but pleasant in spring and autumn-
A great gathering of Basques takes place on St. John’s Eve (June 23rd),
when each tries to drink the greatest possible amount of water whilst
the clock is striking twelve (midnight), in order to insure his well-being
nntil the following anniversary. They also take away with them a supply
of the water for those who have not been able to come. The Church at
Haut-Cambo, in the style peculiar to the country, eontains three galleries
or men and a blue ceiling with silver stars, — The environs are pretty.

The railway continues to ascend on the right bank of the Nive, via
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(121/3 M.) Cambo-les-Bains and (151/3 M.) Itzassou or Hsatsou. About 1 M.
from this village, in the rocky part of the Nive valley, is the Pas e
Roland, a rock through which the road passes by an opening made,
according to the legend, by a kiek of the Paladin’s foot. The chief
eminence near Cambo is the Pic Mondarrain (2460 ft.; to the S.), which
is easily elimbed in 2 hrs. from Itxassou. The top, on which is a ruined
fortress, commands a very extensive view. — The next stations are (181 /5 M . )
Louhossoa and (211/y M.) Bidarray, 3 M. from which is a small grotto con-
taining a stalactite, regarded with superstitious veneration by the peas-
ants. — 251/, M. Osses, the temporary terminus of the railway, at the
confluence of the Nive de St. Etienne and the Nive d’Arnéguy. A diligence
(1 fr. 25 ¢.) plies hence to (71/5 M.) St. Etienne-de-Baigorry (Hotel), a tow n
of 2343 inhab., in the valley of the Nive de St. Etienne.

The road to St. Jean ascends the valley of the Nive d’Arnéguy, via
(TM.) Iroulégny and (91/5 M.) Ascarat. — 101/5 M. (36 M. from Bayonne)
St. Jean-Pied-de-Port (Hitel de France), a small town fortified by Vauban
n order to command the passage of the Port or Col de Roncevauax (see
below). St. Jean, the old capital of Basse-Navarre, has belonged to
‘rance since the Treaty of the Pyrenees in 1609. — A diligence plies
1ence to St. Palais (p. 197).

Beyond St. Jean the road runs to the S., on the right bank of the
Nive, which forms several picturesque gorges. At (5 M.) Arnéguy we quit
‘rench territory by erossing the river, — /s M. Luzaide or Valcarilos
Hotel de Bareelone) is a Spanish village with a hydropathic establish-
nent. The road now ascends in windings (short-cuts for walkers) to the
ort de Roncevauz (3470 ft.; fine view) in about 81/4 hrs. from Valearlos.
'rom the col, on which is an ancient chapel, we descend in less than
/o hr. to Roncevaux. — 181/o M. (50 M. from Bayonne) Roncevaux, Span.
oncesvalles (3220 ft.; Posada) is situated in the valley famous for the
efeat of Charlemagne’s rear-guard in 778, and the death of Roland, better
nown in.goetry than in history. Eginhard is the only chronicler who
entions the famous paladin as among the slain. The village contains
1 ancient Abbey, with a Gothie chureh enriched with a costly statue of
e Virgin and several interesting paintings. The Chapel of the Holy Ghost,
ar the chureh, is said to mark the spot where the companions of
iarlemagne were buried. — The road goes on to Pampeluna, M. from
dneevaux,

10. From Bordeaux to Toulouse.

159 M. RAILWAY in 43/4-81/, hrs. (fares 28 fr. 90, 19 fr.55, 12 fr. 75 e.).
he trains start from the Gare du Midi or St. Jean.

Bordeauz, see p. 46. The line diverges to the left from that to
ayonne and ascends the valley of the Garonne. — 33/4 M. Bégles :
/2 M. Villenave-d’ Ornon ; 51/, M. Cadaujac ; 8%/, M. St. Médard-
Eyrans. — 12 M. Beautiran.

From Beautiran a branch-line runs to (201/5 M.) Hostens (p.62). The
ief intermediate station is (41/5 M.) La Bréde (Hotel du Grand- Montes-
‘eu), a small town eontaining the chateau of Montesquieu (1685-1755).
uilding of the 13-15th centuries. The chamber of the famous essayist is

pt as it was in his lifetime (visitors admitted). - A statue of Montesquieu,
P. Granet, was erected here in 1895,

13 M. Portets; 15 M. Arbanats; 17!/, M. Podensac ; 18/, M.
rons. About 1 M. to the E. of the last station, on the right bank
the Garonne, is the small town of Cadillac, still surrounded by
s of the 14th cent. with fine gates. The Chdteaw d’ Epernon at
lillac, an edifice of the 16-17th cent., has been converted into a
son for women. — We now traverse a district famous for its
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white wines, those of (21 M.) Barsac and (23 M.) Preignac being
specially esteemed. Sauternes (p. 57), which lends its name to the
whole class, is about 4 M. to the S.W. of the latter place.

26 M. Langon (Cheval Blane), a town of 4733 inhab., on the left
bank of the Garonne, with a suspension bridge, has a small harbour

at which the tide is perceptible.

From LaNeoN 10 Bazas, 121/ M., railway in 40-55 min. (fares 2 fr. 25,
1fr.50e¢., 1fr.). — 41/3 M. Roailian. — About 2 M. to the N. of (T1/3 M.)
Nizan is the Chateau de Roguetaillade, built in the beginning of the 14th eent.,

with six towers and a keep more than 100 ft. high.

[Nizan is the junetion of a braneh-line to several industrial places,
including (41/5 M.) Villandraut, the birthplace of Pope Clement V. (Bertr.
de Goth; d. 1%14), whose large Chdteau still exists, though in ruins; and
(11 M.) St. Symphorien (junction of the line to Facture and Arés; p.62).]

121/, M. Bazas (Cheval Blanc), a town with 4948 inhab., on a roek
washed by the Beuve, belonged to the ancient Vasates. It played an im-
portant part in the Religious Wars, when it was the secene of excesses
of all kinds committed both by Catholies and Protestants. Down to 1790
it was the seat of a bishop. The Cathedral dates from the 13-16th eentur-
ies. Some of the 13th cent. Town-Walls and a number of old Houses are
interesting. — The railway is to be extended from Bazas to Aueh (p. 104).

The main line now crosses the Garonne by a bridge succeeded
by a long viaduet.

209 M. St. Macaire (Hotel de @’ Alma), a town of 2250 inhab., to
the right, the ancient Ligena, suffered considerably in the Hundred
Years'War and the Religious Wars. It still possesses the remains of
three lines of defence of the middle ages, the principal feature being
a gateway of the 13th cent., and many quaint old houses. The
handsome church of St. Sauveur, in the Romanesque and Gothic
styles (12-15th cent.), has transepts ending in apses, and contains
some ancient mural paintings which have recently suffered consider-
able injury. About 3 M. to the N.W. is Verdelais, with a pilgrim’s
shrine of the Virgin. — 39 M. S¢. Pierre-d’ Aurillac. A little farther
on the river is joined by the Canal Lateral a la Garonne, 120 M.
long, which meets the Canal du Midi at Toulouse (p. 80). — 321/, M.
Caudrot; 35 M. Gironde, beyond which are two short tunnels near
La Réole.

38 M. La Réole (Grand Hotel), a town of 4177 inhab. , ona
hill rising from the Garonne, was built in the 10th cent. round the
Benedictine abbey of Regula. We turn to the right on quitting the
station, pass the end of a suspension-bridge, and ascend to the right.
The church of St. Pierre, at the other end of the town, dates from
the 13-15th cent. and has a modern Romanesque steeple. Adjoining
is the former Abbey (17th cent.); and behind the church is a Ter-
race with a modern Collége. Near the church are the ruins of a
Castle built by the English during their rule; it is now private
property and is still partly inhabited. From the end of the Grande-
Rue we keep to the left by the Rue Gensac and Rue Brumard to
visit the Romanesque Halle, with its row of fine columns.

411/, M. Lamothe-Landeron ; 45 M. Ste. Bazeille.
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49 M. Marmande (Hot. des Messageries, near the station; i
Centre, Rue Nationale) is a commercial and industrial town (10,341
inhab.) on the Garonne. The Boul. Gambetta, to the left, then th
Rue Puyguéraud, to the right, bring us to the Place Nationale
whence the street of the same name leads to the Church, of the
12-15th cent., adjoined on the right by a ruined cloister, in the Re-
naissance style. .

FroM MARMANDE TO BERGERAC, 461/, M., railway in 21/4-21/5 hrs. (fares
8 fr. 40, 5 fr. 65, 3 fr. 70 ¢.). The line runs via ( M.) Seyches, 151/, mr))
Miramont, a town of 2000 inhab. with trade in ‘prunes d’Agen’ and con-
taining a statue of Martignae (1778-1832), the statesman, by Foyatier:
(211/3 M.) Eymet, proposed terminus of the new line from Bordeaux via
La Sauve (p. 56); and (35 M.) Issigeac, ete. — 461/3 M. Bergerac (p. 14).

FRroM MARMANDE ToO MoNT-DE-MARSAN, 61 M. , railway in 3-33/4 hrs.
(fares 11 fr. 10, 7 fr. 40, 4 fr. 85 ¢.). — This line diverges to the left from
that to Bordeaux, and crossing the Garonne and the lateral canal by
means of a viaduet over 1000 yds. in length, ascends the valley of the
Avance. — 16 M. Casteljaloux (‘Castelgelos®; Hotel Girot), a town of 3716
inhab., with a ruined Chdteau, remains of Fortifications, an old Commandery
of the Knights Templar (now the Mairie), and chalybeate springs. —
Farther on the scenery is monotonous as the line traverses the extremity
of the Landes (p. 61). — 43 M. Retjons- Lugaut. — 46 M. Roquefort, a smal)
town with a ruined chiteau. — 61 M. Mont-de- Marsan (p. 64).

55 M. Fauguerolles. — 60 M. Tonneins ( Hot. del’ Europe) | with
7090 inhab., on the Garonne, formerly consisted of two towns.

attachment to Protestantism. Branch-line to Penne via Villenewre-

sur-Lot, see p. 103. — 641/, M. Nicole, beyond which we €ross the
Lot, not far from its confluence with the Garonne,

67 M. Aiguillon (Tapis Vert), the Acilio of the Romans, on the
eft bank of the Lot, contains 3120 inhab. and possesses ther uins of
~castle of the Dukes of that name, and a modern Gothic church.

72 M. Port-Ste. Marie (Hot. de U Europe), a small and ancient
OWn on the Garonne, with two Gothic churches of the 14th century,

FroM PorT-StE. MARIE TO RiscLe, 72 M. railway in 43/4-61/5 hrs. (fares
0 fr. 25, 7 fr. 35, 4 fr. 80.¢c.). — The line_ erosses the Garonne. 33/4 M.
eugarolles ; 61/4 M. Vianne, a small walled town; 8 M, Lavardac, small
1dustrial town on the Bayse, with a trade in cork.

2 M. Nérac (Hotel de F'rance), a commereial town of 6909 inhab. on the
ayse, belonged to the Sires @’Albret from the 14th cent. onwards,
as often the residence of the court of Navarre in the 16th
1e accession of Henri IV. to the French throne. Taken an
¥ Louis XIII. on aceount of its Protestant sym athies , it has ne

hich contains various points of interest. In one of the squares of Nérac
a statue of Henri IV., by Raggi. The Sous-préfecture containg
1sée. — A branch-line runs hence to (91/5 M.) the little town of Mézin
d is to be prolonged to Mont-de-Marsan (p. 64). 4
Severgil Small stations are passed. — 25 M. Condom (Hotel du Lion-a Or),
own with 7405 inhab., on the Bayse, carrying on an important trade
Armagnae brandy. It was formerly the seat of a bishoprie, whieh was
d by Bossuet, The handsome Gothie Cathedral (1506-21) is adjoined by
1gins ofla cloli]ster, NOW containing the Hotel de Ville, %
everal small stations are Passed. — 46 M. Eauze (Hotel Soubey:
wn of .4110 inhab. on the Gelise. It is the modern( represenmﬁv’;a’g;‘
'@, an important town in the time of Ceesar, which was completely
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destroyed about A.D.910. The old town was at La Ciutat (°City"), aboat
1/2 M. distant, on a plateau above the right bank of the Gelise, and many
antiquities have been discovered on its site. Eauze has a fine Gothie

Church of the 16th century.
491/; M. Gaillon; 531/ M. Manciet. — 581/5 M. Nogaro, a towh of 2354

inhab., with a trade in brandy. Its old Romanesque chureh is interest-
ing. — 611/5 M. Sobrets; 64 M. Fustérouau ; 6S M. ermes. — T2 M. Riscle,
64

g 76 M. Fourtic; 79 M. St. Hilaire; 80!/, M. Colayrac. As we
approach Agen, we see to the right a fine aqueduct, carrying the
canal across the railway (see below).

84 M. Agen (Buffet). — Hotels. Dgs AMBASSADEURS ET DE FRANCE,
Cours Voltaire 22; Gr.-Hor. BAras, Place du Marché-au-Blé, good, R. 2,
déj. 21/5, D. 3 fr.; PeriT-ST. JeAN, Cours Voltaire 35, expensive; GEORGE,
Rue Jacquard; Jasmix, at the station. — Cafés in the Cours and in the
Place de la République; Grand Café, near the Place Jasmin. — Post & Tele-
graph Office, Place de 'Hotel-de-Ville.

Agen, a town with 23,234 inhab., the capital of the department
of Lot-et-Garonne, and the seat of a bishop, lies on the right bank
of the Garonne. As the capital of the Nitiobriges, it was a place of
importance under the Gauls, and it afterwards became the chief city
of the Agénois. The executions of Albigenses and Huguenots form
bloody pages in its history. It was the birthplace of the philologist
Joseph Scaliger (1540-1609), and of the naturalist Lacépéde (1756~
1825). It has a large trade in dried plums.

Most of the town is badly built, and the older streets are
narrow and inconvenient. The wide new Boulevard de la République
(begun in 1885), however, has been constructed through the middle
of the town, from E. to W., and this is to be crossed at right angles
by another, beginning at the station.

In front of the station is the Steeple of Ste. Foi, a modern Gothic
tower marking the site of a former church. — A little farther on,
bending to the right, we reach the Cathedral of St. Caprais, with
a fine apse and transept of the 11-12th cent., and a nave rebuilt in
the 14-16th centuries. The interior is richly decorated with poly-
chrome paintings and frescoes. Among the most noteworthy features
are the left arm of the transept and the huge piers which formerly
supported a dome, adorned with shafts ending in singular capitals.

The Rue St. Caprais and the succeeding one lead from this
church to the Market Hall. a handsome modern building in the
centre of the town. In the E. part of the Boulevard de Ia République
see above) are a modern Bust of Frangois de Cotéte (d. 1567), an
Agenais poet, and a Statue of the Republic, by Fumadelles.

In the opposite direction, the Boulevard descends to a small
quare adorned with a bronze Statue of Jasmin, author of several
oems in the Agenais dialect (1798-1864). The statue, by Vital
Jubray, represents the poet, who was a barber by profession and
as been styled the ‘Last of the Troubadours’, in a quaint French
0stume, and reciting the following verses, which are inscribed

1 the pedestal : —
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‘O ma lenco, tout me zou dit, O ma langue, tout me le dit,
Plantarey uno estelo Je placerai une étoxlg
A toun froun enerumit’. A ton front rembruni.

In front of the Place Jasmin runs the wide Cours Voltaire, which
a little farther to the E. skirts the Promenade du Gravier , on the
bank of the Garonne, here crossed by a Suspension Bridge for foot—
passengers. Higher ap is a Stone Bridge, while lower down is a
Canal Bridge or aqueduct, over which the Canal Latéral is car—
ried, and which also serves for foot-passengers. The last-mentioned
bridge is a fine specimen of engineering skill. On the same side,
to the right, not far from the Cours Voltaire, is the Chureh of St.
Hilaire, a building of the 15th cent., with a modern facade and a
handsome modern tower. The interior is adorned with polychrome
paintings and contains some good modern stained-glass windows and
a handsome stone organ-loft.

The Rue Londrade, the second in ascending the Boulevard de
a République from the Place Jasmin, leads to the Eglise des Ja-
'0bins, a brick building of the 13th cent.. adorned with polychrome
aintings and modern stained-glass windows. — Hence we proceed
)y the Rue du Pont-de-Garonne to the Hotel de Ville, adjoining
vhich is the Maison de Montluc, a building of the 16th cent.,
vith a fine winding staircase. Tt contains the Municipal Musewm.

The Museum, which is at present of little importance, is open to the
yublic on Sun. and Thurs. from 1 to 4 or 5, and to strangers on other
lays also. — On the ground-floor are Roman antiquities and seulptured
\nd architectural fragments, mosaics, small bronzes, ete. — The rooms
m the first floor contain paintings (most of them modern) , faience and
pottery, antiques, curiosities, and objeects of natural history. Among the
ictures may be mentioned Clytemnestra, by Zoudouze; Le Rabouteux,
by Carteron; the Massacre of Machecoul, by Flameng; Emp. Henry IV. at

Canossa, by Davant; Battle-field in Lorraine, by Bettannier; and the
Valley of Pralognan, by J. Desbrosses.

The Rue Montesquieu, which begins at the Market and is Joined
oy the streets which pass the Hotel de Ville, leads S. to the Pro-
menade de la Flate-Forme, in which stand the Preéfecture , ori-
jinally the Bishop’s Palace (18th cent.), the modern Palais de
fustice, and other large buildings. In front of the Palais de J ustice
§ a small bronze War Monument (‘Round the flag’), by Campagne.
'he Rue Palissy, to the right, leads back to the Gravier (see above).

From Agen to Périgueuz, to Auch, and to Tarbes, see R. 14.

87 M. Bon-Encontre, the station for the pilgrimage-resort of
hat name, 11/, M. to the N.E., and the junction of the line to
.uch and Tarbes (p. 103). — 90 M. Lafox; 93 M. St Nicolas - de-
1-Balerme ; 97T M. La Magistére ; 100 M. Valence-d’ Agen ; 105 M.
falause. The Garonne is crossed by numerous suspension-bridges,
1e of the finest of which, near Moissac, is prolonged by a viaduet,
rrying the road over the railway. '

111 M. Moissac (Hotel du Nord, mediocre), a commercial town
ith 8797 inhab., on the Canal Latéral and the right bank of the
11N, owes its existence to an ancient abbey, believed to have been
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founded in the 7th century. To reach the interesting remains of
the abbey, which adjoin the hotel and consist of the church and
the cloisters, we turn to the left at the end of the avenue issming

from the station.

The Church, dedicated to St. Peter, was rebuilt in the 15th cent.
but retains a magnificent, though somewhat mutilated *Portal of
the 12th century.

The portal consists of a deeply recessed archway forming a kind of
porch. The central pier is adorned with lions and statues of the Pro-
phets in high relief, while on the lateral piers are similar statues of
Isaiah and St. Peter, and seulptured bands of rats and birds. The inner
walls of the porch are also lavishly embellished with groups of statues
(the Annunciation and the Visitation on the right; Avarice and Luxury
on the left) and bas-reliefs (Infaney of Our Lord, Dives and Lazarus). The
tympanum group represents Our Lord surrounded by the Elders of the
Apocalypse, with symbols of the Apostles and two Angels. Both statues
and reliefs are framed in bands of decorative sculpture, of great beauty
and delicacy, and at each side are three attached columns, the eapitals
of which are adorned with griffins, arabesques, ete.

The chief objects of interest in the interior are the Renaissance sereen
enclosing the sanetuary, the organ, and a Merovingian sarcophagus (below).

The *Cloister, adjoining the church on the left, and entered from
the little Place in front of it (custodian), dates from 1100-1108 and
is one of the finest in France. Its arches, which are very slightly
pointed, rest alternately on single and clustered columns, the cap-
itals of which are embellished with scenes explained by inseriptions.

Beyond Moissac the railway passes through two short tunnels,
after which we see on the right the church of St. Pierre (see above).
It then crosses the Tarn by a tubular bridge, and reaches —

116 M. Castelsarrasin (Hotel de France; de U Europe), atown with
7772 inhabitants. The name has nothing to do with the Saracens,
but is supposed to be a corruption of ‘Castel-sur-Azin’ or ‘Castrum
Cerrucium’. The brick church of St. Sauveur (12-15th cent.) is
interesting ; the tower over the nave is modern.

Beyond (121 M.) La Villedieu the lines to Cahors and Limoges
(p. 112) diverge to the left.

128 M. Montauban (Buffet). — The Gare du Midi lies about 1/5 M.
from the centre of the town, in the suburb of Ville-Bourbon, and the
Gare @’ Orléans about as far on the opposite side, in the suburb of Ville-
Nouvelle, but the two stations are connectéd by rail, and the trains which
arrive at the latter go on to the former.

Hotels. Du Mip1, Place d’Armes, of the first class; pE L’EURoPE,
Place de I’'Horloge and Rue de I'Hétel - de-Ville; QUATRE SA1soNs, Rue
Bessiéres. — Café de I’ Europe, Place de la Préfecture.

Montauban, a prosperous town with 30,388 inhab. , the capital
of the department of Tarn-et-Garonne, and the seat of a bishop,
occupies a plateau on the right bank of the Tarn, the sides of

which are washed by two small affluents of that river.

Montauban was founded in 1144 by Alphonse I, Count of Toulouse,
n the site of the Roman station of Mons Albanus. It embraced with ar-
lour the doetrines of the Albigenses, partly through hatred of the monks
f Le Moustier, which is now its N.E. suburb, and the Inquisition wrought
errible havoe here, without, however, preventing the Reformation from
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making sueh progress that the town was one of the chief strongholds o
the Huguenots. Louis XIIL failed in his attempt to capture the town ix
1621, but the struggle could not be continued after the fall of La Rochelle
and the town, submitting to Richelieu in 1629, had its fortifications le-
velled. Even now it is partly Protestant, and it has a Faculty of Protest
ant Theology.

Quitting the Gare du Midi, we traverse the suburb of Ville-
Bourbon, with a fine modern Romanesque church, and cross the
Tarn by a lofty brick Bridge, built in 1303-1316, with pointed
arches; it was formerly fortified. The water of the Tarn is even
more turbid than the waters of the Gers and the Gironde.

The Hotel de Ville, a brick building on the other side of the
bridge, is the old chiteau, begun by the Counts of Toulouse, added
to by the Black Prince in the 14th cent., and finished by Bishop P.
de Berthier in the 17th century. The MuniciPAL MuseumM, on the
first floor, is chiefly interesting because it contains the collections
as well as some paintings and souvenirs of Ingres, who was a native
of Montauban (1780-1867). It is open to the public on Sun. from

1 to 4, and to strangers on other days also.

First Floor. — Room I. Above the door, 34. Jngres, Dream of Ossian.
unfinished; to the right, 259. J. Jouvenet, Descent from the Qross, a
smaller replica of the picture in the Louvre; 297. Sturler (pupil of Ingres).
Procession of Cimabue’s picture of the Madonna; 376. Jtalian School,
Adoration of the Magi, with the Ascension as predella; 273, Mignard,
Portrait of a prinee; copies of Correggio, Giulio Romano, Titian, and Ingres.
— The glass-cases contain small antiquities, miniatures, medals, bronzes
drawings, etec. Busts in bronze. — Roowm II. To the right, 291. Rigaud, Por
trait; ﬁ)é Copy of Murillo, St. Augustine; 197. Van Dyck, Portrait of a
monk ; 350.. Italian School, Cwsar Borgia; 199. Jordaens, Silenus and the
four Seasons; 192. Coello, Coronation of Charles V.; 365. Voa Calcar, Por-
trait of a man; 232. Couder, The Levite of Ephraim; 249. Glaize, Faun
and Bacchante, painted on wax in imitation of the antique; 202. Pourbus
the Elder, Portrait of a woman ; several other portraits by unknown hands ;
364. Bellini, Circumecision; 227. Cambon (of Montauban), The Republie
(1848); 341. Albani, Allegory. — *44. Ingres, Jesus among the Doctors in
the Temple; no number, French School, Pastoral; 178. After 7Zitian, Venus
ecrowned by Cupid; 200. Jordaens, Head of a faun; 363. Bassano, Country
scene; 247. De @ironde (of Montauban), Judith; 50. Poussin, Landseape
298, I;alerm'n, Singers; 349. Italian School, Crucifixion; no number, Spamisi
School (Murillo?), Singing-lesson ; no number, Salvator Rosa, Guard-house -
204. Pourbus the Elder, Portrait of a man; 375. P. Veronese(?), Madonna and
Child. — In the centre: to the right, Caravaggio(?), Portrait; Vasari @,
Judith ; Cambon, Sleeping nymph, Roland and Olympia; to the left, Cam-
bon, Artist’s portrait; P. Veronmese (?), Doge and Dogaressa; De Gironde,
The.Sleeper. — Behind the pictures on the right: 205. Rubens, The Thinker :
268. Lewitzki, Catherine of Russia; 191. Flemish School, Writer.

Room III., the first room of the Musée Ingres. 1In the middle is
the easel of the artist, with an unfinished picture. To the right of
the door, 182. P. Veromese, Head of a woman; 4. Velazquez, Portrait of a
woman; 124. Unknown Master, Head of Christ; 109. Giottino, Triptych -
41, Ingres, Ruggiero delivering Angelica, a variation on that in the Louvre -
191. Byzantine School, Ten Saints; 1. Holbein the Younger, Portrait of a
monk; 138. G. Poussin, Landscape; 9. Phil. de Champaigne, Monk per-
forming the operation of trepanning; 21. H. Flandrin, Portrait of Ingres :
118, 116, 117. Unknown Artists of the 13th cent., Saints, Christ: 16. Chardin.
Dead game; 10. Pourbus the Younger, Portrait of a man. This room also
contains several eopies » Small antiquities, a glass-case with souvenirs of
Ingres, and a mantelpiece with sculptures by the father of the painter
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— in an important eollection of drawings
(Iung:;' of ﬁ,%?,’.‘sclo‘,{,}‘e: .]’)yVIIhg::allll;;eelf);p antiquities, casts, pictures
(5. Portrait of Moliére, attributed to Seb. Bourdon; eopies of Raphael),
sculptures (Cupid bending hisy5 })ﬁ)w, att;ug:stee;iv:onlgrt';gte ¢s), bronzes, ete.
The;;;llﬁiie;zgn:hzoittgi:?da mﬁ?ﬁ of Antiquities and Objects of Art of
the Middle Ages and the Renaissanee. — The Public Library (25,000 vols.)
and archives are also deposited in the Hotel de Ville.

Opposite the Hotel de Ville stands the Exchange, containing a
Museum of Natural History (second floor; open on Sun., { to 4).

The Rue de I’'Hotel-de-Ville leads towards the Place d’Armes
and the cathedral (see below). In the meantime, however, we turn
to the right and proceed to the Church of St. Jacques, a brick
building in the Gothic style of Toulouse (see p. 81), with an octa-
gonal tower adorned on the outside with faience. The pulpit and
the fine modern stained-glass windows are noteworthy. — A little
farther to the E., behind St. Jacques, is the Place Nationale, bor-
dered by double arcades and with gates at the corners (17th cent.).

In the Place d’Armes (see above), which we reach by turning to
the right on the other side of the Place Nationale, stands the Cathe-
dral, acommonplace building of the 48th cent., but containing a
fine painting by Ingres (in the sacristy), representing the Vow of
Louis XIII. — A little farther on, to the left, is the Préfecture, a
modern edifice in stone and brick.

The Promenade des Acacias, to the right, on this side of the
Préfecture, in front of a convent, leads to the Promenade des Carmes,
at the end of which stands the Monument to Ingres, by Etex. It
consists mainly of a bas-relief in bronze, reproducing the picture
of the Apotheosis of Homer, with some modifications by Ingres
himself, and of a marble statue of the artist seated in front of his
work. In clear weather the Pyrenees are visible from this point.
At the beginning of the promenade is the entrance to the Jardin
des Plantes (25 c.) which occupies the slope on the right bank of
the Tescou, an affluent of the Tarn, and also part of the left bank
in the suburb of Sapiae. — The church of Sapiac, which is reached
by the street descending at the end of the promenade, possesses a
second-rate picture by Ingres, representing Ste. Germaine (second
chapel on the right).

.. From Montauban to Limoges (Paris), see RR. 16a, 15a; to Montpellier
vid Castres, see R.13; to Lezos (Limoges line), see p.115.

The railway now returns to the side of the Canal Latéral, leaving
on the l'eft tl_le I'me to Castres, and passes through a fertile but un-
11|t’?1~estljng' distriet. — 135 M. Montbartier 5 1391/, M. Dieupentale ;
143 M. Grisolles; 146 M. Castelnau-d’ Estretefonds : 150 M. St. Jory ;
IIS};))M‘ Lacourtensourt, where we join the Paris line (R.16; to tiu;

159 M. Toulouse (Gare Matabiau), see R, 11, -
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11. Toulouse.

Railway Stations, Gare Matabiau (Pl. F,1,2; Buffet), the central
on the N.E. side of the town; Gare St. Cyprien (P1. A, 5), to the S.W.
11/4 M. from the stone bridge over the Garonne, for the line fo
(p. 86). — There are no hotel-omnibuses at the stations, but the tra
met by railway-omnibuses (25 e. for each pers. and for each trun
cabs (see below). The town-office of the railway-omnibuses is
Lafayette, 21,

Hotels, Horer TivorLier, Rue d’Alsace- Lorraine 17 and 19 (P
Du Mip1. Place du Capitole 1 and 2 (Pl. E,3). R., L, & A. 6-1
from 4, D. from5, pens. 15 fr.; SouviLLg, Place du Capitole 20, witk
R., L., & A. 3-10, B. 11/, déj.’3, D. 4, pens. from 9 fr.; all these
first class. — Gr. HOTEL MEUBLE DEs Arcapes, Place du Capitole.
1’EvRorE, Square Lafayette 16 (Pl. B, 3), R., L., & A. 4-7, B. 1/,-13,
4, D. 5, pens. 10-15 fr.; Carour, Place Lafayette 12, R., L, & A.
B. 1, d¢j. 3, D. 31/, fr.; Barcukre, Rue des Arts 7 (Pl. E, 3,4), R..
A.3-7, B. 1, d¢j. 3, D. 31/, fr.; GRAND HOreL CENTRAL, Rue St. Panta
behind the Hotel Tivollier, R., L., & A. 4-7, déj. 3, D. 4-6 fr. (a la
DE LA Poste (Maison Meublée), Rue d’Alsace-Lorraine 38, R. 21/5-(
DoMERGUE, Rue Gambetta 33 (P1.D, 8); pE PARIS, Rue Gambetta 6
the Place du Capitole, R., L., & A. 21/5-5, B. 1, déj. 8, D. 31/,, pens. &
DU GRAND BaLcoxn, Rue des Lois and Rue Romiguiéres (P1. D, 3); *
MeusLE, Rue Neuve-St. Aubin 5; HOTEL CHAUBARD or pU BuFrET,
site the Gare Matabiau, with restaurant, R., L., & A. 21/,-3, B. 1, D
BAyaRDp, close by.

Restaurants. Zivollier, sce above; Café Albrighi, Allées Lafayett.
31fr.; Caré de la Paiz (Hot. de Paris), d6j. 21/, D. 3 fr.; Hotel Chanbay
posite the Gare Matabiau; Buffet at the Gare Matabiau. — A special
Toulouse and other towns in S. France is Patés de Foies de Canar
Truffes (pies of duck’s liver with truffles), and they are also famo
their ortolans, mushrooms, and fruits.

Cafés. Tivollier, see above; Caré de la Paiz, Bibent, Baric, des
Mondes, Place du Capitole; Albrighi, du Midi, des Américains, de Tor
de la Comédie, in the Allées Lafayette , and the Boul. de Strasbour,
Lazare-Carnot; Gr. Café Faget, Allées Lafayette, near the station; i
Place Etienne, ete. ]

Cabs (Citadines). One horse: per drive within the town 90 e. by
13/4 fr. after midnight, per hr. 11/5 and 21/; fr. Two horses: per
1fr. 10 e. and 2 fr., per hr. 1 fr. 80¢. and 3 fr. Drive to hirer’s address,
more. Each package of luggage 20 e.

Tramways (. comp. the Plan). F¥rom the Place du Capitole (P1. E,
St. Cyprien (Pl. C,4), to the Gare Matabiau (P1. F,1), to the Minime
suburb; P1. D,1). From the Aliées Lafayeite (P1. E, F,2) to Les Amidon
(P1.C,2), and to St. Michel (Pl.D,5) by the boulevards. From the
des Tourneurs (Marché; Pl. E,4) to the Gare Matabiau. From the
Ezxtérieure St. Michel (Bridge ; Pl. D, 5) to the Place St. Cyprien. Fare |
‘correspondance’ 5 and 10 ¢..— Ommnibuses also ply in the cit and sub

Post and Telegraph Office (PI. E,2), Rue de la Poste 5 Place «
Bourse (P1. D, E,g)!,' ete.

Theatres. 7hédtre du Capitole, at the Capitole (Pl. E, 3), for operas
comedies (tickets 75e. to dfr.); Théitre des Varictés (PI, E,2), Av
Lafayette, for dramas and operettas (75¢. to 31/5 fr.). — Circus, Al
Lafayette 64, near the Canal.

Cafés-Concerts, Casino, Rue Dutemps and Place Lafayette; Pré-Cat.
Allées Lafayette 60.

Music. At the Alldes Lafayette (P1. F, 2; p. 80) and the Grand-]
(Pl. F, 5;’1}’. 84) on Sun. and Thurs. ; in the Ip’lace du_Capitole (P1. B
p- 80) on Thurs.; and at the Cours Dillon (P1. C, D, 4, 5) on Sunday.

Baths, Dutemps, Place Lafayette 1 and 2; at the Hotel Souville
the Hotel du Buffel. — River Baths, Gaytou, Quai de Tounis (Pl. D, 4
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Protestant Church, Rue Deville (P1. D, 3). — Bynagogue, Rue Pala-
prat 2 (P1. F, 3).

Toulouse still maintains night watchmen who ery the hours (‘minuit
passé, dormez en paix’).

Toulouse (460 ft.), the ancient capital of Languedoc, the present
capital of the department of the Haute-Garonne, the headquarters of
the 17th army corps, and the seat of an Archbishopric, a Uni-
versity, and a School of Medicine, is a city with 149,791 inhab.,
situated in a fertile plain on the right bank of the Garonne, at the
junction of the Canal du Midi with the Canal Latéral (pp. 72 and
64). Itis a large and wealthy town, enjoying great importance
from its position as the centre of Southern France, and from the extent
of its industry and commerce. The greater part of it, however, is
irregularly laid out and meanly built, while its badly paved streets
combine with its excessive heat in summer and the violent winds
to which it is subject all the year round to make it a fatiguing
place for the visitor. Considerable improvements and embellish-
ments have, however, been undertaken and partly executed of late
years, and the town has a character of its own and a sufficiency
of historic remains to recommend it to the notice of strangers.

Toulouse, the ancient Zolosa, was an important town some een-
turies before it. was conquered by the Romans. It was the capital of
the Teetosages and possessed a temple whieh was eelebrated for its im-
mense treasures, partly stored in saered tanks. Having allied itself
with the Cimbri to shake off the Roman yoke it was taken, in B.
C. 106, by the consul Quintus Servilius Ceapio, who seized the treasures
of the temple. Cepio was, it is true, utterly routed by the Cimbri
in the following year, but he was suceeeded by Marius, and Toulouse
was reduced to submission. In 419, after the fall of the Roman empire,
Toulouse became the capital of the Visigoths, and in 507 it passed into
the power of the Franks, after Clovis had vanquished Alarie II. at
Vouillé. Subsequently it recovered its independence, and in 778 it was
made a county governed by hereditary princes till it was united to
France in 1271. Under its Counts the city enjoyed a long period of pros-
perity, but the Albigensian wars brought upon it great calamities. Count
Raymond VI., too tolerant in the eyes of those who had Just instituted
the Inquisition, and aceused of the assassination of the Papal Legate,
Peter de Castelnau, tried to save the town by a most humiliating sub-
mission, but had notwithstanding to see it besieged by Simun de Mont-
fort, leader of the erusade, to whom his dominions had been adjudged.
Raymond successfully defended the town on the first attack, but he was
dispossessed of it in 1214, after the battle of Muret (p. 138). Toulouse
did not, however, tamely accept the rule of De Montfort, and till 1229
its history was little more than a succession of revolts and sieges. On the
succession of Louis VIIL, King of France, to the claims of Amaury de
Montfort, son of Simon, Raymond VII. had finally to submit, and the
Inquisition extinguished with the utmost eruelty what was left of heresy.
Thereafter the town became so oblivious of the principles it had so
bravely defended that it rgé)eatedly made itself notorious by violent acts
of intolerance. Thus in 1562 a eivil war broke out between the Roman
Catholies and the Huguenots, and 4000 of the latter perished, while 300
more were massacred on St. Bartholomew’s Day in 1572. Dr. Panini,
accused of Pantheism, was burnt alive here in 1619, after having his
tongue cut out, and an aged Protestant, Jean Calas, unjustly accused of
murdering his eldest son in order to prevent his becoming a Roman
Catholie, was broken on the wheel in 1762. The generous exertion of Voltaire
in behalf of the last-named victim is one of the brightest gems in the great
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author’s erown. In 1815 General Ramel, confidant of Louis XVIII., was
assassinated here by the Verdets, volunteers more royalist than the king
himself. In 1862 the authorities had to interfere to prevent a festal cele-
bration of the tercentenary of the massacres of 1562. — In 1814 the final
battle of the Peninsular War took place at Toulouse between Welling-
ton and Soult, some days after Napoleon’s abdiecation.

The Gare Matabiaw or central station (p. 78), which has be-
come too small for the traffic, lies to the N.E. of the town. On
quitting it we cross the Canal du Midi, turn to the left, and soon
reach the Allées Lafayette (PL. F,?2). At the beginning is a marble
Statue of Riquet, the creator of the Canal du Midi, by Riffoul-
Dorval, erected in 1838.

The Canal du Midi or du Languedoc was made in 1666-81 by Paul Ri-
quet de Béziers entirely at his own expense (17 million franes, which
would to-day represent a sum of 34 million franes, or about 1,360,000 L.).
It connects the Atlantic and the Mediterranean with the aid of the Ga-
ronne. It begins at the Bassin de ’Embouchure (Pl.A,1), a little below
Toulouse, and ends at the Etang de Thau, beyond Agde (p. 95), after a
course of 148 M. It is 33 ft. wide at the bottom and 65 ft. at the surface and
its depth is 61/5 ft. Its highest point is 8 M. to the N.W. of Castelnaudary
(p. 87), and it has 100 locks, 26 on the side of the Garonne, with a fall
of 200 ft., and 74 on the other side, with a fall of 425 ft. It is fringed by
a double row of trees, those on the side next the Mediterranean being
cypresses, as those trees are particularly fitted to mitigate the Mistral,
which often blows on this side. The Canal Latéral, not finished till 1838,
was made in consequence of the obstacles to navigation presented by the
Garonne in its upper course. The Canal du Languedoc was at one time
regarded as a perfect marvel of engineering skill; but lately it has been
proposed to replace it by a ship-canal.

On the other side of the canal and the railway stands a huge
edifice containing the Veterinary College (P1.F, G, 1), one of the
three veterinary colleges which exist in France, the other two being
at Alfort (near Paris) and at Lyons. It is not interesting except to
professional men. Beyond it stands the Observatory (P1. G, 1 ; not
accessible to the public), adjoining which is a brick Obelisk, erect-
ed in commemoration of the Battle of Toulouse, which was fought
on April 10th, 1814 (see above). In clear weather the Pyrenees may
be seen from this point.

At the end of the Allées Lafayette, the Boulevards, which form a
ring round the old town, diverge to the right and left. Crossing these
we next reach the Place Lafayette, an oval Place with a garden’
embellished with a bronze group (‘The Wrestlers’) by Labatut.
Hence the Rue Lafayette leads to the Capitole, crossing the Rue
d’ Alsace- Lorraine, a new street which traverses the town from N.
to S.

On the E. of the Place du Capitole, the centre of the town,
rises the Capitole, or Hotel de Ville (Pl. E, 3), a building of the
16-19th cent., almost entirely rebuilt in recent times (interior
still unfinished). The commonplace Ionic fagcade, rising directly
from.the square ‘Place’ used as a market, scarcely justifies the
classic name. That, however, is due to the magistrates of the
town before 1789, who were called ‘Capitouls’. In the first court,
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which has a fine Renaissance doorway, by Bachelier, with a statue
of Henri IV, Duke Henry II. de Montmorency, Marshal and Go-
vernor of Languedoc, was beheaded in 1632. He had shared the
revolt of the Duke of Orleans against Richelieu because the title
of High Constable was refused to him. Visitors are shown the
sword with which he is said to have been executed, though in
reality he was beheaded by a kind of guillotine, used at that time
in Italy. The Capitol is also the seat of the Académie des Jeux-

Floraux.
The Académie des Jeuz-Florauz, perhaps the oldest literary institution

in Europe, was founded in 1323-27, under the name of the ‘Collége du
Gay Secavoir’, and observed the eustom of distributing flowers of gold
and silver to its laureates. Clémenece Isaure, a noble dame of Toulouse,
left a legaey at the end of the 15th eent., which enabled it to increase the
number of these flowers, and the Flower Féte is held every year with
great solemnity on May 3rd. The flowers distributed are nine in number :
the amaranth of gold, the violet, marigold, primrose, eglantine, and lily
of silver, all for poetry ; the violet or eglantine and immortelle or jasmine
of gold, for prose ecompositions, and the earnation of silver, a ‘consolation
prize’. The Academy consists of 40 ‘Mainteneurs’ and an indefinite number
of ‘Maitres-és-jeux’. The former are so called beeause it is supposed to
be their duty to ‘maintain’ the Provencal language and literature.

The Capitole is also the seat of an Academy of Science, Inscriptions, and
Belles-Lettres, founded in 1640, and of an Academy of Legislation, dating
from 1851. The town numbers many other learned societies. The former
University of Toulouse, founded in 1229, was the oldest in France after
that of Paris; at present the town possesses only an Académie Universitaire,

To the S. of the Capitole is the Thédtre Municipal du Capitole
(p. 78), and behind the two buildings is the Donjon, a square keep
of the 45th cent., restored by Viollet-le-Duc in 1880, and now the
depository of the archives.

We may now either visit the Musée (p.85) or proceed to the N.
from the Place du Capitole, following the Rue du Taur, which owes
its name to the Eglise du Taur (Pl. E,2; to the right), built on the
spot to which St. Saturnin, the apostle of Toulouse, was dragged by
the bull which he had refused to sacrifice to Jupiter. It is a building
of the 14-15th cent. and possesses a facade with triangular arches
and battlements. The interior contains some modern paintings.

The chureh of *St. Sernin, or St. Saturnin (PI. D, 2), at the end
of this street, is the chief monument of Toulouse and one of the
finest Romanesque churches in existence. The choir was begun at
the end of the 11th cent., and the building was extended westwards
in the 12-13th cent., the great W. portal rerhaining unfinished. A
thorough restoration took place under the direction of Viollet-le-Due
(d. 1877). The church is eruciform and has a nave with double
aisles. It is 330 ft. long, aud 104 ft. wide; the transept is 210 ft,
across; and the nave is 70 ft. high. The *Apse is flanked by five
semi-circular chapels, and each arm of the transept has two similar
chapels adjoining its E. side. These chapels group picturesquely
with the apse, the choir, and the transept, and above the crossing
rises a fine octagonal *Tower, of later date, with five tiers of tri-
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ngular arches in ‘the Tolosan style and terminated by a gallery
nd a spire, 210 ft. above the ground. An Outer Porch of the
6th cent., by Bachelier, stands in front of the S. transept-porch,
acing the Rue du Taur. This portal and the one on the N. are both
nore interesting than the unfinished Gothic portal at the W. end.

The IxTeRrIOR is of large dimensions for a Romanesque church, but
he general efféect is somewhat marred by the strengthening of the central
pillars supporting the tower. Under the choir is a erypt containing the
-elies of six Apostles, St. Saturnin and three of his suceessors, and several
sther saints, whose names are inscribed on two marble slabs on the stairs.
[n a chapel of the N. transept is a singular Byzantine figure of Christ,
»n a colossal scale, and the aisle of the same transept contains a votive
yffering of 1528, representing the church as it then was surrounded by
defensive works. The 16th cent. stalls also deserve attention; on the first
(0 the right is a pig in a pulpit, intended to represent Calvin preaching.
Behind the choir are some interesting bas-reliefs of the 12th cent. and
2 Holy Family attributed to Correggio. The sacristy contains two magni-
icent medisgval copes. The organ is a fine modern instrument.

. Opposite the fagade of St. Sernin is the former Collége St. Ray-
mond (15th cent.), restored by Viollet-le-Duc, and converted in 1892
into a Museum of Industrial Art and Antiquities.

On the ground-floor are collections of foreign art and ethnography
and objects of the 17-18th cent., etc.. On the 1st floor are Greek, Egyptian.
Roman, and Gallic antiquities; a collection of coins (5000 in number) -
medizeval and Renaissance objects; furniture, arms, medals, seals, ena-
nels, ivories, ete.

Returning to the Place du Capitole and following the Rue
Romiguiéres towards the W., we pass, at the corner of the Rue De-
rille, the Protestant Church (P1. D, 3), some paces to the right of
which] in the Rue Deville, are the remains of the Eglise des Cor-
leliers, a building of the 14th cent., burned down in 1871.

To the left, opposite the Protestant church, begins the Rue La-
kanal in which’ stands the Lycée. The Church of the Jacobins (P1.
D, 3), which is attached to the Lycée, is a tasteful building of the
13 - 14th cent., chiefly noticeable for its 13th cent. brick tower,
which, however, has lost its spire. This isa typical Tolosan tower,
with triangular arches. — The Lycée (P1.D,3) occupies a part of
the large building at the end of the street, originally the house of
Bernuy, the Spanish merchant who- guaranteed the ransom of
Franeis 1. (2,000,000 fr.) after his capture at the battle of Pavia
(1525). Tt has fine details in the Renaissance style. In the same
building, on the side next the Rue des Balances, is the Town ILi-
brary, containing 70,000 vols (open daily, except Mon. morning,
)-11 and 1-5; closed Aug. 15th to Oct. 15th).

- The Rue Lakanal joins the Rue Gambetta, following which to
the right, and again turning to the right we reach La Daurade
PL.D,3) a church rebuilt between 1764 and 1810, which owes its
1ame ’(‘dore’e’,_ Lat. de aurata) to the richness of its original de-
orations. The present edifice; which is partly shut in by houses,
§ of no architectural merit.. The usual entrance is by the side-
loors in the Rue de la Daurade or on the Quai (No: 1).” Thé choir
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is decorated with scenes from the life of the Virgin, painted.by
Roques the Elder. Clémence Isaure (p. 81) is said to be buried
beside the high -altar. The flowers destined for the successful
candidates in the Jeux-Floraux (p.81) are blessed here on 3rd May.

The old tobacco-factory, beside this church, is the Ecole des
Beaux-Arts.

A little above the somewhat dull quay on which the Daurade
stands the Garonne is crossed by the Pont - Neuf (Pl.D,4), a fine
stone bridge of seven arches, built in 1543-1626 by Nic. Bachelier

and his son. The roadway was lowered in 1867.

On the Garonne within the town are two extensive mills, each having
34 mill-stones. Below the Pont St. Michel, at the end of the Ile de
Tounis, is the Moulin du Chateau, so called because it belonged to a ché-
teau now replaced by the Palais de Justice (p. 84). It is mentioned
as early as 1182. The other, the Moulin du Bazacle, founded in the 9th
cent., is below the Pont St. Pierre and may be visited by permission.
Its weir dates in part from 1719. Farther down are several other indus-
trial establishments, which make use of the mill-lead. — Close at hand,
on the right bank, is a Tobacco Manufactory, which gives oceupation to
more than 1200 persons. — From the N. side of the river, near the
last-named mill, issues the small Canal de Brienne, which unites with
the Canal du Midi and the Canal Latéral at their junetion, in the Bassin
de I’ Embouchure, at the W. end of the Faubourg St. Pierre.

The vast pile of buildings to the right, on the other side of
the Pont- Neuf, in the Faubourg St: Cyprien, is the Hotel - Dieu
St. Jacques (PL. D, 4), founded in the middle of the 12th cent.,
but repeatedly rebuilt. — Farther down is the Hospice St. Joseph
de la Grave (P1. C, 8), with a dome-covered chapel. On the left, near
the Hotel-Dieu, stands the old Chdteau d’Eau, whose tower, 90 ft.
in height, together with the new one near it, supplies the town with
water from the Garonne, purified by underground filters in the
meadow between the Garonne and the Cours Dillon (P1.D, 4-5).

To the E. of the Pont-Neuf is the Place du Pont (P1.D, E, 4)
whence the Rue de Metz (still unfinished) runs across the town in
the direction of St. Etienne (p. 84), intersecting the Rue d’Alsace-
Lorraine. On the left, as we enter it, at the end of a short cross-
street, is the Hotel d’Assézat, a building of the 16th cent, with
an interesting court, but unfortunately very dilapidated.

To the S. of the Place du Pont we follow the Rue des Couteliers,
which leads to La Dalbade or the church of Notre - Dame - la-
Blanche (P1. D, E, 4), rebuilt in the middle of the 15th century. It
h'as a fine square tower and an elegant portal of the Renaissance, by
Nic. Bachelier, with a modern tympanum in enamelled terracotta,
representing the Coronation of the Virgin, after Fra Angelico. The
interior, consisting of a nave without aisles, is distinguished by its
bold proportions.

A little farther on to the right, in the Rue de la Dalbade (No. 25)
is the Maison de Pierre ov Hotel de Clary, a fine mansion of thé
early part of the 17th cent., lately restored. Next come on the
rightthe Hotel Felzins(No. 32), on the left the Hozel St. Jean7(N0. 392),

6*
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houses of the 16th and 17th centuries. — A street to the left leads
to the Place des Carmes, where we see on the opposite side, at the
beginning of the Rue du Vieux-Raisin, another fine Renaissance
building, the Hotel Lasbordes or de Fleyres, which is considered
the masterpiece of Nic. Bachelier (1515).

The Rue du Vieux-Raisin descends to the S.W. to the Place du
Salin (P1. E,H), a small triangular Place where the autos-da-fé of
the Inquisition took place. Adjacent, to the W., in an unpreten-
tious house occupied by nuns, is the Chapelle de I’ Inquisition, open
to visitors, but no longer containing any relics of the Holy Office.

A little lower down is the Palais de Justice (P1. E,D), the old
Palais du Parlement, a plain building, containing some richly de-
corated rooms. — To the N. rises a statue of Cujas (1520-90), the
celebrated jurist, a native of Toulouse, in bronze by Valois (1850).

To the S. of the Palais is the Allde St. Michel, near the end of
which, on the right, is an ornamental portal of eight marble columns
forming the entrance of the Jardin des Plantes (Pl. F,5), one of
the finest promenades in Toulouse. In this neighbourhood is the
seat of the Faculty of Medicine, beyond which is that of the Faculty
of Science, a handsome building opened in 1890. At the entrance
of the Botanic Garden is a Museum of Natwral History, founded
in 1864 (open on Sun. and Thurs.,1-5 in summer, 1-4 in winter).

Nearly opposite the entrance to the Jardin des Plantes is the
Jardin Royal (PL.F,5), in which is a bronze, by A. Fabre, of a
Shepherd playing with a panther. Adjoining is another promenade,
the Grand-Rond or Boulingrin (bowling-green), the focus of five
avenues. This also is embellished with statues. Band, see p. 78.

‘We proceed through the short avenue to the left, and then through
the Rue Ninau, and the Rue Ste. Scarbes, to the —

Cathedral of St. Etienne (P1.F,4). This church, which is partly
concealed by the adjoining houses, consists of three distinet and
somewhat inharmonious parts. The W. Front, flanked on the left
by a huge square tower, and now much mutilated, dates from the
15-16th century. It has taken the place of an earlier facade, the
rose-window of which (13th cent.) has been retained, though its
position is no longer central with regard to the main doorway. The
Nave, which is the oldest part, is a wide and rather low structure
of the first half of the 13th cent., without aisles. It is evident that
it was meant to be rebuilt after the completion of the Choir, which
was taken in hand in 1272 on a larger scale and with a different
axis. The work went on till the 16th cent. when so many churches
were left unfinished. The choir is a handsome and imposing struc-
ure with aisles, though it was partly spoiled in the 17th cent.
when restored after a fire. It is surrounded with seventeen chapels
ind is adorned with stained-glass windows of the 15-17th centuries.
'he metal screens and the stalls are noteworthy. Above the high-
Ifar is a Stoning of St. Stephen in marble and stucco, by Gervais
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Drouet (1670). The walls of the nave are hung with paintings of

little value.
The Rue St. Etienne, in front of the Cathedral, takes us back to

the Rue d’Alsace-Lorraine, where we turn to the right.

The Musée des Beaux-Arts (PL E, 3), the enlargement of which
has been going on for some time, occupies an old Augustine convept,
of which some interesting features remain, and a new and massive
brick building of doubtful taste, on the side next the Rue d’Alsace~
Lorraine. Founded in 1742, this Musée is particularly rich in
antiquities and pictures. It is open to the public on Sun. and Thurs.
from noon till J in summer and till 4 in winter, and to strangers
on other days also. The entrance is on the N. side, in the Rue du
Musée, whence we first reach a Small Cloister in the Renaissance
style (1626), containing some fine bas-reliefs and other works of
art of the period. To the right is the * Large Cloister, a picturesque
structure of the 14th cent., the trefoil arches of which, supported.
by double columns, recall the Moorish style. This cloister contains
a large portion of the collection of antiquities, while the paintings
occupy the old convent church.

The Museum of Antiquities consists mainly of objects found in ex-
cavations in Toulouse itself, or at Martres- Tolosane (p.115) and other
places in the environs. In the ehief cloister and in a tasteful 15th cent.
chapel, parallel to one of its galleries, are a series of votive altars dedi-
cated to the divinities of the Pyrenees, some antique, mediseval, and
Renaissance sculptures, inseriptions, and easts.

The Picture Gallery contains nearly 400 paintings, which are all fur-
nished with names. As the present arrangement is temporary, and as
there is no catalogue, the most noteworthy works are here mentioned in
alphabetical order.

ITaniaN Scuoors: *Baroccio, Holy Family ; Bellotto, The Rialto; Cara-
vaggio, Martyrdom of St. Andrew ; Carracci, Madonna; Guercino, Martyrs,
Patron saints of Modena; Guido Reni, Apollo flaying Marsyas; *Perugino,
St. John the Evangelist and St. Augustine; *Procaccini, Mystic marriage
of St. Catherine; Raphael (?), perhaps Giulio Romano, Head of a woman;
Salv. Rosa (7), Neptune threatening the winds; Solimena, Portrait of a
woman; Tempesta, Cavalry skirmish; Vanni, Madonna and Child, with
sau:ts\; Unknown Masters, Madonna, the Saviour, Holy Family (13- 16th
cents.).

Seaxisu Scuoow: *Murillo, St. Diego at prayer.

Fuesisn Axp Durcu ScmooLs: Van Bloemen, Horsemen; Bril, Venus
;mdﬁ Cupid ; G. de Crayer, Job 3 4. van Dyck, Miracle performed at Toulouse
by St. Anthony of Padua (at his eommand an ass falls on its knees before
the Holy §acrament rather than eat the oats that are presented to it,
although it has been three days without food), a copy of a picture in the
Museum of Lille; Van Dyck, Christ with angels: Jordaens, Madonna; 6. de
Lairesse, Cr‘uciﬁxioq; Van der Meulen, Louis X1V, before Cambrai; *Miere-
velt, POrtl‘a..lt; Quellin, Martyrdom of St. Lawrence ; RBubens, Christ between
the two thieves, unfinished ; S. van Ruysdael, Landscape; Seghers, Ador-
ation of the Magi; Verelst, Head of an old man; Van Wittel, Piazza S.
Pietro, at Rome; *Unknown Master (15th cent.), St. John the Baptist
triptyeh; *Unknown Master (16th cent.), Deseent from the Cross, ¢
@ FRENC’H ScHooL: Boucher, Bather; Brascassat, Sorceress: Chalette, The
Lapnpulp (p. 80) on their knees before the Saviour; Phil. de Champaigne.
’l;he Vlr_gxq and the Souls in Purgatory, Deseent from the Cross, Cruciﬂxion:
Annunciation, Louis XIIL. bestowing the Order of the Holy Ghost; Benj.
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Constant, Mahomet 1I. entering Constantinople (1453); Corot, Landscape :
Couture, The thirst for gold; FEugéne Delacroiz, Muley Abd-er-Rahman.
emperor of Moroceco; Duveau, Deposition of the Doge Foseari (1457) :
Géréme, Anaereon, Bacehus, and Cupid; Gros (of Toulouse), Herecules and
Diomede, the last work of the artist who had not the courage to bear
the eriticism which' it aroused; Gros, Portraits of Mme. Gros and the
artist himself; 7. Guy, Presentation in the Temple; Henner, Mary Magdalen :
Isabey , Harbour of Boulogne; Jouvenet, Foundation of a town by the
Tectosages, Descent from the Cross; Lafosse, Presentation of the Virgin :
Largilliere, Portraits, the first of the artist himself; J. P. Laurens, Pool
of Bethesda ; *Mme. Lebrun, Portrait; Lesueur, Sacrifice of Manoah ; Lucas,
A Christian Martyr; J. Michel, Marriage at Cana; Mignard, Ecce Homo :
Oudry, Hunting; Pils, Death of a sister of merey; Poussin, John the
Baptist; Protais, Diana; J. Restout, Diogenes; Rigaud, Racine; Rivalz.
Foundation of Aneyra by the Tectosages; Robert-Fleury, Pillage of a house
on the Giudecea; Rizens, Death of Cleopatra; Stella, Marriage of the Virgin ;
Subleyras, St. Joseph and the Infant Jesus; Tournier, Descent from the
Cross; De Troy, Dream of St. Joseph; Aubin Vouet, Deliverance of St.
Peter.

The Museum also possesses a few SCULPTURES, among which are s
Chloris, by Pradier; model of the Tarcisius, by Falguitre (a mative o
Toulouse), and a cast of his Victor in a eock-fight; Cast of the statue o
David, by Mercié, also of Toulouse; a Shepherd teaching a kid to dance
east by R. Barthélemy; bronze reproduction of Mereury inventing the ca.
dueceus, by ldrac.

On issuing from the Museum, we turn to the right along the Rue
d’Alsace - Lorraine in order to regain, on the left, the Place du
Capitole, or, on the the right, the Square Lafayette, etc.

For the principal lines starting from Toulouse, see p. 8. To Bagneéres
de-Luchon, see pp. 138, 137, and R. 26; to St. Girons, see R.27; to Foix
Tarascon, Ussat, and Az, see R. 28.

From TouvrLouse To Aucm, 55 M., railway in 3 hrs. (fares 9 fr. 95
6 fr. 75, 4 fr. 40 ¢.). There are four trains, one of which starts fron
the Gare St. Cyprien (p.78), which those from the Gare Matabiau tak.
95-30 min. to reach, having to make a circuit of 6 M. The line passe:
through a picturesque and diversified country, erossing several valleys. —
14 M. (from Toulouse- Matabiau) Pibrac, birthplace of Germaine Cousin
a young shepherdess (1578-95), who was canonized in 1867, and whos
tomb has become an object of pilgrimage. — 26 M. L’Isle-Jourdain, :
town with 4440 inhab., beyond which we cross the Save. — Near (39 M.
Gimont - Cabuzac we cross the Gimone. Gimont is a small town with a;
interesting Gothie church, of briek, visible on an eminence to the left. —
44 M. Aubiet, beyond which the line crosses the Arrats. 49 M. Marsan
with a fine ehiteau. — 55 M. Auch (p. 104).

12. From Toulouse to Cette.

186 M. RAILWAY in 33/4-7 hrs. (fares 24 fr. 75, 16 fr. 75, 10 fr. 95 ¢.). T
Carcassonne, 561/ M., in 11/5-23/4 hrs. (fares 10 fr. 40, 6 fr. 95, 4 fr. 55 ¢ )
The trains start from the Gare Matabiau.

Toulouse, see p. 78. — Leaving on the right the lines to Tarbe
and Auch, we ascend the wide, fertile, and well-cultivated valley o
Lhers, which is also traversed by the Canal du Midi (p.80). — 8 i
Escalquens; 12 M. Montlawr; 14 M. Bagziége; 161/, M. Villenow
wvelle; 201/, M. Villefranche-de- Lauraguais, a small town on th.
Canal du Midi, possessing a church of the 14th cent., with a porta
in the Tolosan style; 20 M. Avignonet, another small town with .
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14th cent. church. Beyond (28 M.) S€gala we c'rqss the low watershed
and begin the descent to the basin of the Mediterranean. — 31 M.
Mas-Stes. Puelles. On the left the Cévennes appear. :

34 M. Castelnaudary (Buwvette; Hotel de France), a town with
10,059 inhab., situated to the left on a hill adjoining the (?gllal ‘du
Midi. It was burned and several times besieged in the Albigensian
wars, and was again burned by the Black Prince in 1355.

About 4 M. to the E. of Castelnaudary lies the large village of St,

Papoul, formerly the seat of a bishop and still possessing a fine abbey-
chureh, part of which, including the cloisters, is in the Romanesque style.

FroM CASTELNAUDARY To CASTRES, 84 M., railway in about 11/ hr. (fares
6 fr. 15, 4 fr. 15, 2 fr. 70 ¢.). The line skirts the town on the E., with the
Montagne Noire (p. 80) to the right. — 121/ M. St. Féliz, a small town,
2 M. to the W. — About 2 M. to the S. E. of (16 M.) Revel (Lune) is the
Bassin de St, Ferréol, the most important feeder of the Canal du Midi.
It is formed by a dam about 2600 ft. long, 230 ft. thiek, and 100 ft. high.
It holds 1400 million gallons of water, and when full has an area of
166 acres. — About 31/3 M. to the E. of Revel (diligence) and 21/y M. to
the N. E. of the basin, lies the small town of Soréze, long famous for its
Benedictine abbey, eonyerted into a college in 1682 and acquired by the
Dominicans in 1854. Father Lacordaire (d. 1861), the famous preacher, is
buried here, and a statue (by Girardet) was ereeted to him in 1888. —
201/ Mf) La Crémade, where we join the line to Montauban. — 34 M. Castres,
see p. 97.

The Cette line continues to descend through a fertile and well
cultivated plain, traversed by the Canal du Midi. — 89 M. Pexiora;

43 M. Bram ; 47 M. Alzonne; 511/, M. Pezens.

56!/, M. Carcassonne. — Hotels. BerxARD (Pl.a; C,2), Rue du
Marché; Boxner (Pl.¢; C, 2), Rue de la Mairie 41, R. 3-6, L. & A. 13/4,
B. 11/5, d€j. 4, D.5 fr.; puv CommercE (P, d;C, 2), Rue du Port 16, déj. 3, D.
31/3 fr.; *Sr. Jean Bapriste (P1.b; C, 1), Rue de Tivoli and Rue de la
Gare, similar charges; DE PARIS (Pl.e; D, 2), Boulevard de la Préfecture
16; St. Prerre, Rue de la Gare 58. — Restaurant at the station. — Cafés.
Grand Café, Place aux Herbes; Ambigu, Boul. de la Préfecture, near the
Square Gambetta; others in the Boul. Barbés and near the station. —
Café-Concert, Alcazar, Rue de Belfort.

Carcassonne, the capital of the department of the Awude, and the
seat of a bishop, is a town with 28,235 inhab., situated on the river
Aude. 1t consists of two distinct parts: the Lower Town, on the
left bank, near the railway, and the Cité, some way off, on a hill on
the other bank. The latter is one of the most interesting spots in
Southern France.

Carcassonne was in existence in the Roman period, but its importanee
began during the three centuries ending with 713, when it was in the
possession of the Visigoths, and reached its elimax in the 11-13th cent.
when it was ruled by a series of viscounts, the Trencavels. It suffered
greatly in the Albigensian war, when it was taken partly by a ruse and
partly through treachery. The viscounty was united to Franee in 1239
like the rest of the territories to which the Montforts had laid  claios
after the crusade against the Albigenses. Carcassonne made a desperate
but unavailing resistance, under the last of the Trencavels, to this ab-
sorption, and King Louis the Saint isolated the Cité and founded the Lower
Town (1247). This latter was pillaged and burnt by the Black Prinee in
1355. In 15_60 many of the Huguenot inhabitants of Carcassonne were
massacred for having dragged a statue of the Virgin through the mire.
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The Lower Town, which is well built and regularly laid ot
is encircled by green and shady boulevards. A long street beginni:
opposite the station, beyond the Canal du Midi, traverses the who
town, passing the Place aux Herbes in the centre. The Rue
Quatre-Septembre leads to the Gothic Church of St. Vincent (P1. C,
14-16th cent.) with a massive unfinished tower, from which Mécha
and Delambre calculated the site of the meridian of Paris, whi
passes only 46” to the W. This church, like many others in the f
is remarkable for the width of its nave. It is lighted by rose-wi:
dows above the chapels between the pillars, and contains some fi
stained glass.

The Prace Aux HErsEs (P1. C, 3), to which the Rue du Port lea
from St. Vincent, is planted with fine plane-trees and contains
marble Fountain of the 18th cent. with a figure of Neptune, 1
Baratta. — Continuing to follow the same direction, by the Rue d.
Halles, we reach the Cathedral of St. Michel (Pl. C,3), a Goth;
church of the 13th cent. which seems to have served as a model f.
St. Vincent’s. There is no portal at the W. end, but the wall |
adorned with a fine rose-window. The church is entered from th
Rue Voltaire by a small doorway on the N. side. The interior ;
painted in grisaille.

Near the church passes the Boulevard Barbés, which, howeve;
can be reached only by a detour to the E. or to the W. To the F
is an old gate, known as the Porte Barbeés (PL. C, D, 3), at the en
of the cross - street leading from the station. In the boulevard, t
the right, is the bronze statue, by Falguiére, of Barbes (1809-70)
the revolutionary, with a musket curiously placed between his leg:

At the other end, the boulevard passes the base of an old bastion
and assumes the name of Boulevard du Musée. Farther on, t
the right, is the Square Gambetta (P1.D,2), the handsomest in th
town.

Near this point, in the Grande-Rue, is the MustE (Pl. D, 2), oper
to the public on Sun. and Thurs. from 12 to 4. It contains chiefl
paintings.

STAIRCASE. J. P. Laurens, The Immured of Carcassonne (copy)
Lehouz, After the battle. — Room I: to the right, 85. Jos. Vernet, Land-
scape; 32. Desportes, Game; 22. Curtois (Le Bourguignon), Cavalry skirmish :
163. Subleyras, 149. Rivalz, .146, 145. Rigaud, Portraits; 129. Mauzaisse, Louis
Philippe at Valmy; 86. Girodet, Man meditating on death; 19. Chardin,
Still-life. Also a small geological collection. — R. II: to the left, 183.
Weeniz, Still-life; 59. Jordaens, The temptation; 165. Teniers the Elder
Alchemist’s study; 166. Salvator Rosa, Head of a soldier; no number, (.
de_Vos, Portrait; 121, 132. Locatelli, Landscapes; 160, Seibolt, Portrait of &
painter; 4. Guercino, St. Matthew; 137, 186. Panini, Ruins; no number.
Ribera, St. Peter; Dirck Hals, Merry company; H. Martin, Franceseca da

Rimini (eopy); 0. Venius, Descent from the r0ss; etc. Moreau- Vauthier
Shephgrd quenching his thirst (bronze). Continuation of the geologicaf
colleetion , and some prehistoric antiquities. — R. III: to the left 115
Leloir, St. Cecilia; no number, A. Perret, The sower; La Penne, Pygma;lion:
12. Briguiboul, Tubal-Cain teaching his children music; 135. Ouvrié, Eaux-
Bonnes. Also medals, seals, weights, and small bronzes. =R, IV, 1o
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ight of R. III: Small paintings, including a sea-piece by Van de Velde
:xl:ﬁi r;%hex? Duteh works, l:ate. Fa'izanee and curiosities. — R. V: t? the
left, 20. Coignet, Lake and Cascade d’Oo (p. 179); 143. Beaumets, ‘They
shall not have it’; 112. Laverges, Genius extinguished by Pleasures no
number, Pelouze, Floods in Holland ; 167. Z. Thirion, Eleazar and Rebecea;
16. Cabanel, Christian martyrs. Diebolt, Meditation (statue). In the_ glass-
cases, natural history objeets and euriosities. — R. VI, to the right of
R. V: to the left, 9. Falguitre, Cain and Abel; 60. B. Constant, The
Cherifas; 5. Chazal, Girls on the beach; 34. Van Ruysdael, Landscape;
220a. Guillaumet, Wolves devouring a horse; 28. Van Dyck (?), Madonna;
3. Bassano, Disciples at Emmaus; ete. — .R. VII: to the left, no numl?er.
Lerolle, Arrival of the shepherds; P. Colin, Moonlight; G. Laugée, First
steps; J. Aman, St. Julian Hospitator; Laasyer, The reef; Chartran, Vision
of St. Francis d’Assisi; Luminais, Last of the Merovingians; Roaset-oragqer,
Orpheus. — R. VIII, to the right: Drawings, engravings, ba.g-rehefs,
furniture. — R. IX: Modern landscapes, genre-scenes, still-lifes, and
flowers; to the left, Baduel, Still-life; to the right, Pelouze, Grandeamyp ;
to the left, Em. Boutigny, Boule-de-Suif, scene from the war of 1870; to
the right, H. Berteaux, Joan of Are; Coéssin, Pacification of the Vendée ;
L. Deschamps, On a day in spring. In the centre, Champard, Cato of
Utica (marble).

Here, too, is the Town Library, containing 20,000 volumes.

The *Cité or OLp Town of Carcassonne is on the S. E. side of
the town (PL. E, F, 3, 4). It is reached by crossing the Pont Neuf over
the Aude, near the Square Gambetta, or the Vieux Pont, alittle higher
up, and traversing the suburb of Trivalle. Anything more curious or
unique in appearance than this town of the Middle Ages, with its
double line of fortifications, furnished with fifty round towers and
dominated by a citadel, can hardly be imagined. A good distant view
of the finest part of it is obtained from the side of the valley. The
fortifications date back to the days of the Visigoths (5th cent.), but
were frequently reconstructed or altered before the 14th cent., and
they were also renewed in 1850-1879 by Viollet-le-Due, who con-
sidered them the most complete and the most formidable example
in Europe of fortifications of the 6th, 12th, and 13th centuries,

The outer line or enceinte is more than 1600 yds. in circum-
ference, the inner one 1200 yds. The whole of the N. part was built
by the Visigoths on the ruins of Roman fortifications, which are
still visible at several points. There are only two entrances, the
Porte de U Aude, to the W., beyond the fortress, and the Porte Nar-
bonnaise, to the E. To visit the principal points of interest the
services of the custodian, who lives near the Porte de I’Aude, should
be secured. Specially noteworthy are the numerous defences of the
Porte de I’Aude, the Bishop’s Towers, one of which adjoins both
enceintes, the Tower of the Inquisition, Charlemagne’s Tower, the
’l'o_u-er of St. Nazaire, the Treasury Tower, and the Porte Narbon-
naise. The squalid interior of the Cité contains a few ancient and
badly preserved houses. The small street which begins at the Porte
Narbonnaise leads to the Citadel, in which very little restoration
has been effected. It is now used as a barrack.

Next to its fortifications the chief building of the Cité is the
church of *Sr. NazAIRE, formerly a cathedral, founded in the Hth
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nt., but rebuilt in the 11-14th, and restored by Viollet-le-Due. The
ortal has disappeared and we enter by a Romanesque doorway
n the N. side. The nave, in the Romanesque style of the 12th
snt., with Gothic side-chapels, is heavy and massive when con-
asted with the transept and the choir, both of which are splendid
rections of the 14th cent., containing magnificent stained - glass
yindows. In a chapel to the left of the nave is the monument
f Pierre de Roquefort (d. 1321), the bishop who finished the church,
vith three fine life - size figures in high-relief. To the left of the
hoir is the tomb of Simon Vigorce, archbishop of Narbonne (1575),
vith a fine marble statue. A coarse bas-relief on the S. side of the
)ave represents the siege of Toulouse in 1218. In the small sacristy
n the same side is the interesting tomb of Bp. Radulph (1266). A
ablet of red marble near the high-altar is said to mark the original
esting-place of Simon de Montfort, the persecutor of the Albigenses.

A good view of the Pyrenees is obtained from a point outside
he fortifications, near the Porte de 1’Aude.

From Carcassonne to Quillan (excursions), see R. 29.

Resuming our journey from Carcassonne, we cross the Canal du
[idi and the Aude and, after getting a fine glimpse of the Cité on the
ight, enter a short tunnel. We follow the valley of the Aude, at
ome distance from the river. 61 M. Trébes; 64 M. Floure; 67 M.
‘apendu. To the right rises the Montagne d’Alaric (1950 ft.), on
‘hich the Visigoth king is said to have had a castle, with some
uins of the 14th cent. and marble quarries. — 72 M. Moua. )

A branch-line runs hence to (171/53 M.) Caunes, with valuable marble
|juarries.

Divicexce (80 ¢.) to Fabrezan, a country-town, 8 M. to the S., on the
)rbieu, with a eastle dating in part from the 12th cent., the tower of
vhich is nearly 100 ft. high.

From Fabrezan and from Lagrasse, also finely situated on the Orbieu.
) M. to the S.W., picturesque excursions may be made among the
Jorbiéres, a small chain of mountains which strikes out from the Py-
‘enees near the Pech de Bugarach and runs from S.W. to N.E., between
he Aude and the Agly (good roads). About 3 M. to the S. of Fabrezan
ve join the road from Lagrasse to Narbonne, whence diverge several
f the most interesting routes across the Corbiéres, the finest those
o Estagel and La Nouvelle.

To Estaeen. There are two roads from Fabrezan. The first, the
horter (31 M.) and less interesting, diverges to the right from the Nar-
onne road, and joins the second at Tuchan (see below). The latter
34 M. from Fabrezan, 32 M, from Lagrasse) quits the Lagrasse road at
t. Laurent - de - la - Cabrerisse (11/4 M.) and rejoins it 4 M. farther on. —
{ M. (from Fabrezan), Villerouge - de - Terménes, with a chiateau and iron
vines. 16 M. Palairac; 20 M. Maison; 24 M. Tuchan, a large village and
l;stzwczn)trertf &c&aﬁvlli,elq lon the S.E]. sl]:)pe of the Montagne de Tauch

5B ¢ aziols we reach the va f
LM, Jitagel, sco . 197, eac e valley of the Verdouble. —

To La NouveLLe. The road leaves that to Narbonne on the ri
/2 M. from the Fabrezan road. About 1 M. farther on is Thézan,ewxi;gégé
e scenery begins to be very picturesque. Farther on (121/o M.), a roaq
1 the right goes off to (81/> M.) Durban, with its ruined chiteau. ang
oyond this point we enter the valley of the Berre. 191/5 M. Portel, béyond
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whieh is the Pont de Tamaroque, 65 ft. high. 23 M. Sijean (Hotel du Midi),
a smal town near the lake of the same name (p. I7. )Z!Iwiph salt-works
whiech produee annually about 2500 tons of salt. — M. La Ncmve‘tlg,
see p. 196. ¢

Beyond (79 M.) Lézignan the train crosses the Orbieu. 84 M.
Villedaigne; 87 M. Marcorignan.

93 M. Narbonne (Buffet). — Hotels. HOrer DE LA DORADE, DE
FRAXCE, Rue de la République 44 and 7, near the Hotel de Ville; GRAND
HoTEL, Boul. Gambetta; pE L'UNIVERs, new, at the station. — Cafés in
the Place de 1'Hotel-de-Ville. — Post and . Telegraph Office in the Place
du Tribunal, beside the former cathedral.

Narbonne, a town of 29,566 inhab., is situated in a dusty
plain, 5 M. from the Mediterranean, with which it is connected by
the Canal de la Robine. Though still carrying on a number of
industries (distilling, coopering, ete.), it has emphatically seen
its best days, and its streets are badly built and far from clean. A
handsome new quarter has, however, been laid out near the station,
necessitating the removal of the interesting old fortifications. It is
a disappointing town to those who bear in mind its former impor-
tance, as its only lions are the old Cathedral and the Archbishop’s

Palace. Even the Museum is poor in antiquities.

Narbonne , Narbo, was a flourishing town as early as the Hth cent.
B. C. It was ecolonized by the Romans B. C. 116. At that time it was
surrounded by lakes which were conneeted with the Lake of Sijean (p. 172)
and so communicated with the sea, thus making the town one of the first
ports of the Mediterranean and the rival of Massilia. It gave its name
to Gallia Narbonensis, a part of Gaul eonquered by the Romans before the
time of Casar. Martial, in A. D. 95, speaks of it as a beautiful town,
and Sidonius Apollinaris (d. 484) praises its theatre, temple, capitol,
warm baths, triumphal arches, and other buildings, of wlljxieh nothing
remains but fragments discovered in the walls of the enceinte, which
were demolished in 1867. The Visigoths established themselves here in
413 and kept possession of the town till 719, when it was taken by the
Saracens after two years’ siege. So strongly did the latter fortify it that
Charles Martel failed to take it and the troops of Pepin only effected their
entrance through treason in 759. In 817 the town became the ecapital of
the duchy of Septimania or Gothia, adjudged to Lothaire, but it after-
wards had its own viseounts, passing subsequently first to the Counts
of Auvergne, then to those of Toulouse, with whose dominions it was
finally united to France. The decay of the town dates from the begin-
ning of the 14th cent., when the Jews, who had been established in a
quarter of their own by Charlemagne, were expelled, and the port
beeame silted up through the bursting of a dyke, by which the Romans
had diverted to it a branch of the Aude. — The honey of Narbonne is
considered the best in France.

The best way from the station to the centre of the town is to
follow the Boulevard de la Gare to the right, leaving the old town
to be visited on the return. The Rue de la République leads to the
left from the end of the boulevard, on this side of the Canal de la
Robine, direct to the Place de I'Hotel-de-Ville.

The CrurcH oF St. Just, formerly the Cathedral (closed from
noon till 1), on one side of the Place, is a fine but unfinished Gothic
edifice dating mainly from 1272-1332. The work was resumed in
the 18th cent., and again in recent years, but has once more been
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iterrupted. The choir, the only ancient part, with towers added
the 15th cent., is a vast pile 131 ft. in height, rivalling the
wurches of the North in boldness of style, if not in richness of
namentation. The exterior is crowned with a double range of

ittlements, and the flying buttresses end in turrets.

IxTERIOR. In the ambulatory are some interesting tombs of bishops
~ the 14th and 16th cents.; in the 3rd chapel on the left, that of a
neral of the time of Henri IV. The organ-case dates from 1741. The
easury contains MSS., missals, ivory carvings, portable altars, a eross,
chaliee, ete. (7-16th cent.). Fine view from the towers. — Adjoining
e church are some remains of the Cloisters (14-15th cent.).

The chief remains of the ARCHIEPISCOPAL PArAce, which was
rtified in the Middle Ages, are three towers on the facade, the
rgest (on the left) dating from 1318. The Gothic Hoitel de Ville,
etween this tower and the next, was built by Viollet-le-Duc.

The *Muskuvy, in the same building, chiefly contains paintings
1d a fine ceramic collection (Sun. and Thurs., 2-4; to strangers at
ther times also). We enter by the door to the left, at the end of
16 court, or by skirting the building to the left to the Jardin Public
. the back of it. The garden contains sculptures, inseriptions,
rchitectural fragments, and other antiquities found at Narbonne ;
1e rest of the antiquities have been deposited in the old Eglise
e Lamourguié, beyond the canal, and may be seen on application
) the keeper of the Museum.

Roox I. Gallic and Roman antiquities; fossils from the quarries of
rmissan, 5 M. to the E. of Narbonne ; six pietures representing aldermen
'Narbonne in the 17th cent.; and portraits of benefactors of the Museum.
- Room IL, in the large tower, has a beautiful ceiling, exeeuted in 1634
/ Italian artists and representing Genii and Muses; also a Roman mo-
ic found at Narbonne. — The aneient Dining Hall of the archbishops
id other rooms are also interesting for their decorations. Among
e best pictures in R. IL are: 154. H. Rigaud, Portrait; 277. Morales
istoforo, Ecce Homo; 244, Guardi, Piazza of St. Mark; 250. Luing,
ead of John the Baptist; 260. Sassoferrato, Madonna ; 88. Glaize, Tyrannica
oluptas. —H1. Dauzats, Spanish landseape ; 297. Jordaens, Family of Darius
fore Alexander; 24. Gust. Boulanger, Acis and Galatea; 247. Guido Reni,
. Paul, copy or replica of a work in the picture-gallery of Bologna. —
bom III. To the right and above the door, 323. P. de Vos, Amazons; 275.
irducho (Spain), St. Joseph and the Holy Child; 307. Rubens, Jesus at the
use of Lazarus (birds, ete., by Snyders); to the left, 7. G. Becker, The
artyr’s widow ; 125. P. Mignard, San Carlo Borromeo administering the
ymmunion to the plague-stricken at Milan. — 95. Al. Hesse, Portrait; 266.
ntoretto, Sacrifice ; 291. Brueghel the Elder, Village-festival; Jordaens, 296.
toxication and Silenus, 298. Triumph of Silenus; 29. Brémond, Francis 1.
siting Benvenuto Cellini; marble figures by Ottin and Lescornée. Inte-
sting furniture, medals, ete.

Rooms IV. & V. contain the *Ceramic Collection, which ecomprises over
) pieces. Among the most noteworthy are the Mauro-Si)anish ware, from
lencia (Nos. 1-13); the Italian majolica of Castelli (71), Deruta (12, 73),
vona (90, 92), Urbino (97, 98, 10{-103), ete.; the porcelain and glazed
re of China, Japan, Persia, Berlin, Saxony, France, ete.

Rooum VI (Salle Chaber). To the left, 302. Moreelse or Ravestein, Portrait :
. Murillo (?), The Holy Child appearing to St. Anthony of Padua; 23g.
00l of Carracci, St. Augustine; no number, Raphael (2), Martyrdom of

Cecilia, a fresco from La Magliana (sadly damaged) ; 301. Mierevels (§2)
rtrait; 155. Rigaud, Portrait of himself ; 325, German School (2), Assuml',.’
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tion; 284. Velazquez, Porirait; 208. Unknown Artist, Pprtrait of an arch-
bishop; 41. Ph. de Champaigne, Nativity (a copy by his nephew J. B. de
Champaigne) ; 59. Despéches (ca. 1588), Holy Family; 287, 288. Antonissen,
Landseapes; 316. J. van Eyck (?), Tr;ggych; 240. C. Dolci, and no number,
Baroccio, Descent from the Cross; . Palma Vecchio (?), Marriage of St.
Catharine ; 268. Veronese, Madonna, with the donor and saints ; 179. Unknown
Artist, Still-life; 282. J. de Valdes-Leal, Bearing of the Cross; 261. Seb. del
Piombo, Portrait; 232. Bassano, Adoration of the Shepherds ; 934, Pietro da
Cortona (Berettini), Massacre of the Innocents; 264. Zitian, Vine. Capello;
148. N. Poussin, John the Baptist; 208. Salvator Rosa, St. Jerome; 299
Jordaens (after Rubens), Bacchanalian scene; 243. Giotto (?), Holy Family ;
242. Garofalo (?), Jesus and the Woman of Samaria; 245. Guercino, Judith;
9L. G. Poussin, Landscape ; 274. Bauza (Spain), Holy Family; 280. Ribera,
St. Andrew; 273. J. de Arellano, Flowers, fruits, and birds; 292. G. de
Crayer (?), A Doctor of the church.

Roox VII. (Galerie Peyre; adjoining R.1V.). Above the door, 204. Fyt,
Kitchen (figures by Jordaens); to the left, 39, 40, Ph. de Champaigne, Por-
traits; 330. G. van de Velde, Sea-piece; 140. Nattier, Portrait; 129, 128. .
Mignard,, Portraits; 127. P. Mignard (?), Portrait of a queen of France;
89. Greuze, Head of a girl; 314. Van Dyck, Honoré of Savoy; 126, P. Mi-
gnard (2), Mme. de Sévigné; 262. Seb. del Piombo (?), Study; 2719. Juan de
Ribalta (?), Monk ; 149. Primaticcio, Rape of Europa. — Room VIII. Casts
from the antique. To the right, between the windows, 529. Silenus, an
ancient marble statue found in construeting the railway. — The GALLERY
parallel to the large hall, contains furniture, engravings, ete.

The Rue Droite leads from the Place de I'Hotel-de-Ville to the
station. In the Rue Michelet, running parallel to the Rue Droite, is
the church of S¢. Vincent, in the florid Gothic style. The chapel to
the right contains a fine stone reredos. — Archzologists may visit
the church of St. Paul Serge, a Gothic building of the 13th cent.,
near the outskirts of the town, beyond the Robine.

From Narboune to Perpignan, see R. 30. — A branch-line runs from
Narbonne to (13 M.) Bize, a manufacturing town on the Cesse, with some
prehistorie caves. — Tramway to Coursan (see below), hourly; 60 c.

97 M. Coursan (Maison-Dorée) , a town of 3847 inhab., on the
Aude, with an artesian well yielding an aerated and ferruginous ther-
mal water. We cross the Aude, Farther on, to the left, is the Lake of
Capestang, which is to be drained. — Beyond (1021/, M.) Nissan,
we thread a tunnel of 550 yards, partly under another tunnel through
which the Canal du Midi passes. Reaching Béziers, we cross the
Ord, which a little lower down is also crossed by a fine aqueduct of
the Canal du Midi.

1081/, M. Béziers, — Hotels: Graxp HOTEL DB 1A PA1x, Pavt Riquer,
:;Es 'l;losnas, pu CommercE, all in the Allées Paul -Riquet, the first near
d:z'lala,e:;r?}:eth:ns:%oﬂg Tﬁ;g:gt thec::‘:tions; pu Norp, Place de la Cita-
ftted "upiios Helubens s s 8, Several near the theatre, well
 Béziers, with 41,475 inhab. , finely situated on a hill to the left,
Is a town of very ancient origin ; having been colonized by the Ro-
mans under the name of Biterra Septimanorum. Like most of its
neighbours, it suffered severely in the Albigensian wars, and in
1209, about 20-30,000 of its citizens were massacred or burned.

Eéngrs produces good red wines and earries on a large trade in
randy.,
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situated on the Larne, to the N.W. of the Montagne Noire. Near
the station is a Promenade with fine plane-trees. The Church of
St. Sauveur has some curious paintings on its walls and vaulting.
The scanty ruins of the Chdteauw d’Hautpoul occupy an eminence
outside the town.

The two chief summits of the Montagne Noire may be ascended hence
in 4-41/5 hrs. (with guide): the Pic de Nore (3970 ft.), to the 8.E., via the
valley of the Arnette; the Pic de Montaud (3330 ft.), to the S.W., by the
new Carcassonne road.

76 M. Alberts. — At (79 M.) St. Amans-Soult, Marshal Soult
(1769 - 1852) was born and died. — 82 M. Albine; 84!/, M. Laca-
baréde. Then beyond a short tunnel (87 M.) Labastide-Rouairoux,
a cloth-manufacturing town, with 2906 inhabitants.

A tunnel nearly 1/, M. long takes us from the valley of the Thoré
to that of the Salesse, and from the basin of the Atlantic to that
of the Mediterranean. The scenery changes; fig-trees and olives
appear. — 911/, M. Courniou.

95 M. St. Pons or St. Pons-de- Thomiéres (Hotel Pastre), a
cloth - manufacturing town with 3247 inhab., about 1/, M. to the
left, in a valley at the head of which the Jaur rises. We pass under
the railway and follow a fine avenue of plane-trees to the town.
Near the other end of the town is the Cathedral (12th cent.; rebuilt
in the 18th), which has a fine old portal behind the choir, and in
the interior, handsome choir-stalls and choir-screen.

From St. Poxs To St. CHINIAN (Béziers), 14 M., public conveyance in
91/5-3 hrs. (fare 2 fr.), thrice a day, from the Café du Commerce, near
the church. — The route leads via the deep Defile of the Nouvre and
down the valley of the Vernazobres. — St. Chinian, see p. 95.

FroM St. Poxs 1o LA SALvETAT, 131/5 M., public conveyance in about
3 hrs. (fare 21/ fr.), starting daily at 1 p. m. from the little Hotel Dauzat,
at the end of the main street. — The route leads vid the Col du Saumail
or du Cabaretou (3115 ft.) to (131/2M.) La Salvetat (2195 ft.; Hotel Calbérac),
with 8320 inhab., on the right bank of the Agout, a favourite summenr-
resort of the inhabitants of the plain of Narbonnais. Here are the mineral
springs of Rieumajou. The neighbourhood is bracing, abounding in game
and fish, and is a good centre for excursions. — Lacaune (p. 97) lies onmly
121/3 M. to the N. of La Salvetat. p

A small tunnel is traversed. — 971/, M. Riols has cloth-manu-
factures. Beyond (1011, M.) St. Etienne-d’Albagnan the Jaur is
spanned by three bridges. The bare heights to the left are the
Monts de U’ Espinouse (3550 ft.). — 105 M. Olargues, situated on a
crag on the right bank. We cross a long and lofty viaduct to
(1074/, M.) Mons-la-Trivalle. The Gorge d’Héric, see p. 99.
Beyond another viaduct and two tunnels we enter the valley of the
Orb, and halt at Colombiéres (Hotel), where are a double waterfall
a ruined chateau, and a huge chestnut-tree; the Gorge d’Héric may3
also be visited hence. To the left rise the lofty cliffs of the Caroux
(p. 99). Beyond a tunnel is (113 M.) Le Poujol.

114 M. Lamalou-les-Bains. — Hotels, At Lamalou-le-Bas: Graxp-

HOTEL, R. from 38, B. 1, déj. 3, ®. 31/, fr., Gr.-HOT. DES BAINS, DU
these three of the first rank,,8-12 fr. per, day. — Du Mip1, DE LA IF:}:)‘,’
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pE FRANCE, second elass. — At Lamalou-le-Centre : GRAND-HOTEL DU CENTRE.
— At Lamalou-le-Haut : HoTeL DE L’ETABLISSEMENT ; TABARIE, R. from 11/,,
B. 3/4, déj. 3, D. 31/ fr. — Numerous Villas and Furnished Houses.

Bath Establishments, At Lamalou-le-Bas: Bains de piseine 11/4-4 fr.,
douches 11/5-13/4, plunge-bath 2 fr. At Lamalou-le-Haut: Bains de piscine
11/4-2, bain de baignoire 3, douche 11/ fr. — At Lamalou-le-Centre: baths
11/, douches 11/4-2 fr. — Mineral Water, 10 e. per glass.

Carriages. About 25 fr. per day; drives in the environs 10-40 fr. (tariff).
— Tramway Omnibuses between the station, the three bath-establishments,
and La Verniére, 15, 20, 25 ¢. — Donkeys, b fr. per day.

Casinos, Casino-Thédtre at Lamalou-le-Bas; Casino Municipal, new.

Post & Telegraph Office at Lamalou-le-Centre.

Lamalow-les - Bains, a thermal station amidst the mountain-~
spurs that unite the Cévennes and the Montagne Noire (p. 98),
consists of Lamalou-le-Bas or I’Ancien, Lamalou-le-Centre, and
Lamalou-le- Haut, all near each other and at about the same eleva-
tion (590 ft.). The waters (61-114° Fahr.) are especially efficacious
in rheumatic and nervous affections. The visitors are mostly from
the S. of France and from Spain. Lamalou is very hot and dusty
in summer, like all this part of southern France. :

The ETABLISSEMENT DU Bas, to the left in the village, behind
the casino, is pleasantly situated round a shady court, open towards
the valley. On the hill-slope behind are a pretty Park, with the
Usclade spring (118° Fahr.), one of the chief mineral springs, and
a small Botanic Garden (adm. free). The Lacets de Rhedes offer a
picturesque walk with fine views. — The ETABLISSEMENT DU CENTRE,
rebuilt in 1892, has a Hydropathic Establishment in connection
with it. — The ETaBL1sseMENT DU HAvUT, !/, M. farther on, is a well-
equipped establishment in a pleasant Park, with a small stream and
the buvette of the Petit - Vichy.

Excursions and Walks., By Tramway (25 c¢.) to the Park of La Verniére
(adm. 25 ¢.), about 3/4 M. to the 8.S.E., on the bank of the Orb.

Ox Foor or ox DoNkevs. To the N.W., to Villecelle (3 M.), a typical
Cevenole village ; to Le Fraisse, with its legendary chestnut-tree, 3 hrs. there
and back; to the N.E. to the hermitage of Notre- Dame-de-Capimont (4 hrs. ;
fine view); to the S.W. to the priory of St. Pierre-de-Rhédes, the found-
ation of which is attributed to Charlemagne; to the Carouz, see below.

_ BY CarriAGe. Via Hérépian and the valley of the Mare to (31/3 M.)
Villemagne, said to have been endowed by Charlemagne (10 fr. there and
back). The church dates from the i12th eentury. About 1/p M. farther is
the picturesque Pont du Diable. To St. Gervais, see below. — To the
Valley of the Orb and the Gorge d’Héric, 10 M., an interesting excursion
requiring 1/ day. The route leads through a highly picturesque part of
the valley via Le Poujol and (5 M.) Colombiéres (see below). The imposing
rocky amphitheatre of the Gorge d’Héric lies to the left of the road, a
little before the (63/4 M.) Pont de Tarassac, a suspension-bridge over the
Orb, commanding a beautiful view. This exeursion may also be made by
taking the train to Mons-la-Trivalle (p. 98), about 1/5 M. beyond the
Pont de Tarassac. — To (81/5 M. ; 20 fr.) St. Gervais-Ville (Hotel Souli€), a
village with 1780 inhab., picturesquely situated on a tribatary of the
Mare, vid the 2plateau of Taussac, returning by the valley of the Mare via
Villemagne (121/3 M. ; see above). — From St. Gervais to Graissesae and
to Lacaune, see pp. 97, A

AsceNt oF Moxt Caroux (31/5-4 hrs.). We drive to (71/3 M.) Douch
(there and back 35 fr.), 1/5-3/4 hr. to t#e N.W. of the plateau; or walk
vid Villecelle, Le Fraisse (see above), Le Logis- Neuf (11/4 hr. from La-

7%
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malon), and Douch (about 1 hr. from the top). Mont Caroux (3585 ft.;
guide éfr.; from the inn 2 fr.), though not very lofty, commands an ad-
mirable view, embracing the plain of Bas-Languedoe, part of the Pyrenees,
the Mediterranean, Mont Ventoux, and the beginning of the Alps, etc.

Beyond Lamalou the railway continues to ascend the valley of
the Orb. — 116 M. Hérépian. To Villemagne, see p. 99. We
cross the Orb, and join the main line from Neussargues to Béziers
(R, 42).

118 M. Bédarieux (Buffet), see p. 269.

The Montpellier line follows that to Béziers as far as (124 M.)
Faugeres, the next station, where it turns to the E. Itthen passes
through three tunnels. — 431 M. Gabian, a large village with a
ruined chiteau. — 133!/, M. Roujan - Neffiés, in a coal -mining
district. — 136 M. Caux (1930 inhab.); 139 M. Nizas.

142 M. Paulhan (Buffet). Railway to Béziers and Pézenas,
see p. 95.

From PAuLHAN 10 LoDEVE, 181/ M., railway in 1 hr. 10 min. (fares 3 fr.
25, 2 fr. 25, 1 fr. 45 ¢.). This line is a continuation of the line from Béziers
through the valley of the Hérault. — 71/9 M. Clermont-VHérault (Hét. du
C ce; de la Renai ), a small industrial town, with tanneries and
manufactures of woollen cloth, mainly for the army. It contains a church
of the 13-14th cent. and a ruined castle. About 5 M. to the S.W. is the
small village of Mouréze, in a curious amphitheatre of dolomite roeks
recalling Montpellier -le-Vieux (p.275). A carriage (4-8 pers., 20-30 fr.)
may be ordered in advance, through the station-master, for a wvisit to
this ‘cirque’. — A public conveyance (3 fr., with minimum of 12 fr.: places
to be secured in advance) also plies to St. Guilhem-le-Désert, 15 M. to
the N. E., via (11/, M.) Gignac, with two interesting churehes, and (101/5 M.)
Aniane, an ancient little town beside an 18th cent. abbey, now a prison.
St, Guilhem-le-Désert (/nn) occupies a curious site near the Gorges of the
Hérault. 1t possesses a remarkable Romanesque-Byzantine Church, part of
the Cloisters of the abbey to which it owes its origin, and some remains
of fortifications, ete. — 181/3 M. Lodéve (Hotel du Nord), the Luteva of the
ancients, a finely situated town of 9060 inhabitants, was governed in
the Middle Ages by viscounts, and then by bishops, who up to 1789 had
the right of coining money. It is now a manufacturing town, speecially
engaged in making military eloth. The former Cathedral dates from the
13th and 16th centuries.

We cross the Hérault. — Between (144!/, M.) Campagnan and
(146 M.) St. Pargoive is a tunnel, and beyond (1501/, M.) Ville-
veyrac another.

156 M. Montbazin, also a station on the line from Béziers vii
Méze (p. 95) and connected by rail with Cette (8M.), vida Balaruc
(p. 96). — 159 M. Cournonterral; 1611/, M. Fabrégues; 165 M. Stz.
Jean-de- Vedas.

167 M. Montpellier (for farther details and plan, see Baedeker's
South-Eastern France).

Hotels. NEever, Boulevard de I'Esplanade; Graxp HOTEL, Rue Ma-
ruelone ; CoNTINENTAL, Place de la Comédie; pu Mipi, Boul. Victor-Hugo;
DELMAS, Rue de la République; MAGUELONE, Rue Maguelone; Leraxs.
Boul. Victor-Hugo, unpretending. — Cafés in the Rue Maguelone, Place
le la Comédie, Boulevard de I’Esplanade, ete. — Cabs, with one horse.
er drive 1 fr.; with two horses 11/; fr.; per hr. 2 fr. ’

Montpellier, a town of 69458 inhab. , the capital of the depart-

nent of the Heérault, is situated on a hill commanding a fine view,

4
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with the Lez flowing below. From the square outside the station, with
a Monument to Planchon, late director of the Jardin des Plantes,
the handsome Rue Maguelone leads to the Place de la Comédie,
with the Fontaine des Trois Graces (1776) and the Theatre. To
the right of the Place extends the Esplanade with the * Musée, con-
taining one of the best provincial collections of paintings in France.
The Boulevards, beginning at the Place de la Comédie, make the
circuit of the old town. In the Boul. Victor-Hugo is the 12th cent.
Tour de la Babotte. The *Peyrow, the higher part of the town, is
a fine promenade dating chiefly from the 17-18th centuries. The
Porte de Peyrow, a Doric triumphal arch, was erected in 1691. A
little below the Peyrou is the large Jardin des Plantes, the oldest
in France. — The Cathedral, founded in the 14th cent., has been
restored and enlarged in modern times. The various buildings of
the University Academy are also interesting.

14. From Périgueux to Tarbes (Pyrenees).

186 M. RAILWAY in 9 hrs. (fares 33 fr. 70, 22 fr. 80, 14 fr. 90 ¢.). — From
Paris to Tarbes via Limoges, 495 M. in 231/; hrs. (fares 89 fr. 60, 60 fr. 50,
39 fr. 50 e.); vid Bordeaux, 515 M., see R.1 and p. 64. — From Limoges to
Tarbes, 24T M., in 12 hrs. (fares 44 fr. 80, 30 fr. 30, 19 fr. 75 ¢.).

Périgueux, see p.43. The train passes near the ruins (left) of
Chateaw Barriére (p. 4D); to the right is the Tour Vesone (p. 45).
Beyond (7 M.) Niversac, the junction for Brive (p.107), our line
ascends. 11 M. Versannes; 151/, M. La Gélie. — 21 M. Miremont.

About 3 M. to the E. of the station is the *Grotto of Miremont or
Trou de Granville, the galleries of which measure altogether about 2/, M,
in length. The ‘Grande Branche’ is about 1100 yds. long, and contains
remarkable stalactites and stalagmites, fossil shells, ete. The guide, whose
attendance is necessary, lives close by. The entrance is narrow and the
ground almost everywhere slippery; the atmosphere cold and damp. To
see the whole would take eight hours, but curiosity may be satisfied in
two. The most interesting points are the Cas de la Vieiile, a stalagmite ;
the Cake Room, the Sparkling Grotto, the Umbrella, St. Front, a domed
chamber, the Shell Room, the Table and Tomb of Gargantua, the Halle de
a Labenche, and the Foirail or Market Place.

Beyond Miremont we cross two viaducts, pass through a short
tunnel, and cross the Vézére. — 251/, M. Les Eysies, a picturesquely
placed village surrounded and overhung by magnificent rocks, These
rocks contain a large number of Grotfoes, where remarkable dis-
coveries of bones of extinct animals and of implements of flint
and reindeer horn have recently been made.

The line now again crosses the Vézére. Beyond (30 M.) Le
Bugue, a commercial town with 2650 inhab., we cross for the last
time the tortuous Vézére, which joins the Dordogne a little farther
on. On the left is the ancient Chdtean de Perdigat ; to the right
the village of Limenil, once a fortifiedtown. We now enter the beau-
tiful valley of the Dordogne and cross that river.
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351/; M. Le Buisson (Buffet), the junction of the line from

Bordeaux vid Bergerac (p. 15). <

About 31/5 M. to the S. is Cadouin, which onece possessed a celebrated
abbey. The only remains are the church (12th cent.), with a fine painting
of the 15th cent., and the magnificent *Cloisters, in the Flamboyant style.

FroMm LE BuissoN To St. DENIS-PRES-MARTEL (Aurillac), 50 M., railway
in 2 hrs. 40 min. (fares 8 fr. 95, 6 fr. 5, 3 fr. 95¢c.). We follow the main
line as far as (41/3 M.) Siorac, the next station, and crossing the Dordogne
ascend the beautiful valley of that river to the E. — 91/5 M. St. Cyprien,
a small town of 2134 inhab., on the left. To our left is a range of hills
on which, beyond (13 M.) St. Vincent-Bézenac, the fine Chdteau de Beynac
(13th, 14th, and 16th cent.) comes into view and long remains in sight.
‘We cross the Dordogne. The chiteau (14th cent.) seen on the right before
the bridge belongs to (14 M.) Castelnaud. Another chiteau on a height
comes in view lower down. The country is undulating; we recross the
Dordogne and begin to ascend. — 16 M. Vézac. We now quit the river,
traverse two tunnels (the first 1/4 M. long), and pass over a viaduet.

201/5 M. Sarlat (*Hot. de la Madeleine, Rue de la République), a town
of 6615 inhab., in a valley about 1/5 M. to the left of the station. The
large building to our left as we arrive is a seminary. With the exeeption
of the Rue de la République, the streets are narrow, crooked, and ill-
built, but they contain several quaint old Houses, some even in the Gothic
style. The most interesting are in the Rue Gambetta, to the right, where
there is also a ruined church of the 14th century. A little farther on is
a Cathedral, of the 11th, 12th, and 15th cent., with some fine wood-carving.
The 16th cent. house near the entrance was the birthplace of La Boétie
(1530-1563) , the author and friend of Montaigne, to whom a statue was
erected in 1892. The lane ascending by the left of the church skirts an
enclosure within which is a Sepulchral Chapel, a Gothic structure of two
stories, belonging to a convent (visitors admitted). Farther up is a pro-
menade known as the Jardin Plantier,

Beyond Sarlat the railway returns to the valley of the Dordogne ; fine
view to the right. — 251/y M." Carsac; 281/, M. Calviac. The line skirts
the river, traverses a tunnel, 1/4 M. long, and erosses a bridge. 31 M.
Carluz ; 351/9 M. Cazoules. We here join the line to Cahors and follow it
to beyond the viaduet of Souillae, which now appears on the right. Fine
amphitheatre of mountains; tunnel; two viaduets.

38 M. Souillac (p.109). We ecross the large viaduet and see another
to the left, over which runs the line to Brive. Then, farther on, another
viaduet and a tunnel, over 1/4 M. in length. — 41 M. Ze Pigeon.

46 M. Martel, a little town to the left, has a curious 14th cent. Hitel
de Ville and an interesting chureh of the 15th century. — The railway
now attains a considerable elevation (fine view to the right), traverses
rock - euttings and five tunnels, begins to deseend ra idly, and joins the
line from Toulouse vid Capdenac (on the right). — &M. St. Denis - pres-
Martel (p. 107).

Beyond (40 M.) Siorac we quit the Dordogne valley , which di-
verges to the left (with the line to St. Denis-prés-Martel), and skirt
slopes planted with vines.

43!/, M. Belves, a small town of 2182 inhabitants. The country
now becomes very hilly; the line crosses five viaduects and passes
through a tunnel 1640 yds. long. 50 M. Le Got, with a large export
of mushrooms (cépes) gathered in the neighbourhood. 541/, M.
Villefranche-de-Belvés, a small town on a hill rising from the A/ze-
nance, which we cross repeatedly farther on. 5H8 M. Sauwveterre,
vith a ruined castle of the 13th century. — 60 M. St. Fron¢, with
- partly fortified Romanesqué church. Then three bridges with a

hort tunnel between the first two. — G4 M. Cuzorn. j

—
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674/, M. Monsempron-Libos (Bufet). Monsempron, on a height
to the right, has an interesting Gothic and Romanesque church.

Frox MoxsEMPRON - L1Bos 1o CAmoORs, 31 M., railway in 13/4-2 hrs.
This branech ascends the picturesque valley of the Lot. 11/4 M. Fumel, an
industrial town of 3630 inhab., 5 M. from the well-preserved old castle
of Bonaguil. The line then runs between the river and the steep heights
on the left. At the foot of the hills on the right are the ruins of the old
town of Orgueil. 51/o M. Soturac-Touzac; 8 M. Duravel, beyond which we
cross the tortuous Lot; 11 M. Puy-I'Evéque, a town of 2200 inhab., situated
on the left. Then another bridge over the Lot and a short tunnel. 151/3 M.
Castelfranc, with a castle situated on the right a little short of the station;
90 M. Luzech, with a ruined eastle of the 13th cent., on a peninsula formerly
defended by a Celtie fortress, of which some remains have been discovered.
93 M. Parnac. To the left is the chiteau of Grézette. 26 M. Mercues, with an
interesting castle of the 13th cent., on a hill to the right, belonging to
the Bishop of Cahors. To the left are massive retaining walls, with
arches. — 31 M. Cahors, see p. 110.

The Agen line skirts the Lot for some distance, passing (71 M.)
Trentels-Ladignac. — Bridge over the Lot, and two short tunnels.

TT4/; M. Penne, on a hill 1!/, M. to the N. of the station, with
the scanty remains of a famous medizval castle. At some distance,
to the left, are the ruins of Castel Gaillard.

Frox Pexse To Toxxeixns, 141/, M., railway in 11/4 hr. (fares 4 fr. 80,
3fr. 80, 2 fr. 10 e.). — 51/5 M. Villeneuve-sur-Lot (Hotel Lamourouz) is a
town of 13,800 inhab., with a large trade especially in prunes, whieh it
exports annually to the value of 120,000. Part of the Ramparts of the 13th
cent., especially on the left bank, and a bridge of the same period still
remain. One of the sqguares is surrounded by arcades of the same date. —
At (12M.) Ste. Livrade (2644 inhab.) we eross the Lot. — 221/, M. Clairac, with
3560 inhab., embraced the Reformation with ardour and was captured by
Louis XIII. in 1621. — 27 M. Tomneins, see p. 72.

We now traverse a pretty valley and a tunnel 1350 yds. long.
To the left is the lofty Tour de Hautefage (15th cent.). 88 M. La-
roque, with remains of fortifications. Beyond (901/, M.) Pont - du-
Casse, we cross the Canal Latéral a la Garonne (p. 71) and join
the Bordeaux line.

94 M. Agen (Buffet), see p. 73. To Bordeaux and to Toulouse,
see R. 10.

3 ‘We here quit the Orléans Railway and proceed by the Chemin de

Fer du Midi (Toulouse line) as far as (31/, M.) Bon-Encontre (p. 4),
We €ross the Garonne by a fine viaduct and ascend the valley of the
Gers. 104 M. Layrac, a small place with a Romanesque church;
104 M. Goulens; 106 M. Astaffort; 112 M. Castex-Lectourois.

116"/2 M. Lectoure (Hotel de I’ Euwrope, Rue Nationale, indifferent),
an ancient town of 4994 inhab., on a steep and almost completely
1_solated hill. The principal Church, formerly a cathedral, to the
right, at the end of the Rue Nationale, is a massive building of the
1{'5(11 and 16th centuries. It contains side-chapels with galleries, a
]ngh—al'tar, and some modern stained glass. The fine pendentives of
the apsidal chal?els are note.worthy. Behind the church is a prome-
nade comm_andmg a fine view of the Pyrenees. At the end of the
promenade is a Statue of Marshal Lannes (1769-1809), Duke of
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Tontebello, who was born at Lectoure of obscure parents. The Rue
e Fontélie, which descends to the right of the old episcopal palace.
ear the church, leads to the Fontaine Hondélie or Font-Elie, which
lates from the Roman period, when it is said to have been consecrated
o Diana of Delos or to the Sun; it was partly rebuilt in the middle
ges. It forms a grotto with pointed vaulting and two arches closed
'y a railing.

‘We now cross the Gers, and reach (123 M.) Fleurance, a small
own on its right bank. Beyond (1261/, M.) Montestruc the Gers is
wgain crossed. 130 M. Ste. Christie. Beyond (133 M.) Rambert-
Preignan, the line to Toulouse diverges to the left.

138 M. Auch (Hotel de France, Place de I'Hotel - de - Ville -
7eorges, Rue de Lorraine), the ancient capital of Gascony, and now
he chief town of the department of the Giers, with 14,782 inhab., is
ituated on a steep hill rising from the river Gers. It was the capital
f the Ausci, and was very flourishing under the Romans. Since the
th cent. it has been the seat of archbishops, who formerly styled
hemselves the Primates of Novempopulania.

The town is entered by a street to the right of the station and
e Avenue d’Alsace, which leads to a bridge over the turbid and
ellowish Gers. The Rue de Lorraine, beyond the bridge, ascends
) a small Place (right), with a Statue of Admiral Villaret-Joyeuse
750-1812). Turning to the left into the Rue Gambetta, we soon
rach the Place de I'Hotel-de-Ville and the Cours @ Etigny , a
romenade adorned with a Statue of Meyret &’ Etigny, a governor
nd benefactor of the district in the 18th century. In the Hétel de
Ville is a small Musée of paintings, antiquities, etc. The building
t the other end of the Cours is the Palais de Justice, a recent erection.

The #*CATHEDRAL o¥ St. MaRY, in the Place adjoining the
Iotel de Ville, rebuilt in 1483-1662, is one of the finest churches
n the South of France. It is in the form of a Latin eross with a
ransept in the debased Gothic style; the classical portico is sur—
nounted by two square towers of the composite order.

The INTERIOR is more imposing than the exterior, which on the whole
s somewhat heavy and cold. The Choir (closed) contains 113 beauti-
ully carved *Stalls, masterpieces of their period. The rood-loft between
he nave and choir has given place to a pretentious modern Choir-
rgan, with panels on its sides adorned with paintings on a gold ground.
‘he reredos at the Migh Altar is a huge and tasteless marble erection
f the end of the 16th century. The chapels of the Ambulatory contain
ch stained glass of the Renaissance, representing Pairiarchs, Prophets
postles, and Sibyls. Some of the sculptures in the chapels are also
rteworthy. Behind the choir are several bas-reliefs of the Renaissance.

Near the cathedral stand the Archbishops’ Palace (18th cent.)
ith a Tower of the 14th cent., etc. A handsome flight of 232 steps7
scends hence to the left bank of the Gers, by which we may regain
e bridge and the station. -

From Auch to Toulouse, see p- 87.

142 M. Se. Jean-le-Comtal; 151 M. 1’ Isle-de- Noé,
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155 M. Mirande (Hotel Tartas), a small town (4244 inhab.) with
the remains of fortifications, was built on a regular plan towards
the close of the 13th century. It contains an interesting church of
the 15th cent., with a belfry above the street.

160!/, M. Laas; 165 M. Miélan; 171 M. Villecomtal-sur-Arros.
The Pyrenees, which have already been in sight for some time, are
now, in clear weather, very distinctly seen during the descent into
the valley of the Adour.

173 M. Rabastens-de-Bigorre, a small town to the left, at the
siege of which Blaise de Montluc, the famous and terrible opponent
of the Calvinists, received a frightful wound in the face, which
obliged him to wear a mask for the rest of his life (1570-77). In
revenge he ordered a general massacre, from which only four persons,
two of them Catholics, escaped.

The train now crosses the Adowr and turns to the S. 478 M. Vic-
en-Bigorre, a town with 3650 inhab., the junction of a line to Morcenx
(p. 64); 179 M. Pujo; 180 M. Andrest.

186 M. Tarbes (see p. 135).

15. From Limoges (Paris) to Brive and Aurillac.

I. From Limoges to Brive.
a, Via Uzerche.
611/s M. RArLway in 2-31/4 hrs. (fares 11 fr. 20, 7 fr. 50, 4 fr. 90 e.).
The trains start from the Gare des Bénédictins.
Limoges, see p. 39. — The line passes below the town by a tunnel

1085 yds. in length, crosses the Vienne, and ascends the valley of
the Briance, to the S. E. Fine view of Limoges to the right. Then
a viaduct and a tunnel. To the left a modern chateau.

T1/y M. Solignac-le-Vigen. The small town of Solignac, 1/, M.
to the right, was formerly the seat of a Benedictine abbey, founded
in the Tth cent., rebuilt in the 18th, and now a porcelain manufac-
tory. The interesting Church of the 12th cent. has a dome-vaulted
nave and fine 15th cent. stalls. Near Le Vigen, on an eminence on
the left bank of the Briance, is the Castle of Chalusset, the ancient
residence of the Viscounts of Limoges, which was built in the 12th
and 43th cent. and dismantled in 1593 during the Religious Wars.
Its triple walls were about 65 ft. in height. Two keeps and other parts
of the stronghold are still standing. This castle is seen from the
railway, to the right, beyond the next viaduct and tunnel.

13 M. Pierre- Buffiere, with porcelain-manufactures, was the
birthplace of the surgeon Dupuytren (1777-1835); a statue of whom
has been erected near a bronze fountain presented by him to the
town. — The train then enters the valley of the Blanzou and crosses
the Briance. — 161/, M. Glanges; 20 M. Magnac- Vicg. The Petite-
Briance is crossed by a long and lofty viaduct. — 221/, M. St. Ger-

main-les- Belles; the little town lies 1 M. to the left. 26 M. La
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Porcherie; 29 M. Masseret. — Beyond (311/; M.) Malons-la-Towur,
where there is a ruined tower, we enter the valley of the Vézére.

361/, M. Uzerche (Hot. Pommarel), a town of 4350 inhab., is
picturesquely situated about 3/, M. to the S. of the station, on a steep
hill washed by the Veézere. It contains an interesting Romanesque
Church and several castellated Mansions of the 12-16th centuries.
Uzerche claims to be the Uxellodunum of antiquity (comp. p. 107).

The railway next traverses a more undulating country, crosses

three bridges (the third spanning the Vézére), and threads a tunnel.
— Beyond (411/, M.) Vigeois (3266 inhab.) we enter a wooded rocky
gorge in which there are eight tunnels, with a bridge after the first
and a ruin, to the right, after the last. Between (46!/, M.) Estéivaux
and (51 M.) Allassac there are four tunnels and a bridge, still in the
gorge of the Vézére. We then quit that river.

54 M. Donzenac (Hot. du Commerce; des Voyageurs), with 3240
inhab., picturesquely situated to the left, has an interesting Chusrch
(12-14th cent.) and several quaint houses.

57 M. Ussac. We cross the Corréze and join the following rail-
way, then that from Périgueux (see below). — 611/, M. Brive (R. 5).

b. Via St, Yrieix,

631/3 M. RAILWAY in 21/5-31/5 hrs. (fares as above).

Limoges, see p. 39. — This line diverges to the left from the
preceding after crossing the Vienne (see p. 105). — 6!/, M. Beynac.

121/, M. Nexon (3155 inhab.), with a church of the 12th and
15th cent., and a chiteau in the style of the 16th century. Line to
Périgueux, see p. 42.

18 M. La Meyze; 21 M. Champsiaux. 26 M. St. Yrieix (Hot. du
Faisan), a town of 8700 inhab., where the first French quarries of
kaolin or porcelain clay were discovered in 1765, possesses an
interesting church of the 12-43th cent., with a single nave and
three choirs. Tramway to Périgueux, see p. 45.

311/, M. Coussac-Bonneval, with a chiteau of the 15-16th cent.,
to the left; 30 M. St.Julien ; 38 M. Lubersac; 42 M. Pompadour.
with a chateau presented by Louis XV., with the title of Marquise, to
his mistress, Antoinette Poisson. The National Stud Farm here is
one of the most important in Europe. — Then, after three viaduects
(180, 120, and 60 ft. in height), the line descends, crossing several af-
luents of the Vézére, to (48!/, M.) Vignols-St. Solve. At (52M.) Objat
we join the line from Thiviers (p. 42).. Beyond (56 M.) Le Burg and
58 M.) Varetz we cross the Vézére and its tributary the Corrése.

63 M. Brive (Buffet; Hotel de Bordeaux; de Toulouse), an ancient
own with 16,800 inhab., where Gundebald was proclaimed king of
\quitania in 585. It was the birthplace of Cardinal Dubois and
larshal Brune and has a statue of the latter. The chief local trade
s in truffles. In the middle of the town .stands the Romanesque
nd Gothic church of St. M:\wlz’n (11-12th cent.), recently restored.

\
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to Aurillac.  ST. DENIS-PRES-MARTEL. I. Route 15. 107
From Brive to Tulle, Clermont-Ferrand, ete., see R.36b; to Thiviers,

FroM Brive To Pirieueux (Coutras, Bordeaux), 45 M., railway in
13/4-33/4 hrs. (fares 8 fr. 10, 5 fr. 45, 3 fr. 55 ¢.). This line soon enters the
valley of the Vézére, which it erosses and follows for a considerable
distance. 13 M. Terrasson, a small commercial town with a Gothic church
and the ruins of an abbey; 201/; M. La Bachellerie, a large village on a
vine-clad slope, beyond which we quit the Vézére; 361/ M. St. Pierre-de-
Chignac; 39 M. Niversac, where the line to Agen (p. iOl) diverges. —
45 M. Périgueux, see p. 43.

II. From Brive to Aurillac.

641/ M. RAILWAY in 23/4-41/4 hrs. (fares 11 fr. 85, 7 fr. 95, b fr. 15 ¢.).
From Brive to (171/5 M.) St. Denis-prés- Martel we follow the Capdenac
and Toulouse line (p.112); from St. Denis to (47 M.) Auwrillac the route
ascends the interesting Valley of the Cére.

Beyond Brive, where the most interesting and picturesque part
of the route begins, the train passes through two tunnels; the
second (1550 yards long), the Montplaisir Tunnel, is the longest
on the Orléans Railway system. — At a distance, first on the left
and then on the right, are the ruins of the Chiteau de Turenne
(see below).

73 M. Turenne, 11/4 M. to the E. of the small and ancient town
of that name. This was the capital of the ‘vicomté’ from which
the celebrated Marshal Turenne (d. 1685) took his title. The ruins
of his Chdteau consist of two imposing towers situated on high
and precipitous rocks; the older of the two (43th cent.) is round,
the other (14th cent.) is square.

76 M. Quatre-Routes. Farther on, to the left, is the plateau on
which stands the village of Puy-d’Issolu, the probable site of the
Celtic town of Urzellodunum, taken by Cesar B.C. 50 (see also
pp- 106, 114, 236).

801/, M. St. Denis-prés-Martel (Buffet; Hot. Vayssiére, at the
station, moderate), a village in the valley of the Dordogne.

From St. Denis to Capdenac and Toulouse, see p.112; to Le Buisson
vid Sarlat, see p. 102.

The railway to Aurillac ascends the valley of the Dordogne,
then that of the Cére, which becomes highly picturesque beyond
Bretenoux, where it is more than 1300 ft. above the sea-level. —
841/, M. Vayrac. Beyond (88 M.) Puybrun we cross the Dordogne
by an iron bridge, to the right of which is a suspension-bridge. On
the right also appears the chiteau of Castelnaw (see below). —
91 M. Bretenoux, a village, at one time fortified, on the left bank
of the Cére.

The *Chéateau of Castelnau (12- 15th cent.) is a pieturesque ruin on a
steep rock, 13/4 M, to the S.W., commanding a fine view (key at the
‘presbytére’ of Castelnau). The village Church, dating from the 14th eent.,
contains stalls and an altar-piece of the 15th century.

A Dinigexce (1 fr.) plies from the station of Bretenoux to St. Céré,
a small town, 6 M. to the S.E., dominated by the ruined Zours de St.
Laurent (12th and 14th cent.).

Another Dinicexce plies to Beaulieu (Hot. de Bordeauz), a little town
on the right bank of the Dordogne, 31/3 M. to the N., with a fine Roman-



